Cheryl Robinson, Chair * David Rowley, Vice Chair * Jeffrey Lord, Treasurer * Tom Armao, Secretary
Craig Gelbsman * Patricia Kennedy * Andrew Marietta * James Seward

Jody Zakrevsky, CEO * Joseph Scott, Bond Counsel * Kurt Schulte, Counsel * Meaghan Marino, Dir. of Finance and Administration *
Tammy Graves, Marketing Coordinator * Nasim Vargha, Administrative Assistant

The Mission of Otsego Now is to transform Otsego County’s economy so that it can provide a prosperous livelihood for all its
residents by attracting and retaining business investment from established and growing firms that will bring high-paying skilled
jobs to our community.

COIDA BOARD AGENDA
THURSDAY, MARCH 28™, 2024

RoLL CaLL

e CHAIR’S REMARKS
e PRESENTATION BY JASON WAITE - 2023 AUDIT FOR COIDA, OCCRC, AND ORYLDC
e APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES

o February 22™ Annual Meeting Minutes
o February 22" Board Meeting Minutes

e BiLLS AND COMMUNICATIONS
e NEW AND UNFINISHED BUSINESS
o PARIS Reporting: Annual Report, Procurement Report, Investment Report
o 2023 COIDA Financial Audit Approval
o Skyline Hospitality: Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement, Contractor
Section 875 GML Recapture Agreement, Contractor Sales Tax Exemption Letter; and
Thirty Days Sales Tax Report (ST-60)
o Bond Counsel Approval
o PuBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

e EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF NEEDED)

o ADJOURNMENT






COUNTY OF OTSEG
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOP [

Year Ended Decembe



COUNTY OF OTSEGO
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of Otsego County, New York)

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 1-3

MANAGEMENT"'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Combined Statement of Net Position 10
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expendltures and Chang 11
Combined Statement of Cash Flows 12
Notes to the Financial Statements 13-21
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
22
23
24
25
and Gther Matters Based on an Audit
rmed in Accordance with Government
< 26 27
Independent Audite on Compliance with Investment Guidelines
For Public Autho 28



4 Associate Drive
Oneonta, New York 13820
Phone: (607) 432-8700
Fax: (607) 432-5122
WWW.mmscpas.com

MOSTERT, MANZANERO & SCOTT, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Deborah L. Mostert, CPA
Anthony T. Manzanero, CPA
Mary E. Manzanero, CPA
David E. Brownell, CPA
Jason L. Waite, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors

County of Otsego Industrial Development Agency
189 Main Street, Suite 500

Oneonta, New York

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statemer
Agency (A component Unit of Otsego County, New '

In our opinion, the financial statements re all material respects, the
respective financial position of the COIDA a3 the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows for the yea in_accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Amer '

Basis for Opinions

} rds generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards i i . contained in Government Auditing Standards,
tes. Our responsibilities under those standards are
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our

or the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accoun rinciples generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
erTor.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about COIDA’s ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

MEMBERS: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, New York State Society of Certified Public Accountants

National Conference of CPA Practitioners



Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment madé by a reasonable user based on
the financial statements.

Auditing Standards, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain udit;

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material missta

fraud or error, and design and perform audit p

procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidenc arding the amounts and disclosures in

the financial statements; ‘

s Obtain an understanding of intern

procedures that are appropriate in th

opinion on the effectiveness of COID,
expressed;

¢ Evaluate the appropri

accounting estimaté

.audit in order to design audit
the purpose of expressing an

e charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
grificant audit findings, and certain internal control-related

Discussion & Analysis ges 4 — 9 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements,
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, and
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

2.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise COIDA’s financial statements. The accompanying combining statements are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The schedule of
outstanding sale and lease agreements and the schedule of full time equivalent (FTE) jobs created and
retained in the financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the financial statements, but it is supplementary information required by the Office of the New
York State Comptroller. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to: prepare the basic financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedur plied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, includin pparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other reco prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, itional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the:l S ica. In our opinion,
the basic financial

ued our report dated March , 2024;
on our consideration of COIDA’s interna il reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of law rant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to descril sting of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the res : t to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of COIDA’s in or on compliance. That report is an

t Auditing Standards in considering

ties Law, we have also issued our report dated March

DA’s comphance with Section 2925 of New York State Public
Law. The pur is to determine whether COIDA obtained and managed its
n compliance icies and relevant sections of the New York State Public

Authorities

\..)

H ot T &ﬁq{kﬁf’m Y %(‘féﬁ;{;ﬁfﬁ

Oneonta, New York
March 2024



COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of Otsego County, New York)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As the financial management of the County of Otsego Industrial Development Agency (“COIDA”), we
offer readers of these financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities
for COIDA for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023. This discussion and analysis is designed to
assist the reader in focusing on the significant financial issues and activities and to identify any significant
changes in financial position. COIDA encourages its readers to consider the information presented here
in conjunction with the financial statements taken as a whole.

Budget

primary source of income is
d in the Oneonta Business

COIDA budgets its operating income and expenses each year. COID/
generated through lease payments on buildings it owns at 18 Stadiun
Park, interest income on loans and fees for services including sale/l

%

Overview of the Financial Statements

ents, including notes to the financial
p the reader better understand the

This discussion and analysis accompanies COIDA’s financial ‘st;
statements and the reports on internal control and compliance
financials.

Financial Statements

COIDA’s financial stateme: nsive reporting of COIDA’s 2023
abilities are reported as net position.

strengthened or weakened financial position.

tial to a full understanding of the data provided in

The increase in operatin ; revenues was mostly attributable to:

Decrease in interest income on notes of $90;

Increase in rental income of $7,618;

Increase in fee revenue of $265,641;

Increase in economic development support of $200,000; and
Decrease in bad debt recoveries of $34,286.



COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of Otsego County, New York)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The increase in operating expenses was mostly attributable to:

Decrease in insurance of $11,236;

Increase in computer expense of $5,486;
Decrease in rental expense of $370;

Increase in professional fees of $42,345;

Increase in marketing expense of $22,053;
Increase in travel, seminar and training of $1,927;
Decrease in depreciation and amortization expenses of $2,431;
Decrease in membership dues and subscriptions of $7,230;
Increase in payroll and payroll related expenses of $20,073;
Increase in repairs and maintenance of $715; and
Increase in other expenses of $5,110.

At the close of fiscal year 2023, COIDA had net positi
prior year. The term “net position” refers to the diffep

$5,437,\9&04, an increase 8,680 from the

tween assets and liabilities

businesses, expansions and business
ograms and access to capital for the

COIDA’s primary objective is to provide assistance to e
startups with professional assistance, tax igcentives, educatio
purposes of creating jobs and economic develt
comprised of investments dedicated to this
working capital. The revolving loan fund is
allowance for uncollectible loans which has bee

COIDA’s current major
Oneonta Business Par

COIDA’s B
monthly basis

ce Committee, and Project Committee all continued to meet on a
’s governance and projects, its financials and loan portfolio. Staff
s Procurement, Investment and Annual Report on time to the ABO, and
12023 budget to the ABO in October 2023. Staff continued to meet
individually with COIDA foan clients particularly those with delinquent loans and was successful in
obtaining payments from clients who had not serviced their loans for several years. COIDA’s loan
portfolio has become healthier as a result.

prepared and submi



COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of Otsego County, New York)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Real Property

COIDA’s 40-plus “shovel-ready”, developable acres in the Oneonta Business Park continues to be
marketed aggressively by staff. The IDA is now in discussion with a manufacturing company to purchase
one or more lots in the Park. In addition, COIDA’s vacant spec building, also in the Oneonta Business
Park, which was occupied by Siemens Medical for 20 years, was leased in early 2017 by Hale
Transportation. During 2020, Hale Transportation, due to decline in ridership due to COVID-19, decided
not to renew its lease. Staff have been working on marketing the facility to several other potential tenants
and in 2021 Burr Trucking leased the facility. Burr Trucking decided to close its operations mainly due to
staffing issues. COIDA negotiated with Apple Converting to lease the faci 2023 for their expanded
manufacturing operations. IOXUS renewed their lease from the IDA ¢ ding ‘Which formerly housed
the Soccer Hall of Fame, and the IDA finalized a new five-year use ent with the Oneonta Soccer
Club to provide limitless access to the high-quality soccer fields on/ti for their use for training,
tournaments and events. In addition, the IDA subleased part of ‘ at 189 Main Street to
Southern Tier 8 (a regional planning agency) and the Development and
Entrepreneurship (CADE) and in 2023 rented space to th search Institute.

ternational Food & Poli

Oneonta Rail Yards
During 2019, the final generic environmental impact state
During the past year, the IDA in conjunction with the Ci
Department re-surfaced Roundhouse Road . the entranceway in
the IDA hired the MRB Group to prepare a n
the IDA had a 3 acre parcel cleared of trees
Engineers do a feasibility study of having a ge

is accepted by the €ity of Oneonta.
Oneonta and the County Highway
fie new industrial park site. In 2020,
n plot of the property. In 2022,
e IDA is having Ramboll
and cooling system installed

In 2020, the Workforce #Center”) continued its focus to conduct training
programs being cargi s Development Center, the Otsego County
Chamber of Commerce, S ent of Labor and the Center for Agriculture,

iew digital marketing campaign to downstate residents and businesses.
eveloped along with videos of Otsego County. This effort will continue
through 2024, A
developed.

Grants
The COIDA is administering the following grants:
* $500,000 in capital grants to continue to move the Oneonta Rail Yards project forward.
® $750,000 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) to the Town of Oneonta for the
expansion of Systematic Power Manufacturing (Ioxus) which will retain 21 jobs and create 32 jobs.
* $150,000 Appalachian Regional Commission grant to begin the IDA’s Innovation/Acceleration
Center.
* $325,000 NYS Empire State Development Grant, a $1.2 million federal EDA grant, and a $500,000
ARC grant to extend water and sewer to a new industrial park in the Town of Richfield.
¢ $300,000 Micro-Enterprise Grant for the County of Otsego.

-6~



COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of Otsego County, New York)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Corning
In 2021, the IDA approved financial assistance to Corning for a $14.7 million expansion. Construction is
expected to be completed in 2024.

One Stop Business Center
After several years, the Otsego County Chamber of Commerce moved its operations out of COIDA
offices. Southern Tier 8 Regional Planning Agency and the Center for Agriculture, Development and
Entrepreneurism (CADE) continue to rent space at COIDA offices. This cooperative venture would
allow COIDA, and NYS Small Business Development Center, CADE and Southern Tier 8 to function as
a cohesive unit enhancing the services provided to businesses of all sectos

Economic Factors

! and local level.
ny were forced to

In 2023 it continued to be a difficult economic environ
Businesses continued to deal with the aftermath of the Co

manufacturing was affected due to supply chain issu
whether by circumstance or by choice and the population
more challenging. Furthermore, with an average unemploym ¢ of 5.8%, existing businesses in all
industries are having a difficult time filing job vacancies in O County. The unemployment rate
reached a high of 12.1% in April of 2020.
capital many businesses need for growth and
available natural gas supply and electricity.

However, throughout the y ‘to existing businesses for growth
opportunities and to identif ‘ ibusiness and growth in the downtown
ntinue to be of significant focus for economic
ta Rail Yards and the Market Street area of
Oneonta in general.
nanotechnolog



COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of Otsego County, New York)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following is a summary of COIDA’s financial position at December 31, 2023 and 2022:

Increase/

Decrease
NET POSITION 2023 Prior Year 2022
Current assets $ 1,667,051 $ 397,311 $ 1,269,740

Non-current assets 3.800,720 (40,386) 3,841,106
Total assets 5,467,771 560,925 5,110,846

24,7 18 24,760

6,862

31,622

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Invested in capital assets:

Net of related debt 3,832,540
Unrestricted 1,246,684
Total net position 54 | $.5,079.224
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Operating revenues f $ 438883 § 478,924

Operating expenses 76,442 500,486

Operating income (loss) 344,879 362,441 (21,562}
Non-operating income 17,801 16,480 1,321
Change in net 358,680 378,921 (20,241)

5.079.224 (20.241) 5.099.465

$5437904 § 358,680 §$5.079.224



COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of Otsego County, New York)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2023 MARKETING INITIATIVES

»  Continued to build relationships among New York State agencies and individuals, the site-
selector community nationally, and key industry groups in order to attract new private investment
to Otsego County;

=  Developed property fact sheets for direct marketing campaigns and website viewing and
downloading;

»  Develop a digital marketing campaign to downstate businesses and re i

= Continued to develop a comprehensive inventory of available si
purchase;

=  Continued to publicize Otsego Now activities and successes
media, press releases, relationship-building with local and
events; and

= Participated in targeted industry and sector events.

d buildings for lease or

h a combination of social
, website marketing and

2024 GOALS
= Continue to work redeveloping Oneonta Rail Yard including Norfolk Southern and
the City of Oneonta;

* Continue to conduct annual busine

_retention and site to existing companies in Otsego

County;
*  Aggressively market shovel — ready si
n Continue a digital marketing campaign te busi esidents;

velopment;
to existing companies in Otsego County;
e Region and State in order to promote job-

a new innovation/acceleration center;
rojects such as Springbrook’s Ford Block Housing in Oneonta
wn, and

Questions concerning he information provided in this report or request for additional financiai
information should be addressed to Jody Zakrevsky, Chief Operating Officer, County of Otsego Industrial
Development Agency, 189 Main Street, Suite 500, Oneonta, New York 13820.



COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of Otsego County, New York)

COMBINED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

l r f t December 31, 2023

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Certificate of deposit
Accrued interest receivable
Rents receivable
Grants receivable
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Capital assets, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expense
Lease liability - Current
Security deposits
Total current liabilities

Long term liabilities:
Lease liability - Long term
Total long term liabilities

Total liabilities
Net position:
Investment in unrestricted capital assets, net of debt

Unrestricted net assets

Total net position

See accompanying notes.
-10-

$ 994,559
604,659
4,050

6,250

55,438

2,095

1,667,051
3,800,720

5,467,771

1,970
6,000
1,773
15,035

24,778

5,089
5,089

29,867

3,793,858

1,644,046

$ 5,437,904



COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of Otsego County, New York)

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
p AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
d r a ft Year Ended December 31, 2023

Operating revenues:

Program support $ 275000
Rental of real property 143,958
Administrative, PILOT, bond and loan application fees 487,182
Bad debt recovery 11,667

Total operating revenues 917,807

Operating expenses:

Payroll taxes : 17,408
Accounting fees 26,470
Professional fees - Economic development 133,061
Professional fees - Other 1,863
Marketing and promotion . 28,572
Salaries and wages 180,932
Membership dues and subscriptions 5,486
Office expenses 5,193
Computer and equipment expenses 12,719
Telephone 595
Office rent 49,400
Travel, seminars and training 4,498
Rental expenses 1,287
Insurance 34,214
Utilities 5,375
Repairs and maintenance - Business park 5,732
Depreciation expense 58,631
Amortization expense 1,704
Other expenses 195
Bad debt 3,593
Total operating expenses 576,928
Net operating income 340,879

Non-operating revenues (expenses):

Other interest income 17,801
Grant income 75,607
Grants expended (75,607)
Total non-operating revenues 17,801
Net income 358,680
Net position - Beginning of year 5,079,224
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 5,437,904

See accompanying notes.
-11-



COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of Otsego County, New York)

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

d r a ft Year Ended December 31, 2023

Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from program support $ 275,000
Receipts from rents 142,708
Receipts from fees 487,182
Payments to employees (196,190)
Payments to suppliers and services (306,911)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 401,789
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net grants received 94,561
Principal payments received on notes receivable 11,667
Purchase of capital assets (21,654)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 84,574
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest and earnings 5,935
Purchase of certificate of deposit (235,000)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES {229,065)
NET INCREASE IN CASH 257,298
Cash - Beginning of year 737,261
Cash - End of year $ 994,559

Reconciliation of net operating income to net cash
provided by (used in) operation activities:
Net operating income $ 340,879
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:

Depreciation 58,631
Amortization 1,704
(Increase) decrease in rents receivable (1,250)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 13,543
Increase (decrease) in allowance for bad debt (11,667)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and commitments (51)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 401,789

See accompanying notes.
-12-



COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of Otsego County, New York)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended December 31, 2023

NOTE!1 ORGANIZATION

The County of Otsego Industrial Development Agency (COIDA) was organized May 1, 1973 by the
Otsego County Legislature under the authority of General Municipal Law, Section 856.1A of the State
of New York. COIDA is a component unit of Otsego County, New York, based on the criteria set forth
in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements No. 14 and 39 and as amended by
GASB Statement No. 61. COIDA was established to provide professional assistance, educational
programs and loans for existing business expansions, business startups i go County to encourage
plant modernization, to create job opportunities and promote commerce and industry.

The accompanying combined financial statements include asse
financial activities of COIDA, a component unit of Otsego
Rail Yards Local Development Corporation.

.and net position, and the
omponent unit, Oneonta

The financial reporting entity includes organizatio
officials exercise oversight responsibility. Ove

The financial reporting entity consists of (a) t
which the primary government is financia
nature and significance of their relationship
the reporting entity’s financial statements to.

is COIDA, (b) organizations for
fganizations for which the

County Capital Resource Corporation (OCCRC) in
rporation organized under NYS Not-for-Profit Corporation Law
er.of the corporation. OCCRC is a separate legal entity, its
officers and directors and the two entities share common

Development Corporation formed under Sections 402 and 1411 of the Not-for Profit Corporation Law
of the State of New “York. COIDA is the sole member of the corporation. While ORYLDC is a
separate legal entity, its governing board is made up of the COIDA’s officers and directors and the two
entities share common management and staff. As such, ORYLDC is presented as a component unit of
COIDA in the accompanying financial statements.

13-



COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of Otsego County, New York)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended December 31, 2023

NOTE2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of COIDA have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) as applied to government units. The
‘Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing COIDA’s accounting and financial reporting principles. Significant accounting policies
are:

Combined Financial Statement Presentation

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

ic resources measurement focus and
and expenses are recorded at the
iction takes place. Nonexchange

The financial statements of COIDA are reported using the et
the accrual basis of accounting. Revenu
time liabilities are incurred, regardless of
transactions, in which COIDA gives or rec
in exchange, include grants. Revenues fro
eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Financial Accounting
standards conflict with

vance for doubtful accounts No allowance for uncollectible
-sifice management believes that such an allowance is not

ans and mortgages are reviewed periodically by management to update the
allowance for uncollectible amounts. These provisions are estimated based on an analysis of the aging
of the receivable and any other factors known by management.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments,
purchased with a maturity of three months or less.

-14-



COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of Otsego County, New York)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended December 31, 2023

NOTE2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d.)

Capital Assets

COIDA uses the accounting policy of capitalizing all capital assets at cost in excess of $2,000 with an
estimated useful life in excess of one year. Depreciation of buildings and improvements are provided
for over the estimated useful life, ranging from ten to forty years of the respective assets, on a straight-
line basis.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amou
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the fin
revenues and expenses during the report period. Act

es management to make
es and disclosure of

Revenues and Expenses Classifications

jon-operating items in its financial
oviding services in connection
es include project program
t meeting this definition are

COIDA distinguishes operating revenues, and expenses fro
statements. Operating revenues and expenses
with COIDA’s principal on-going operatio
costs and related administration expenses.
reported as non-operating revenues and expense

’s operating €
and expense

Unearned Revenues

n grant monies are received prior to incurring
both recogmtlon criteria are met, or when COIDA

prepaid expenses
Income Taxes
COIDA is a quasi-governmental organization. COIDA is not subject to federal or state income taxes,

nor is it required to file federal and state income tax returns, therefore, no provisions for income taxes
are reflected in these financial statements.

-15-



COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of Otsego County, New York)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended December 31, 2023

NOTE?2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d.)

Net Position

Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

a. Invested in Capital Assets — Consists of capital assets including restzicted capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation.

b. Restricted — Consists of net assets with constraints on the use ei
creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other.
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

c. Unrestricted — All other net assets that do not meet the

“restricted.”

y (1) external groups such as
ments, or (2) laws through

ed in capital assets” or

Statement of Cash Flows

isiders cash to be alFunrestricted and
e of deposit with an original maturity

For purposes of the combined statement of cash flows, C
restricted cash accounts including demand accounts and ce
of generally three months or less.

Accounting Pronouncements

“Public-Public Partnerships and
Subscription- Based Information

COIDA has evaluated GASB Statement No. 94, Pu
Availability Payment Arrangements, GASB
Technology Arrangements; \

is no significant imp

Deferred Inflows/Ou f*of Resources

In addition to assets, the combined statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

-16-



COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of Otsego County, New York)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended December 31, 2023

NOTE2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d.)

Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources (Cont’d.)

In addition to liabilities, the combined statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a futur iod(s) and so will not be
recognized as in inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

Events Occurring After Reporting Date

COIDA has evaluated subsequent events through March the date the financial

statements were available to be issued.

NOTE3 CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT

At December 31, 2023, COIDA had two certificates of dep
5% and 5.25% and maturities are March 30, 2024 and Decem

NOTE4  BUSINESS PARKS

NOTE 5
Co e following at December 31:
Accumulated
Cost Depreciation  Book Value

Buildings $ 2,180,116 $ 813,835 $ 1,366,281
Improvements 222,518 215,369 7,149
Office equipment 149,805 148,207 1,598
Intangible right to uSe asset 9.528 2,666 6.862

Total depreciated/amortized capital assets 2,561,967 1,180,077 1,381,890
Land 1,229,912 - 1,229,912
Land improvements 935,603 - 935,603
ORYLDC ~ Round House Road 253,315 - 253,315

Capital assets, net $ 4,980,797 $ 1,180,077 $ 3.800,720

-17-



COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of Otsego County, New York)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended December 31, 2023

NOTES5 CAPITAL ASSETS (Cont’d.)

Depreciation and amortization expense amounted to $60,335 for the year ended December 31, 2023.

ORYLDC’s capital assets consisted of 79.41 acres of land on Round House Road with a cost of
$253,315 as of December 31, 2023.

NOTE6  WRIGHT NATIONAL SOCCER CAMPUS (CAMPUS)

COIDA acquired the Campus property in 2014 and has the follow as part of capital assets:
- $ 239,190

,, 1,560,810
1,800,000

Land - Ioxus, Inc. — 14.07 acres
Building — Ioxus, Inc.
Total

Land — Soccer fields — 33.74 acres 442,000

Building — Concession stand 78,000
Total 520.000
Total land and building $ 2,320,000

COIDA was a lessor in an annual operating lease agr
the former National Soccer Hall of Fame. The mo
for a total of $71,250 forthe year ended Decembe

he.building and land associated with
creased from $5,000 to $6,250 in April
;1’ 2023. The lease has been renewed for 2024.

COIDA holds a five-y
the soccer fields throug
2023 for facility maintenance,
opportuniti is propet

t with Oneonta.Y outh Soccer Association (OYSA) for the use of
25. COIDA paid $-0- during the year ended December 31,
i$ property are undecided. COIDA is looking for
“round venue.

following at December 31:

Interest Monthly 12/31/23

Borrower Rate Payment Maturity Principal

Oneonta Theater 4.0% $ 1,012 082020 $ 85,979

Foothills PAC 0.0% 1,667  06-2019 88,333
Subtotal 174,312
Less: Allowance for bad debts (174,312)

Total $ .

-18-



COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of Otsego County, New York)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended December 31, 2023

NOTE 8 SHORT-TERM LEASES

Lessor
COIDA was a lessor in a 12-month operating lease agreement for the industrial incubator building that
expired February 28, 2023. The monthly rent was $4,295. The lease was extended for an additional 6
months at a monthly rate of $4,553. COIDA received rental income under this lease in the amount of
$35,908 for the year ended December 31, 2023. This lease was not renewed,

es located at 139 Commerce
2024. The monthly rent is
20,000 for the year ended

COIDA is a lessor in a 12-month operating lease agreement for the pr
Road in the City of Oneonta, New York. The lease expires on
$5,000. COIDA received rental income under this lease in th
December 31, 2023.

See Note 6 for lease agreement for Ioxus building that ated on the NSHOF property.
Leasee
COIDA has a lease agreement for office space that expi

were $4,117 for 2022. This monthly amount consisted of $
sub-lease rent collected as indicated below.,. Total rent for 2023

. Deecember 31, 2022. Monthly payments
or COIDA’s rent and portions of the

Sublease of Office Space
COIDA has the following sublease agreemen

Total Rents
Number Received

Term of Months in 2023
06/01/18 — To Primy 12 $ 1,200
12 12,600
6 3,000
*
NOF
In 2022, th i GASB No. 87 — Leases and accordingly reports a lease lability. In

2022, the ID
December 31, 2

S-year agreement to lease office equipment. The unpaid balance at

-19-



COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of Otsego County, New York)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2023

NOTEY9 LEASE LIABILITY (Cont’d.)

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments for leased assets, together with the net
present value of the minimum lease payments as of December 31, 2023:

Yecar Ending Principal Interest
2024 $ 1,773 % 242
2025 170
2026 95
2027 20

Minimum lease payments — Leased assets 3 327

Less: Lease liability current

Lease liability — long-term

NOTE 10 OUTSTANDING CIVIC FACILITY REVENUE B

NOTE 11 OUTSTANDIN

d in its accounts, since its primary function is to arrange the financing
ties and the bond and note holders, and funds arising therefrom are
acting as fiscal agents. For providing this service, COIDA receives
"the borrowing companies. This administrative fee income is recognized
& of bonds and notes. Since its inception, COIDA has issued various bonds
similar arrangements.

and notes under these

-20-



COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of Otsego County, New York)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2023

NOTE 12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Cash and Cash Equivalents

State statutes govern COIDA’s investment policies. In addition, COIDA has its own written investment
policy. COIDA monies must be deposited in FDIC insured commercial banks or trust companies
located within New York State. The treasurer is authorized to use demand accounts and certificates of
deposit. Permissible investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury.and New York State or its
localities. '

Collateral is required for demand deposits and certificates of d
insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are ol
agencies and obligations of New York State and its municipalit

ot covered by federal deposit
to. the United States and its

COIDA had no uncollateralized cash as of December 3

Notes Receivable

in Otsego County. COIDA has
ppary rights to the property or by

Notes receivable consists of numerous notes with bu
collateralized its interest in these notes:

21-



COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of Otsego County, New York)

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Year Ended December 31, 2023

draft

ASSETS COIDA ORYLDC Total
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 994,559 $ - $ 994,559
Certificate of deposits 604,659 - 604,659
Accrued interest receivable 4,050 - 4,050
Rents receivable 6,250 - 6,250
Grants receivable 55,438 - 55,438
Prepaid expenses 2,095 - 2,095
Total current assets 1,667,051 - 1,667,051
Capital assets, net 3,547,405 253,315 3,800,720
Total assets 5,214,456 253,315 5,467,771

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 1,970 - 1,970
Accrued expense 6,000 - 6,000
Lease liability - Current 1,773 - 1,773
Security deposits 15,035 - 15,035

Total current liabilities 24,778 - 24,778

Long term liabilities:

Lease liability - Long term 5,089 - 5,089
Total long term liabilities 5,089 - 5,089
Total labilities 29,867 - 29,867

Net position:

Investment in unrestricted capital assets, net of debt 3,540,543 253,315 3,793,858
Unrestricted net assets 1,644,046 - 1,644,046
Total net position $ 5,184,589 $ 253,315 $ 5,437,904

See accompanying notes.
-22-



Operating revenues:
Program support

COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

(A Component Unit of Otsego County, New York)

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENIDTURES AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Year Ended December 31, 2023

Rental of real property
Administrative, PILOT, bond and loan application fees

Bad debt recovery

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Payroll taxes

Accounting fees

Professional fees - Economic development
Professional fees - Other
Marketing and promotion

Salaries and wages

Membership dues and subscriptions

Office expenses

Computer and equipment expenses

Telephone
Office rent

Travel, seminars and training

Rental expenses

Insurance
Utilities

Repairs and maintenance - Business park
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense

Other expenses

Bad debt

Total operating expenses

Net operating income

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Other interest income

Grant income

Grants expended

Total non-operating revenues

Net income

Net position - Beginning of year

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

See accompanying notes.

3.

COIDA ORYLDC Total
$ 275,000 $ - $ 275,000
143,958 - 143,958
487,182 - 487,182
11,667 - 11,667
917,807 - 917,807
17,408 - 17,408
26,470 - 26,470
133,061 - 133,061
1,863 - 1,863
28,572 - 28,572
180,932 - 180,932
5,486 - 5,486
5,193 - 5,193
12,719 - 12,719
595 - 595
49,400 - 49,400
4,498 - 4,498
1,287 - 1,287
34,214 - 34,214
5,375 - 5,375
5,732 - 5,732
58,631 - 58,631
1,704 - 1,704
195 - 195
3,593 - 3,593
576,928 - 576,928
340,879 - 340,879
17,801 - 17,801
75,607 - 75,607
(75,607) - (75,607)
17,801 - 17,801
358,680 - 358,680
4,825,909 253,315 5,079,224
$ 5,184,589 $ 253315 $ 5,437,904




COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
SCHEDULE OF OUTSTANDING SALE AND LEASE AGREEMENTS

Year Ended December 31, 2023

draft

Project Owner

Sales Tax Exemptions

Project Owner Address Purpose Issue Date Due Date State Local

Brewery Ommegang Acquisition and

County Hwy 33 construction of

Cooperstown, NY 13326 warehouse building(only) 2/25/2011 1/25/2026 -

Klugo Oneonta Acquisition, Demo

11849 East Corning Road and Renovation of

Corning, NY 14830 Building 2/1/2013 12/31/2028 -

Hillside Commons Oneonta

300 Plaza Drive Construction of

Vestal, NY 13851 Student Housing 10/1/2014 10/1/2030 -

Focus Ventures Acquisition and

84 Route 59, Suite 102 renovation of

Suffern, NY 10901 nursing home 9/1/2014 12/31/2040 -

Northern Eagle, LL.C Construction of

7 Railroad Avenue warehouse and office

Oneonta, NY 13820 building 12/18/2015 12/31/2026 -

Corning Property Management Co.

1 Riverfront Plaza Phase One

Corning, NY 14831 Expansion Project 12/20/2018 3/20/2035 -

Corning Property Management Co.

1 Riverfront Plaza Phase Two

Corning, NY 14831 Expansion Project 8/1/2021 12/31/2038 -

Springbrook Ford Block Building Acquisition and

Main Street Renovation for

Portlandville, NY 13834 Market Rate Housing 6/1/2022 12/31/2048 -

ZAED Properties Acquisition and

6106 State Highway 28 Renovation for

Fly Creek, NY 13337 Market Rate Housing 11/172022 12/31/2038 -

Centrome d/b/a Advanced Biotech  Acquistion and

10 Taft Road renovation of

Towtowa, New Jersey manufacturing plant 9/1/2021 12/31/2038 335,942 335,942
$ 335942 $ 335,942

See auditors’ report.

24.-




Tax Exemptions

Real Property Tax Total Payment in Lieu of Taxes
County Local School Exemptions County Local School Total

21,128 19,191 121,676 161,995 20,256 18,399 116,657 155,312
3,101 12,772 19,832 35,705 2,791 10,218 17,849 30,858
55,818 185,017 356,983 597.818 25,727 74,844 133,315 233,886
48,409 10,253 227,476 286,138 13,590 2,878 63,864 80,332
6,397 6,289 45,965 58,651 4,727 4,402 33,969 43,098
9,359 31,021 61,159 101,539 3,196 27,167 53,560 83,923
2,743 462 12,888 16,093 1,250 3,624 4,897 9,771
4,374 3,340 29,841 37,555 4,374 3,340 29,841 37,555

$ 151,329 $ 268,345 $ 875820 $1,295494 $ 75911 $§ 144872 $ 453952 § 674,735




COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SCHEDULE OF FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE) JOBS CREATED AND RETAINED

draft

Year Ended December 31, 2023

# of FTE Employees
at Project Location Original Estimate of
before IDA Status Jobs to be Created
Project Owner:
Focus Ventures 132 25
Hillside Commons 3 3
Brewery Ommegang 28 10
Northern Eagle 35 4
Klugo Oneonta, LLC - 2
Corning Property Management Co, 175 -
ZAED Properties - -
Ford Block, LLC - -
Centrome d/b/a Advanced Biotech - 6
373 50

See auditors' report.
25-



Original Estimate of # of Current FTE # of FTE Jobs Created # of FTE Jobs Retained

Jobs to be Retained Employees During Fiscal Year During Fiscal Year
132 137 - 132
3 - - -
28 47 - 28
35 12 - 12
175 177 - 175
- 4 4 -

33 377 __ 4 %47



4 Associate Drive Deborah L. Mostert, CPA

Oneonta, New York 13820 Anthony T. Manzanero, CPA
Phone: (607) 432-8700 Mary E. Manzanero, CPA
Fax: (607) 432-5122 MOSTERT, MANZANERO & SCOTT, LLP David E. Brownell, CPA
WWW.MMmscpas.com Certified Public Accountants Jason L. Waite, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
County of Otsego Industrial Development Agency
Oneonta, New York

We have audited in accordance with the auditing stan
America and the standards applicable to financial ay
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, tl
Industrial Development Agency (“COIDA”) which comprls
statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in net position
then ended December 31, 2023, and the r at;ed notes to the fin
report thereon dated March , 2024. .

United States of
ing” Standards

y of Otsego
ifements of net position and the related
nd cash flows as of and for the year
icial statements, and have issued our

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Ré‘porﬁh‘

onsidered COIDA’s internal control
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
inions on the financial statements, but not for the
OIDA’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
ternal control.

over financial reportmg
the circumstances for

design or operation of a control does not allow
course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
cy, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a m 58, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with

governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

MEMBERS: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
New York State Society of Certified Public Accountants, National Conference of CPA Practitioners
26-



Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether COIDA’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing ernal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 1ess of COIDA’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part ‘audi in accordance with

Government Auditing Standards in considering COIDA’s,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose;

A

Motk Manmanne v Jestt, H4F
14

Oneonta, New York
March , 2024

27-



4 Associate Drive Deborah L. Mostert, CPA

Oneonta, New York 13820 Anthony T. Manzanero, CPA
Phone: (607) 432-8700 Mary E. Manzanero, CPA
Fax: (607) 432-5122 MOSTERT, MANZANERO & SCOTT, LLP David E. Brownell, CPA
WWW.mmscpas.com Certified Public Accountants Jason L. Waite, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH INVESTMENT GUIDELINES FOR PUBLIC AUTHORITIES

Board of Directors
County of Otsego Industrial Development Agency
Oneonta, New York

We have examined the County of Otsego Industrial Develop
the New York State Comptroller’s Investment Guidelines f
New York State Public Authorities Law (collectively,
December 31, 2023. Management of COIDA is resp
requirements. Our responsibility is to express an op
requirements based on our examination.

Those standards require that we plan and perform t
whether COIDA complied, in all material respects; wi requirements referenced above. An
i at whether COIDA complied with the
specified requirements. >“nhature, timi tent of the procedures selected depend on our
judgment, including an risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the ev

our opinion.

In our opinion; € with all erial respects, with the aforementioned requirement,

others within COID;

should not be used b ne other than these specified parties.

MWiokat, Tf’“s“}a,,.m\,}an)@;\,zz ¥ Soort £4FP
Oneonta, New York
March , 2024

MEMBERS: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
New York State Society of Certified Public Accountants, National Conference of CPA Practitioners
228-



COUNTY OF OTSEGO
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMEN

REPORT TO THE BOARD .



4 Associate Drive
Oneonta, New York 13820
Phone: (607) 432-8700
Fax: (607) 432-5122
WWW.mmscpas.com

Board of Directors
County of Otsego Industrial Development Agency
Oneonta, New York

Dear Members of the Board:

We are pleased to present the results of our audit of thefinancial
Industrial Development Agency (“COIDA”) for the yea

Our plan for this year’s audit included a commitment to
expectations. Our approach to the audit was designed to combi
COIDA’s industry and current emerging go

This report to the Board of Directors summarizes
issued, and various observations related to COIDA
document also reviews the Board of Directors communications.
as current accounting issues that will affect COIDA.

432-8700.

MOSTERT, MANZANERO & SCOTT, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

March , 2024

rnmental issues.

it process, the sc
¢ial positio

Sincerely,

MEMBERS: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants,

statements of
ded December 31, 2023,

Deborah L. Mostert, CPA
Anthony T. Manzanero, CPA
Mary E. Manzanero, CPA
David E. Brownell, CPA
Jason L. Waite, CPA

zand deliver on management’s
istorical perspective with a focus on

four engagement, the reports
and results of operations. The
y our professional standards, as well

Mot Mannaniro v Joatt, 24P

Mostert, Manzanero & Scott, LLP

New York State Society of Certified Public Accountants, National Conference of CPA Practitioners



CONTENTS

Summary of What We Agreed To Do
Required Communications

Management Letter




SUMMARY OF WHAT WE AGREED TO DO

Our Approach

As communicated to the Board of Directors and management in our planning |
our audit plan represented an approach responsive to the assessment of risl
designed our audit to: ‘

er dated December 1, 2023,
‘QIDA. Specifically, we

> mber 31, 2023.

>

» Issue an Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal ¢
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial State
Auditing Standards.

“ompliance
Government

» Issue an Independent Auditors’ Report o

Areas of Audit Emphasis

» Capital assets and held for development and sale.

There were no changes to our planned approach or areas of audit emphasis.




REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

Board of Directors
County of Otsego Industrial Development Agency
Oneonta, New York

rial* Development Agency
hereon dated March , 2024.
onsibilities under generally
cope and timing of our
2023. Professional
ur audit.

We have audited the financial statements of the County of Otsego
(“COIDA”) for the year ended December 31, 2023 and have issued our
Professional standards require that we provide you with information abp to
accepted auditing standards, as well as certain information related to the plan

audit. We have communicated such information in our letter t , :
standards also require that we communicate to you the following information relate

Significant Audit Matters

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

’ five because of their significance to the financial
s affecting them may differ significantly from those

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.




Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management has corrected all such misstatements. Attached is a listing of misstatements detected as a result
of audit procedures that were corrected by management.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial acg
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant
auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements

ng, reporting, or auditing

the financial statements, or the
during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from mana i the management
representation letter dated March | 2024. ‘

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accou

In some cases, management may decide to
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinio
an accounting principle to COIDA’s financial st
that may be expressed on those statements, our ]

nsultation involves application of
vof the type of auditor’s opinion

information for consis h management’s responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSL



We were engaged to report on supplemental information on Pages 24 — 26 which accompany the financial
statements but are not RSI, but is supplemental information required by the Office of the New York State
Comptroller. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and
evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information
complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of
preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation
to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Dlrect
Otsego Industrial Development Agency and is not intended to be, ant
than these specified parties.

management of the County of
10t be, used by anyone other

i sloat, 7 czm}a niro ¥ eart 4P

Oneonta, New York
March , 2024



MANAGEMENT LETTER

County of Otsego Industrial Development Agency
Oneonta, New York

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the
Development Agency (“COIDA”) as of and for the year ended Decemb
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Americ
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for de

nty of Otsego Industrial
, 2023, in accordance with
onsidered COIDA’s internal
ur audit procedures that are

, Or combmatlon of deficiencies, in
m1sstatement of COIDA’s financial
si8.

designed to identify all deficiencies in interna ight be.material weakness. vaen these

limitations during our audit we did not identify a

#

This communication is int
of the County of Otsego Industr
anyone other thaw thi

Mkt Mannanine ¥ Seott 4P
d

Oneonta, New
March , 2024




March 28, 2024

Mostert, Manzanero & Scott, LLP
4 Associate Drive
Oneonta, NY 13820

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the
County of Otsego Industrial Development Agency (“COIDA’) which comprise the combined statement
of net position as of December 31, 2023 and the related combined statements of revenues, expenditures
and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended, and the disclosures (collectively, the
“financial statements”), for the purpose of expressing opinions as to whether the financial statements are
presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting
information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a
reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or
misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount could be considered
material as a result of qualitative factors.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of March 28, 2024, the following representations
made to you during your audit.

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated
December 1, 2023, including our responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP and for preparation of the supplementary
information in accordance with the applicable criteria.

2. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. GAAP and
include all properly classified funds and other financial information of the primary government and
all component units required by generally accepted accounting principles to be included in the
financial reporting entity.

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

4, We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control to prevent and detect fraud.

189 Male Swrest, Suite 500, Oneents, MY 13830 LesagaldW.com EOT.2ET AN



Mostert, Manzanero & Scott, LLP
March 28, 2024
Page 2

10.

The methods, significant assumptions, and data used in making accounting estimates and their
related disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition, measurement, or disclosure that is
reasonable in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expenditures/expenses, loans,
transfers, leasing agreements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related
parties have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Adjustments or disclosures have been made for all events, including instances of noncompliance,
subsequent to the date of the financial statements that would require adjustment to or disclosure in
the financial statements or in the schedule of findings and responses.

The effects of uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate to
the financial statements as a whole. We have approved and entered the attached adjusting journal
entries.

The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments have been accounted
for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which COIDA is contingently liable, if any, have been
properly recorded or disclosed.

Information Provided

11.

12.

13.

We have provided you with:

a. Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant o the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, such as records, (including information obtained from
outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers), documentation, and other matters and all audit or
relevant monitoring reports, if any, received from funding sources.

Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

¢. Unrestricted access to persons within COIDA from whom you determined it necessary to
obtain audit evidence.

d. Minutes of the meetings of COIDA or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which
minutes have not yet been prepared.

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may
be materially misstated as a result of fraud.



Mostert, Manzanero & Scott, LLP
March 28, 2024
Page 3

4.

15.

16.

17.

18.

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects COIDA and involves:

a. Management;
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting COIDA’s financial
statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators, or others.

We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or waste or abuse, whose effects should be
considered when preparing financial statements.

We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, or assessments whose
effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the names of COIDA’s related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions, including any side agreements.

Government - Specific

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or
deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

COIDA has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, or net position.

We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies related to
the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been implemented.

We have identified to you any investigations or legal proceedings that have been initiated with
respect to the period under audit.

We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.
We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts, and legal and

contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.

We have appropriately disclosed all information for conduit debt obligations in accordance with
GASBS No. 91.



Mostert, Manzanero & Scott, LLP
March 28, 2024
Page 4

26.

27.

28.

29,

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations (including
those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of contracts and grant
agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose effects should be considered
for disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, or for
reporting on noncompliance.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances of identified and suspected fraud and
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that we
believe have a material effect on the financial statements.

COIDA has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect
on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

COIDA has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such
assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral, except as noted.

As part of your audit, you assisted with the preparation of the financial statements and disclosures.
We acknowledge our responsibility as it relates to those nonaudit services, including that we
assume all management responsibilities; oversee the services by designating an individual,
preferably within senior management, who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience;
evaluate the adequacy and results of the services performed; and accept responsibility for the results
of the services. We have reviewed, approved and accepted responsibility for those financial
statements and disclosures.

Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded.

There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations provisions
of contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits and any related debt covenants, where effects
should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for recording a loss
contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance.

The financial statements include all component units, appropriately present majority equity interests
in legally separate organizations and joint ventures with an equity interest, and properly disclose all
other joint ventures and other related organizations.

The financial statements include all fiduciary activities required by GASBS No. 84, as amended.

The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities in accordance with GASB No. 34,
as amended.

All funds that meet the quantitative criterial in GASBS Nos. 34 and 37 for presentation as major are
identified and presented as such and all other funds that are presented as major are particularly
important to financial statemen users.

Components of net position (net investment in capital assets, restricted; and unrestricted) are
property classified and, if applicable, approved.



Mostert, Manzanero & Scott, LLP
March 28, 2024
Page 5

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

45.

46.

47.

Investments, derivative instrument transactions, and land and other real estate held by endowments
are properly valued.

Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the
statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in net position, and allocations have been made
on a reasonable basis.

Revenues are appropriately classified in the statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in
net positon within operating revenues, non-operating revenues, contributions to term or permanent
endowments, or contributions to permanent fund principal.

Deposits and investment securities and derivative instruments are properly classified as to risk and
are properly disclosed.

Interfund, internal and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and
reported.

Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized, reported and
if applicable, depreciated.

We have appropriately disclosed COIDA’s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted and
unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted net position is available and have determined that net position is properly recognized
under the policy.

We are following our established accounting policy regarding which resources are considered to be
spent first for expenditures for which more than one resource classification is available. That
policy determines the net position classifications for financial reporting purposes.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI). The RSI is
measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of measurement and
presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period. We have disclosed to you any
significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the RSL

With respect to the supplementary information which an in-relation-to opinion is issued:

a. We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the supplemental information in the
financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP and we believe the supplementary
information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with U.S.
GAAP. The methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information
have not changed from those used in the prior period and we have disclosed to you any
significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the
supplementary information.



Mostert, Manzanero & Scott, LLP
March 28, 2024

Page 6

If the supplementary information is not presented with the audited financial statements, we
will make the audited financial statements readily available to intended users of the
supplementary information no later than the date we issue the supplementary information and
the auditors’ report thereon.

Sincerely yours,

Jody Zakrevsky, CEO



98°LTL'e9) § 98L2i'E9L ¢
SI'80Z'¢E ¢ S480Z'¢C $
BLZPLLE uofietoaidaq 0oL L2ZZS 8jnpayss o} uogealdap jsnipe o}
96'ggy'L Bpig - oaudag wiNooY 0O00ZLL s[npayos o} uoheiosidap isnipe o}

18°188'c2 dinb3 so0 -oaudsg wnooy 0000SL L s|npayos o} uoneicasdsp isnipe o)

¥68'9.€'6 {ajeqnouj - deQ wnooy 0000SEL ainpayos o uoijeaidap isnipe o} €-EZ0ZSWN AUz [Buinor  gZ0Z/LEZL
LOOLLY $ 19701 $
L9019 ajgeded sjunosoy pOODOOY feek Juaimo isnipe 0}
00°00L'L s|qefed sjunoday 0000009 Jeak yeimo jsnipe o3

L9019 JBy0 '‘Buusswibug 'Buninsu0:ses4 (RUOISSIOI] £150225 ie3A Juanno jsnipe o}

00°00L'L Bununodoy:sas 4 jeuoiSsSsIoid 2150225 Jesh yuauno isnipe o} Z-SZOCSINN Aju3 jeummor  £Z0Z/LE/2)
19°08L°L $ 190y $
19019 Jaylo ‘Buyesuibug '‘BuninsuoD:ses [BUOISSSIONL £1S0Z2S upne seal soud o} ysnipe 0}
00°00L°t Bununoooy:saad [BUOISSBI0Id 2150226 upne Jeak toud oy isnipe o}

19019 siqeled siunoooY 0000009 upne jeak soud o} isnipe o}

000011 siqefed siunoaoy 0000008 lipne jeak Joud o} isnlpe o) L-EZ0ZSWW  Anugjeuinor  ZZ0Z/LefZ1

1pain Hgeq Juno2oy uondiosag/owsiy w wnN adAyg ajeqg
e uonoesuesj






COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
OTSEGO COUNTY CAPITAL RESOURCE CORPORATION
ONEONTA RAILYARDS LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
February 22, 2024

ANNUAL MEETING MINUTES

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman, Cheryl Robinson, called to order the Annual meeting of COIDA/OCCRC at 8:02am at the
Otsego Now offices at 189 Main Street in Oneonta, NY. Meaghan Marino conducted roll call and
determined there was a quorum. Voting members present included:

Cheryl Robinson David Rowley

Jeffrey Lord Tom Armao

Craig Gelbsman (v) * Patricia Kennedy

Andrew Marietta James Seward (v)
Absent Board Member(s):

Also, in attendance:

STAFF _

Jody Zakrevsky, CEO

Meaghan Marino, Dir. Of Finance & Administration
Nasim Vargha, Administrative Assistant

Kurt Schulte, Agency Counsel (v)

(v) — virtual and did not count toward the voting quorum
* . arrived after start of meeting

CHAIRMAN'’S REMARKS

Chairman, C. Robinson, welcomed fellow board members and staff and moved immediately into the agenda.

COMMITTEE/BOARD MEETING REQUIREMENTS

The board discussed the in-person quorum requirements for meetings and how quorum for committee
meetings would be handled moving forward. They also discussed changes in how meetings would be

streamed and recorded.



CONFIRMATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS FOR IDA/CRC/LDC

¢ Confirmation of Agency Board Meeting Schedule

4™ Thursday of every month, at 8:00am
e Election of Officers of COIDA and OCCRC

Chair: Cheryl Robinson

Vice Chair: David Rowley

Treasurer: Jeffrey Lord

Secretary: T. Armao

e Appointment of Chief Operating Officer and Agency Staff
Jody Zakrevsky, Chief Executive Officer

Meaghan Marino, Director of Finance and Administration
Nasim Vargha, Administrative Assistant

e Appointment of Auditing Firm for Preparation of Financial Statements

Mostert, Manzanero, & Scott, LLP.

e Appointment of Agency Counsel

Kurt D. Schulte, Esq.

e Appointment of Bond Counsel to the Agency

Hodgson Russ, LLP.



Appointment of Bank of the Agency and Accounts
Community Bank, NA — Checking Account
Community Bank, NA — CD Account
Community Bank, NA - MMDA
Community Bank, NA — Line of Credit
NBT Bank - MMDA

Approval and Confirmation of Agency Policies
Uniform Tax Exemption Policy
Investment Policy
Procurement Policy
Public Authority Accountability Act Policies

Appointment of Contract Officer

Jody Zakrevsky, Chief Operating Officer

Appointment of Investment Officer

Jeffrey Lord, Treasurer

Audit & Finance Committee
Chair: Jeffrey Lord
Vice Chair: Patricia Kennedy

Members: Andrew Marietta, Craig Gelbsman

Project Oversight Committee
Chair: Tom Armao
Vice Chair: James Seward

Members: Andrew Marietta, Patricia Kennedy

Governance Committee

Chair; Andrew Marietta



Vice Chair: David Rowley

Members: Tom Armao, Cheryl Robinson

e Designation of Newspaper
The Daily Star

D. Rowley made a motion to approve all nominations. The motion was seconded by P. Kennedy and
approved by the remaining board members.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to discuss, J. Lord made a motion to adjourn the COIDA/OCCRC/LDC
Annual Meeting at 8:24am.

UPCOMING MEETING SCHEDULE

e COIDA/OCCRC Board Meeting — March 28®, 2024 at 8:00am.

*All meetings are held at the Otsego Now offices at 189 Main Street, Oneonta. NY. 13820



COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
FEBRUARY 22"P, 2024

MEETING MINUTES

CALL TO ORDER

Chair, C. Robinson, called to order the meeting of COIDA at 8:24 am. M. Marino conducted roll call and
determined there was a quorum. Voting members present included:

Cheryl Robinson

Tom Armao | '

Patricia Kennedy Craig, Gclbsman (v) el

Andrew Marietta J ames Seward v)
Absent Board Member(s):

Also, in attendance: k. E

Nasim Vargha Administrative Assmtant
Kurt Schulte, Agcncy Cmmsel (v) =

STAFF b TR
Jody Zakrevsky, CEO G
Meaghan Marino, Director of Fma:nce and Admunstratlon

MEETING MINUTES

C. Robinson presented the meeting minutes from the December 28", 2023 COIDA board meeting. She
also presented the January 11 and February 8" Audit & Finance Committee meeting minutes, the
January 11" and February 8 Project Committee minutes and the January 11™ Governance Committee
minutes. Board members were given a copy of the minutes prior to the meeting for review.

T. Armao made a motion to approve the meeting minutes. The motion was seconded by D. Rowley and
was approved by the remaining members present.



COMMITTEE REPORTS

% Audit & Finance — The Audit & Finance Committee meeting was held on February 8%, 2024. J.
Lord, Chair of the Committee, referred board members to the meeting minutes that they received
the day before.

<+ Governance Committee — The Governance Committee meeting was held on January 11, 2024.
The Governance Committee meets quarterly, and the next meeting will take place on April 11%,
2024.

% Projects Committee — The Projects Committee meeting was held on February 8*, 2024. T. Armao
referred board members to the draft meeting minutes that they recelved the day before. J.

Zakrevsky gave a brief report of his recent activities.

BILLS & COMMUNICATIONS

J. Lord reviewed the bills and communications. J. Zak:revsky noted that the Railroad Management
Company bill was regarding a water line in the Oneonta Raﬂyards

There was no New/ Unﬁmshed Busmess for th1s meetmg‘

RESOLUTIONS

There wereno Reselutlonsfor this meeting.

PUBLIC COMMENT

There were no Pubhc Comments for this meeting.

ADJOURNMENT

T. Armao made a motion to adjourn the meeting of the IDA board at 8:37am.

UPCOMING MEETING SCHEDULE

e COIDA/OCCRC Audit & Finance Committee Meeting / Projects Committee Meeting - March
14", 2024

e COIDA/OCCRC Board Meeting — March 28™, 2024



*All meetings are held at the Otsego Now offices at 189 Main Street, Oneonta. NY. 13820, unless
otherwise specified.







COIDA EXPENSES
2/22/24 - 3/27/2024

Vendor Amount Due Due Date Reimbursable? Notes
ISD $339.98 annual contract for gotomyPC
NYSEDC $6,000.00 2024 annual meeting - hall of fame welcome reception
Spectrum $304.95 31-Mar otsego now wifi and voice
COIDA TOTAL | $6,644.93
COIDA PAID EXPENSES
2/22/24-3/27/24
Vendor Amount Date Paid Notes
Spectrum $304.95 29-Feb otsego now wifi and voice
BST $1,350.00 18-Mar march accounting fees
Ed & Ed $42.06 18-Mar copies/prints
Edie Halstead $425.00 18-Mar nov/dec office cleaning
First Bankcard $84.34 18-Mar binders, extension cords, gotomeeting monthly subscription, interest
Great America $174.83 18-Mar copier agreement and insurance
Hummel's $146.97 18-Mar toilet paper, paper towels, dish soap
HUNT Engineers $3,147.46 18-Mar engineering fees for RS
ISD $89.50 18-Mar monthly microsoft email exchange
ISD $330.00 18-Mar setting up printing on nasim's computer
NYSEG HQ $444.20 18-Mar 189 main st utilities
NYSEG PF $147.68 18-Mar PF street lighting
Paperkite $250.00 18-Mar website maintenance
Philadelphia Insurance $4,934.70 18-Mar non profit umbrella and non profit package
Otsego Telephone $500.00 18-Mar 4 mulitine phones and voicemail system
Spectrum $44.99 18-Mar cade phones







COIDA DEPOSITS
2/22/24 - 3/27/2024

Vendor Amount Date of Deposit Notes

Apple Converting $5,000 18-Mar march rent

ARC $55,438.49 21-Feb ARC grant reimbursement for Innovation Center
CADE $1,100.00 1-Mar march rent
Foothills $1,666.67 18-Mar march loan repayment
IOXUS $6,250.00 18-Mar february rent
Southern Tier 8 $200 1-Mar march rent
TOTAL $69,655.16|







Zg Jo | obed

/SH0daI-pUB-SIUBWINIOP/2I000-PUB-EPI-8Y1-NogR/ALIcO mouoBesio//sdiy £7THN 9yl epinoid pue Jyd Jo B-pzgz uonoes Aq paumnbal se ‘Loded Jusluainsesw s,AUoLyIny syl yoeRy 01
WIN oN ¢pouad Bujuodas au; Buunp psidope pue pasiael Usaq JUSLISIE]S UOISSIW SAjOUINY 8y} SeH ‘6
JUOISSIL/OI000-pUB-BPI-8YI-IN0ge/Wod mouobasioyisdpy SBA £ BUSTaM 118U} O} JUBLLSIL]S LOISSIL 118y} paisod AjLoyiny ayj seH ‘8
YIN SBA ¢ Swuswsaibe yoeg melD saey Auoyiny sy} seo ‘L
oN ¢Aouabe Jusuiuisaob Jayjoue Ag peAoiduus osie yels Aloyiny Aue aly ‘g
/s1i0da.-pUB-SIUSLINTOP/2I000-PUR-BPI-8LINOGRALCO MoUuoBes)o//:sdiy SOA ¢ Heys uonezjuebio ue aaey Ajuoyiny ey} ssoQ G
VN ON £Aouiny ey} 0} SedlAIes Jipne-uou apiaoid ojipne Juaspuedapul sy seoQ £
&vd Jo ($)208z uonoss
V/IN saA | uim eouepioooe ut sieak ey ise] ayy ul pebueyd wuy Jipne Juspusdapul ey} Joj Jauned lipne pes;j oy} SeH '
¢S|0JU0D jBussiUl
/sHOdai-pUe-SIUSLINIOR/DI000-pUE-.PI-ayl-Inoge W0 MouoBas)o//:sduy S3A | SH jo SSeudAOSYe By} Jo JusSSesse ue asedald AQuUoyiny syl PIP “Tvd 10 {(6)008Z uonoas Ag pasinbai sy 'z
i IVd 10 008Z uonoes Aq psaiinbal se
/810da.-pUB-SIUBLINIOP/DI030-PUE-BPI-8UINOGE /0 Mou0Bas)o//:sdiy SOA pouad Buniodal sy} Joj sjustuysijdwioooe pue suonesado uo Hodal jenuue sy peiedeid ALoyiny syl sey 1
{eiqeayiddy s dn asuodsay uonssny
JEY 1131 i B9UBUIDAD

Y/N :81e(] payie) ‘Buipu3 1e8 A [BOS!
GILLINGNSNA eryms £Z0Z/1E/2) ‘Dulpu3 JesA [eosid
¥202/S2/E0 ‘Bjeq umy AousBy yuswidojaaa( jeuisnpuy Auno oBesiO J0j Lodey |enuuy

LR L LE




Z¢ Jo Z ebed

/SHOUB.I-PUB-SJLUBWINDOP/OI0D0-PUB-BPI-BU-INOGE L0 MOU0BSS]o//: sAny SBA IND 10 (1128 uoiosg o) Buipionde (431 N)AoHo4 uopdwexsy xe | wuojiun e pejdope pieoq sy seH L
ON iseaho|dws jje Bujulanoh Aoyjod uopesusdiiod feucyippe/ieuoiipuocd & pajdope pieoq ay) seH 9}
V/IN SOA £ SI0BILOD uoiun 10 saA0|dwe yim souepIodoe Ul apew Auoyiny eyl Aq pled uopesusdwod sep G}
V/IN SOA ¢ pa1ejdwod pieoq sy} Jo uolenieAs aoueullouad 8 SEA 71
4Vd 10 (€£)S28Z UORo8S Uiim aoueploose
VIN SOA Ul SWLIOY 8INSO[OSIP [BIDUBLY JUANS 0} peJinbal gels pue ‘sieoyjo ‘siequiew pieog s AjLoyiny ey} ey e}
£Vd 40 (G)yZ8e UoHOaS Ulim aoueploode
vIN SOA Ut J§B1S PUB SIBqUSW pJeoq O} 1IPaJd Jo uoisusixe sy Bupiqiyold Aoyod e pajdope pieog sy) SeH 2L
VIN SOA slaquisiy pleog Jo uoHedyiLWSpU| pue esueje(
VYIN SOA UON08)0Id 19MOIGBISIIM
YIN S8A a0UBpUB)Y PUB Bull}
Y/IN SOA uopesuadwo) pue Alejeg
&IVd 30 (1)28z uonoes wim soueplosoe ul Buimo|jof eyl Joj sepijod pejdope pieog ay) sep 1
IVd 0
V/IN seA | (1)pzgz uonoes yum edsueplodde up juswebeuew pue 03D oY) Jo 1YBISISA0 108ip 81nNdexs pleog 8y} seog 01
YIN sBA | ¢Sjosuod juswebeuew pue [elouBuY JO uoneluswWRldWw! SALIOYINY BY) JOJILOW PUB MBIABI pJeog 8y} s8oQ ‘6
/SHOdBI-PUB-SJUBLLINIOP/OI000-PUE-BRI-8UI-NOGEALCY MouoBas]o//sdny SBA (4IE1S pPUB SIequisl pieogd Joj SOIUI8 JO 8poo B pejdope pieog eyl seH '8
/suodal-pue-sjUBLINOOP/OJOD0-PUB-EPI-BUI-INOGRALIY MOoU0B8s)o//:sdny $OA £HE]S pue slaquiswi pJeog O} 8|qEjiBAR WaY) SPELW pue SmejAq peldope pieog oy seH )
eak
1sBunesll/oI000-puB-EPI-8U}-INOGEALIOD MouoDes)o//sdny 1eosy peseac eyl Buunp piey sBupeswl 8sRILILLICD PUB PIEOE BU] JO SBINUIL 8y} O Yuil TN © 8pIAvld ]
v/IN SBA $IVd 10 (2)5282 uonoeg 1o sjuswelnbal souspuedapu; sy jeaw pieog ey} jo Ajuolew ey) seoq ‘G
: (peysijqeise sjep ayj pue
JseeniwLLIoo/sBuleaw/01000-pUe-BPI-8y}-Jhogewod mouobes)o/:sdny SeNIWWIOD By} jo aueu ey} Buipnjoul) punoj 8g UBD SSBRILILLIOD PJBOE JO ISH| B 8Jaym MUl THN & 8pIAold B
VIN SBA $IVd 40 (8)pZ8Z UONOSS Yiim SOUBDIODDE U SBJJWIWIOY 8oUeUl B pays)igelse pieog au) seH '€
VIN SBA ¢ IVd 40 (P}P28Z UOROBS UM BOUBPIODDE Uj 8SRILULLOD JIPNY UE pays|igelse pieog ey seH Z
/N SBA LIV 10 (2)pZ82 Uoio8S UM 90UBPIOI0. Ul BSYJILLLIOY) SOUBLIBAOS B Paysiiqelse pieog sy} seH ‘L
{aiqeonddy 3 1an asuodsay uopsand

UBUIDAD

V/N -8jeq payiied £202/18/z) ‘Buipu3 JesA jeosldy
JaLLINGNSNN smes
f LAV ST AN 8jeq uny foueby Juswdoleas( jeuisnpu; Ajunon obaes)O 10} Lodey jenuuy

LassAcy BonEWLcEH Dunaiodasl SenIo




Z¢ jo ¢ abed

V/N @jeQ payiued

Q3LLINEGNSNN
¥coe/se/en

snjeig
1R Uny

ON OIOO-X3 aweN asublsag
¢ UORISO JusliliioAnos (eddjuniy
pajujoddy Jo pojoajg ue ploH osie ioaubisag e
saA | oeubisaqgusqwal pieog sy} ssoqg pajuioddy Jaquiapy pieog ayj seH
£ UOT}ISO JUSLULLIBAOS) 9}elS
poajujoddy 10 pajosid ue pjoH osie
oN | esuBbisagequisiy pieog ey sso( apiL
P28z uondag jo juswaiinbay
SBA Buguses) yim payjdwion Ajiouiny jo ainses)d aje( uonelidxy wiay
¢hing Aeionpld
jo juswoebpajmounoy ayj peublg
SBA ssubjsa(uiequiely pieog 8y) sey ¥10e/2/L 8jeq Hejg wiay
YIN lojeuag Aq psuniyuon Aq pajeubisaq sieyn ‘solk i
[e007] Ag pajujoddy ON pieog ayj Jo Jieyd
2007 Ag pejeunuon Breio ‘uewisgien) aweN
OIPYO-X3 aweN asubisag
$UORISOd juauiliaAos fedidjuny
. pejujoddy 10 pajosig ue pjoH osje coaubiseg e
oN | oaubisagisquap pieog ey} seoQ pajutoddy jaquiepy pleog oy} seH
¢ UOIISO JUSWILLIBAOD) 9}B}S
pajujoddy 10 pajoaslg ue pjoH osje
ON saublsaqiaquisiy pieog oy} sao(] DT
¢ ¥Z8Z uonsag jo Juswaiinbay
SOA Buured ] yyum paijdwod Aoyiny Jo aINSEs|d ajeq uopendxz uuaj
¢Aing Aiepnpiy
jo juswuabpajmounioy ey paubls
SBA saubisaegisquieiy preog oy seH £102/12/6 8jeq yejs wisy
ON Jajeuesg Aq pauliyuod Aq pajeuBisa( iey) ‘sak §i
2007 Ag peajuioddy ON pleog ays jo Jeyo
18907 Ag pojeuluioN sewoy| ‘oeuiny aweN
BUMSTT 310158110 Jo pieoy

MLEEFCIER,

£202/1£/21 Buipuz jes A 1eostd

Aoueby juswidoaaac lsusnput Alunos o8as)O Joj Loday fenuuy




Z¢ Jo v obed

opWO-Xa

awepN saubisaq

L UORISOd juswiuleacs ediojunyy
pejuioddy 1o pajoalg ue pjoy osje

iasubiseg e

oN | osuBiseguequisyy pieog ayj seoQ pajuloddy toquepy pieog oy} sep
¢ UOTHISO JUBUWILLIBADSD) ajElS
pajutoddy 10 pajss|3 ue pjoH osje
oN asaubisaqiaquep pieog sy} seoQ aptL
LyeZ8z uopdes jo juswalinbay
SOA Bugues] ym paydwon Ajoyiny jo ainses|d aje( uopeadxzy w9}
¢Aing Kiejonpid
10 JusweBpajmowoy ay3 peublg
S8A saubiseg/ioquisiy pieog ay sey 110¢2/12/6 ajeq pelg wis )
ON ojeuag Ag pauniyuo) Aq pajeuBiseq seys) ‘sak j|
B0 Ag pejuioddy ON pieog ayj Jo Jteyn
flzelon] Ag pejeujwioN epued ‘Apauusi sweN
OIPIO-XI aweN asubisag
LUORISO4 Jusiulonos feddiuny
pajutoddy Jo pajooelg ue ployH osie iooubiseg e
oN | esubiseguequiep pieog ay) seod pajuloddy tequiapy pieog syj sey
ZUONISO4 JUSLUILLIDAOD) 9B}
pajujoddy Jo pajosjg ue pjoH osje
oN | oaubisequequep pieod ay) seo( apIL
¥Z8z uojdeg Jo yuswalinbay
SBA Buurel ], yum pejdwion £202/S1/90 8jeq uonelidx3y uoy
¢Aing Aiejonpldy
jo uswabpemouoy oyy paubis
SOA ssubisegiioquisly pleog ayj sey L1102/ 2/6 8jeQg Helg ulsl
ON iajeuss Aq pawaguo) Aq pajeubisaq ey ‘seh ji
18907 Ag pajujoddy ON pieod 8y Jo JBYD
1800 Ag pejeunuoN yer sukop sweN

VIN ‘8je( pejiue)d
Q3LLINGNSNN snels
$202/52/€0 @jeQ uny

£202/1¢/2) Bupu] Jea jeosid

fousBy eludojpasq jeusnpul Ajunos oBesi( 1o} Hodsy enuuy

T %:T\txw 4 ‘ '

12 Ve




Z¢ J0 g ebed

oWo-X3

awepN asubisag

£ UOIIISOd JusiLiaAos) jedidiunpy
pajuloddy 10 pajoalg ue pjoH osje

saaubisage

saA | osubjseg/iequisiy pieog ay ssog psjuioddy Jaquay pieog sy} seH
¢ UONIS0d JUBWIUIBAOE) 9}e}S
pajutoddy 10 pajaejg ue pjoH os|e
oN | soeubiseglisquap pieog ayj sao(] apiL
¢¥Z8Z Uonoag jo Juswialinbay
SaA Bujutes} yym paydwiod Ajuoyiny jo einsesid ajeq uopesdxgy wus)
¢Aing Aiejonpid
30 juawsbpajmounoy sy} paubig
SBA aaubjsag/iaquisiy pieog oy} seH 8102/412 ajeq yejg wiay
vIN é8jeuag Aq psuuiguon Aq pejeubisaq sieyn ‘sak ji
12007 Ag pajuioddy ON pieog ayj Jo eyd
{8007 Ag pojeunwonN MBIpUY ‘epsuep aweN
ON OIMPO-X3 awe)N aaubiseq
¢ UORISOd Juaiuianog [edisiunpy
pajujoddy o pajoojg ue pjoH osie ;aoubiseq e
oN aaubisaguequisiy pieog aiy) seoq pajuloddy sequiapy pieog ay3 seH
¢ UOI}ISO4 JUBWIUIBADY) 9JBlS
pajuoddy 10 pa)oaja ue pjoH osje
ON saubiseguaquisiy pseog ayj ssog opIL
{978z uondag jo Juawaiinbsy
SBA Bujuies } yym peaydwon Aloyiny jo ainseajd ajeq uopesidxy wusj
¢Ang Arejonpid
jo juswabpajmouNoy ay; paubis
SBA saubjsaqgiiequajy pieog ey seH 6661/9/1 ajeq Hejs waj
ON ¢ajeuag Aq psuLijuon Aq pejeubisaq sy ‘seh i
[e0o] Ag pajuioddy ON pieog ayj Jo Jfeyd
[eoo] Ag psjeuilION 7 Aeuyer ‘pio] aweN

VIN ‘8jeQ psisd
GILLINGNSNN sMEeIs
y202/52/£0 91eq uny

£202/1€/21 Buipug Jes ) eosi4

AcuaBy uswdojaas(] jeuisnpu; Aunog oBasi() o) Hoday fenuuy

B LA R




Z¢ jo 9 ebed

oI30-X3

aweN saubisag

LUoN}iS0d JUsuiuIsA0s feddiunpy
poejutoddy 10 pejoe]3 ue pjoH osje

ieaubiseg e

ON eaubisaqiequiop pieog ay) seoQq pajuioddy Jaquiapy pieog ay) seH
£ UONISO4 JUBLIUIBADY) 3jel§
pajujoddy 1o pajoej3 ue ploH osje
oN | oeubisaguedquiep pleog au) s90Q apiL
£y29Z uonoag jo juawalinbay
SBA Bujured] yum pajjdwon Auoyiny jo ainses|d oje(] uogeadxs woj
JAing Aseponpid
30 juswabpajmoudy ay; paubig
SOA saubsaqgriaqiuop pieog oy} seH 6102/L12 ajeq pels wuay
V/IN é9jeuag Ag pautiyjuo) Aq pejeubisaq Jieyo ‘seh §i
{eoo] Ag pejutoddy ON pieog auyj jo aeyd
{2207 Ag pajeultuoN plIAQ ‘Aomoy slweN
oIPO-X3 aweN saubisag
$UORISOd Juswiularos) jedppiuny
pejujoddy Jo pajoeig ue pioH osje ¢aaubysag e
oN | eeubisaqguequisiy pieog syl seoq pajutoddy Jequuap pieog sy} seH
2 UOTISOJ JUSUILLIBN0Y) 9jelS
pajuioddy Jo pajosjg ue p|oH osie
oN | eeuBisaquequep pieog oy} seoq aniL
$yZez uopoeg jo jusweanbay
SBA Bujures | yum pajjdwod Aioyny jo ainses|d ajeq uonesdxy uus )
¢Aing Aseronpid
30 Juswebpajmounoy sy paubis
SBA asubjsaq/iaquiop pieog ayj seH 910214124 9jeQ Helg ulal
YIN Sajeuag Aq pauujuo) pieog Ag pejos|3 Aq pajeubisaq seyn ‘sl )
18007} Ag pajujoddy SOA pieog ayj jJo aeysn
jzalep] Ag psajeujwioN Adayn ‘uosuiqoy aweN

VIN ‘®jeq payiued

GILLINGNSNN
y2oe/se/e0

smeis
@jleq uny

€20Z/1€/Z) Buipug Jeaj jeosig

Aouaby juswdoaa( jeusnpu; Ajunon obies)() joy poday jenuuy

LsgedAce wonecaeoguy Dupsoder) s




Z¢ jo L ebeyd

OO~ X3

awe)N aaubisaq

UONISO JUSWIUIBA0S jedioiunpy
pajutoddy o pajoelg ue pjoH osje

soaubisag e

oN | o9ubjsaguaquiey pieog ayj seoQg pajutoddy iaquiapy pieog oy} seH
¢ UORISOd JUBLLIUISAOL) ajelS
pajuioddy Jjo pajosig ue pjoy osje
oN | oauBisaqiequay preog oy ssoq oL
$pZaz uondag jo juswaiinbay
SOA Buuies ) yym payjdwon Ajoyiny jo ainsesid yeq uonesdxg wia )
¢Aing Aseronpiy
Jo Juswabpamotnioy ay; paubig
S8A ssubisaguaquap pleog ay) sey 2c02/eg ajeq yejg uuaj
Y/N ¢ojeuag Ag pauuyuo) Aq pajeubisaq Jieyn ‘sak y
[e00] Ag pajujoddy ON pieog ayj jo Jrey)
flalen] Ag pejeunuoN sawel ‘piemas sweN

VIN ®1eq payiuad
CJ3LLINGNSNN snelg
¥20e/se/e0 |jeq uny

£20Z/1€/2) Buipuz Jes jeosid

Aouaby juawdopaaq feuisnpu; Aiuno) obesiO Joj Loday fenuuy




Z¢ Jo g abed

d
ONIZO'000'011$  100°0$ 00°0% 00°0$ 00°0% Z0°'000°041$ j00°000°0L 1S SeA 14 Yaioo 8AN0BXT) 030{Apor "Misrenjez
[eolR]D) PUBUEISISSY OA
ONI00'09Z'61$ 00°0$ 00°0$ 0008 00°0$ 00°09Z°61$  [00°008°02$ ON id SANRLSIUILPY] jeasiujwpy] wiseN ‘eybiep
uol
HEASIUIDY
pug|
aoueuld ueybespy
ONB6 6VZ'67$ 00°05Z'c$ 0008 0008 00°0$ 86'666'Gr$  |00°000°9¥$ SN 1 YQIOQ|  [BuOISS8jOld) JO 10j08.( ‘ouiep
10JBUIPIO0D)]
Ul
opels}eody
ONIOO'¥9.2°€1$ 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0$ 00'¥92°€l$  100°000'7Y$ ON 1d [BUOISSBJOIg] /uofeAouu)| Awiute] ‘SoARID
JOJeUIpIooD)]
Bunexien
pugj
ONEE'Z6O'ELS 00°000°1$ 00°0% 00°0% 0008 £€'269'21$  |00°000°'7Y$ ON 14 |EUOISS8JOId) UofeAOUUj BUID ‘JBUpies
u
wiwsach fuoyine sy
jes0o]  jJo oM By
Jo ayey wLiopisd o sjusuysnipy Auoyiny  |enpiapu
Aq epeudfnue eyjou /$85UBMO]IV] Aq pred ayj o Kieje Aseipisqn
juswded Aq pred osjeuonesuaduwio?) juopesuaduwiod snuo swyy pied Auejes| pezijenuu aull} Med Hun  swenN
spseh [eNpPIAIpUY ejol Y0 Aed Euxm”mo:mEl_oth 1BA jen3o aseg|jdweaxg jouny jjnd Bujuefieg  uojuny juswipeds, dnouo) spLL JwieN
BURSTT HeIS
V/N ‘8ieQ paye)d £202/1€/21 Buipuy Jes A |eosld
Q3LLINGNSNN sMes
¥20Z/SZ/C0 :8leq uny AousBy juswidojeas( teusnpu Aunoy ofesiO Joj Woday |lenuuy

aronyeriiaogst Bunga




Z¢ 10 6 obed

030] d Apor ‘Aysnenez
adueinsuy
ay SpJed ypeid
sjyeuaqgjjuswihojdwigl esuelsissy]  Juapusdagiasuemofiy sueoy ajesodion)| sdiysiaquiapy anea pasnup) aBeyoed

isyjpesay) jo suoN|  IEaA-IINK uoniny /1esnodg  Buisnopy uogeyiodsues ) oynvy feuosiad jo asf) qniy Jodjuswhed  eoueseasg EDTH sweN
TS

$103081I(]
jo pleog) ssulep ‘plemag)

s101081(]
jo pieog) piaeQq ‘Asjmoy]

S10}08.41(]
jopieogl  jAusy) ‘uosuigoy|

. $10}084i(]
jopieogl  malpuy ‘epauepy

$10)08.1(]]
o pieog| 2 Asiyer ‘pio

$10308.((]]
J0 pieog  epURd ‘Apauusyy

$10}081(]
jo pieog| Her “leuhon

$10}08.41(]
1o precg Biein ‘uewsqies)

81030811
Jjo preog] SBUWOY| ‘OBULY

aoueinsu
sjysuaq) L spaed upaud
asay) juswihojdwly soueysissy]  juspusdagesuemoliy sueoT ajesodion sdiysiequiapyaaeat pasnup) sbexyoed]
PBYIO jo duoN| JeaA-BINW uonIn | /{esnodg Buisnoyjuopeiodsuel | omy feuosia 30 asq) gnjo| io4uswifed — adueIONIG apiyl awen|
$I5GUId pieoy
[ | ¢Auoyine sy yaj S{ENpIAIpUl 850U] Joye AJLIOYINE 8y} YIiM pajeljyje S|BNDIAIpU] JO JBjS J8uUL0} 10 SJIBUS] PBUCUSW 8AOGE au) Jo Aue foj Aed o] anuijuod AJLOUIne 8y pIp “Jeak |
tHou
/N :918Q Paye) €202/1 €21 Buipug Jea, |Bosiy

Q3LLINGNSNN snels

¥20¢/52/€0 |eg uny Aouaby juswidojane( [euisnpu} Aunoy) ofies)( 1oy podey jenuuy




Z¢ o 0} abed

auwieN juswinoso( uopeulwIay Jo moo.i

uopeuIULIB ] 10} :owwa@*

ajeq uopeuuLD, L #un Juauodwon/hielpisqns jo wEmA

nun jusuodwon Aieipisgqng Jo mmon._:&

ajeq EoE;m__nﬂmL yun Jusuodwonielpisqng Jo ¢Eml

soBueyn pajsenbey

msumi jtun Jusuodwon/ielpisgng jo wEm&

3BUEYD WU JUBUCAWG/AIBIPISanS 153nbay

smyeyg]

nun usuodwon/lieipisqng jo wEuz_

VIN 1eq peymieD

Q3LLINGNSNN
¥e0z/se/e0

snels
‘@jeq uny

v wroneiuaogy Bugaocis el se

USHESHISA JIUTY JUSUSAWoH/ATIPISans

£202/1€/2} Buipuz Jes A jeosid

AouaBy juswdojeaa(] [euisnpu; Aiunoy obasi( Jo} Hoday [enuuy

P OO ]

SIS AN :

¥




Z¢ J0 11 abed

SafyjIcel] JUSLINJUON

00°8L.°¥Z$ SBijjIgel| JueLnD (B0 ]
e,
00°0% auo ulym enp suoebiqo wisl-Buoy YO
00°SE0'GLS s|qefed sajou pue spuog
00'€LL'LS sanueAal paieie(
00°000°9$ seiigel peniooy
00°0$ sjyausq juawAoiduwis-1sod J8yiQ)|
00°0$ sjqefed UORNGLIUOD UOISUS]
00°0.61$ sjgeded sjunoooy
safiiqel juaung
safiigern
00°9SY'viZ'GS sjasse [ejog
00'S0V' LyS'€$ S1OSSE JUBLINIUOU {810 |
000V LyS'eS s1888y fendes 19N
00'0% uojepaldap pajeinunogy
00'0% anponysesuy
00°0% juswdinbe pue sbulpiing
0050V LyS'eS Auedoud sjgensidepuou J8ylo pue puey
sjassy jeyden
00°0$ $18588 Isyi0)
00" 0% joU ‘sa|qeAleoel wisl-Buo
00°0% SIUBWISAAUY DUB USED PaioLisay)

S}oS8Y JULINDUON

00150°299°L$

S1aS8e JUSLINO [BJ0 ]|

00'660°2$ s1esse Jeui0|
00'8£4'69$ 19U ‘sa|qeAleISY
00°659'09% SJUBLISAAUY
00'655'766% sjuseAINDa yseo pue yseo)
S}assy uaLIND
sjassy

junowy

/N :0jeq payien
Q3LLINGNSNN -
vZ0Z/SZ/IE0  teleq uny

UBEUTT [ERIE] U

£20Z/1£/Z1 ‘Buipul Jes (eosiy

Aouaby Juswidojaasq fesnpul Aunod ofiesi( o) Lodey fenuuy

Lo das] SenuG

STl Wl T




Z¢ jo g} ebed

00°209'6.3 sjueibysaipisqns |eispa
0008 sueib/seipisans ajels
00'108'21% sBujules Juswseu
sanuaaey BupelsdouopN
00'6.8°07E$ (ssoj) awoosu; Bugesedg
00'826'9.5% sesusdxe Bugelado [pjo]|
00'650'851$ sesuadxa Bunesedo Jayio|
00°1£9°85$ uonezjuowe pue uojepeaidag
00'Z16°21$ sjelajew pue seddng
00 Y6E 1918 SJOBIUOD SBDIAIS [BUOISSD}OI]
0008 sjyeusq ssiojdws Jayio;
00Z£6'081$ sebem pue seueeg
sasuadxz Bupesadp
00'/08°216% snusaai Bugesado ejoy]
00°299°982$ senuaasi Bunesedo B0
00'8S6'ErLS awioou) Bupueul pue [plusY)
00'Z84'/8v$ seoines Jo} sebieysy
sonuaaay Bugelado
junowy
N Ni
00'685'¥81°G$ $19SSE 18U (210
00°9V0'¥P9’'L ¢ pajoLIsalun
00'0$ papuIsey
19ep
00°EVS'OYG'es pejejel Jo jou ‘sjosse [eldeo Ui pejsau
sjessy 16N
(1oueq) Jossv 19N
00°298'62$ seniligel] [ejol
00680°G$ Sa{ljjigel) JUBLNJUOU jej0
00°0$ suogebiqo wuey-buo; Jayioy
00°680'S$ seses| uue} buot
000 ajgeled sejou pue spuog
I00°0% syyeusq uswAojdwe-ysod JayiQ
00°0% ajqeded uogNQUILOD UOISUBd

VIN ‘ejeq payian
G3L1INGNSNN sneg
¥202/52/e0 |req uny

£202/1£/21 Buipu3 Jea (eosiy

Aoueby uswdoeaag] euisnpul Ajunon obesiQ Joj Lodey [enuuy

P Ry Doy




Z¢ Jo ¢} ebed

00'685'p81'S$ Jeak jo pua je (31oyep) sjasse jJaN
00°0$ sabBueyo sjasse Jau 1ayl0
00'606'628'v$ 1eak jo ButuuiBaq (jioyap) sjasse JoN
00'089'85E$ sjasse jau uf ebueys
0003 suopnqLiuoo jejden
00'089°86€$ SUORNALIUOD 810§aq (S50]) BLIODU]
00°209°'G/$ sasuadxe Bupessdousu {20 ]
00°209'.$ sosuadxe Bunesedouou JoyiQ)
00°0% SUOIJBUOP PUR SJUBID)
00°0% sanuoyine dnqnd Jayjo o} ssipisgng
00°0$ sebieyo Buueuy 18yjo pue 1saiolu|

sasuadxg BupeiadouoN
00'807'c6$ snuaaai Bunelsdouou (10|}
000$ senusaai Bugessdoucu 18I0
00°0$ saipisgns Ajuoyine aignd|
00°0% syesbssaipisgns edidiuniy

VIN :8le( payma)d
G311INGNSNN snyes
¥20e/s2/e0 eleq uny

€20Z/1€/2) :Bulpuz Jes {eosiy

Aouaby juswidopra( [euisnpu; Aiunoy obas)( 1of Hodey lenuuy




Z¢ o 1 ebed

SHSUENSS] 1q0(0 MON
¢ poued Buoda: ay) Buunp jqsp Aue penssi AlLloyiny ey} sey ‘seh L 2
oN épouad Bugiodas ey Buunp julod Aue je 1gap 3npuos Buipnpul 1gep Buipueisino Aue eaey AjLoyiny ey} EL )
asuodsayy uonsany)
Teq using

V/N :8jeQ pauie) £202/1£/Z1 -Buipuz JesA jeosly
Q311INGNSNN snerg

¥202/52/e0 Bjeq umy Aousby ewdopas(] elisnpuj Ajunon obBss)( o} Hodeay jenuuy

LS A prorpE ko pE BLnaor




Z¢ jo g} obed

SIVLIOL

Buioueuid juswiaiou]]
10iid - 198Q iihpuod) Inpuod
1g8Q inpuo) 1Inpuo)

18410 -198g Alioyinyl — Jsyi0 - 19eQ Ajuouiny
anuaAsy - 198 ALouiny snusasy - 1geqg Auoyiny
uopebliao
uoleblqQ [elsusg - 1q8q Aiouyiny| jeseusg - 1geQ Aluouiny
papung-ajels 8y1o) papun4-ajelg 8yl

uopeBiiqQ [elon el uopebiigo ejelg

uoieblqo webupuo) ajeg) uopebiigQ eiels

pepoddng 9119 uopeblqQ alels

pesjuelens sjeg uoebiiqo ajejs

OICNCEE {§)eap feasy
4o pugz Buipueysing| () poupey Jgeq ($)seouenss|igqeq meN  jo uelg Buipuesing (g)uonezuoyiny Lioymelg) 398Q jo adAy
1990 Aioyiny Jo 8npsysy
V/N 81eq payiLen LerzL Buipus ses ) |Bost
a3LLINENSNN smels geoziie PH3 1804 1598
¥202/52/E0 aleq uny Aouaby Juswdoeaaq (ewsnpu| Aunos) obesio 10) Hoday |enuuy

o2 o pporspeerpao sl P e ol




Z¢< 10 9} ebed

‘ponad Bupodal sy Buunp sjesodsip o suopisinboe Auadoud [ead ou peY )i Jey) peiedipul sey ALouiny syl

I IEsoUsIq/UoHSINDbIY AISUsId 120y

V/N 81eQ payiued :Buipug Jes A [eos!
GALLINGNSNN o €202/1E/2) Pulpul Jesj [eosiy
vZ0Z/ST/E0 @R uny Aousby uswdoaas( [eusnpu) Ajunon obas)() 40} odey fenuuy




Z¢ jo 1} obed

‘pouad Bunode: sy} Buinp siesodsip Aladosd jeuosiad ou pey ) 1ey} pejesipu; sey Auouiny siyj

AisdoId [6UGSIod

Y/N ‘81ed payied £202/1€/2} ‘Butpul Jea feos|
QILLINGNSNN snes b BUIPUZ 1A 1B0SI
¥202/S2/e0 ‘sl uny AouaBy ewdoaaq feusnpu Ajunoy obsesiO Joj Hoday fenuuy

- R s.n,m,w LEC R LRI D kS SE@ L PO LI I




Z¢ o g} abed

¢ SauapInh ons JO JUSWSdIojus pue Yiim 8oueljdwiod s Alouny
V/IN SOA aij) 10} siqisuodssl 8q [jeys oum 4o Bupoeuod B peweu AUoUINY oy} Sey “Tyd Jo (19682 UORO8S UM S0UBpPIODDE U] e
/suodai-pue ¢ Auedoid jo [esadsip pue uonisINboe 8y} J0j SIOBAUCD
-SJUBWINJ0P/II000-pUE-BPI-8U}-IN0GE/LICO MouoBas)o//sdiy SOA 30 Bunuodas pue ‘Buuoyuow ‘Buipieme ‘asn ayj BuipseBal seullepinb Jo ‘seinpadcld ‘seivyod paledaid Ajuoyiny 8y} sey 2
A ADNIOV
“1INFNJOTIAIC-TVIHLSNANIFALNNOD-093S 10
“BHL-AE-GANMO-SIILYIJOUD/E0/£Z0T/SPEOIINJUBIL0D ¢pairdaid useq yoda sy} seH Ajuoyiny sy
-dmuoo mouoBaes)oyz:sdny S8A jo Auedoud jeal jje jo Ajjenuue 1ses} Je podes e eiedaid 03 pauinbai st Aiuoyiny sy “Tyd 40 (£)968Z UOHOSS Ulim SOUEP.IODOR U] ‘1
{sjgeonddy 31) THN asuodsay uonseny
Saewnooq AIsasid

V/N ®je(] payed
Q3L LINGNSNN sneis
¥Z02/S2/e0 ejeq uny

£20Z/1€/21 BUlpuz JeeA jeosly

foueBy uswdojaas( jelisnpuj Alunog obes)Q Joj yodey fenuuy

VY SR e

ST el




Z¢ 1o 61 abed

vsn | Agunog
suondiiax3 Xe] ON SaAIeday J29oid ay] uoibey/eouiAoig
Riadoid ay) 03 ajiLL PIOH JON S80d vl 92eel | psnid - diz
jo9fo.d siy3 ioj Buipueysing jqaQ ou s aisy | AN | a1e1g
Bupioday oy jeaj jseT s|ea) juauing NMO1S¥3d00oD | Ao
Zauln ssalppy
snje)g jo9foid £¢ Aemybiy Aiuno ggg | jaur ssaippy
sleleg [ilamnolg | swep juesyddy
00°0z | ebuey) juewloidiz joN uoneuniojy] juedyddy
000 | J80A [E0S14 BulNp SGof UCHONIISUO) J14 40 # sajels payun | Anuno)
00/ | S31d 30 #uaungy uoiBay/esuiAoid
{sejes 1o ey Juaiing je)pouiejsy
00°000'zZ | @q 0} sqor jo Atejeg [enuuy sbeisay pojewisy 9zeeL | psnid - diz
00'ZZ | pauielsy aq o} sqor jo ajeullys3 jeutbuo AN | 88lg
00000051 ‘0L 00'000'ZEL | Pelesi) aq o} sqor jo ebuey Alejeg pazjjenuuy NMO1Sd3do0D | Ao
{sejed Jo0BY JUBLIND B)pejeal))
00°0 | g 01 sqor jo Aejeg [enuuy pajewsy abeloay Zaur] ssaippy
00'9 | Pejeai) aq o} sqor jo ajewsy jeutblo ¢¢ AemybiH Aiunog ggg | eur ssaippy
00°/¢ | SjelS vQl alojaq s1d 4o # j93f0id jo uoneso
S8jON
uoneusiogu] Juawhojdwyz yosfoid 9z0Z | pug o} pauue]d S| 20UB)SISSY [ejoUBULY JBOA
00'£89°9% | suondwaxy jaN 010z/92/z | Auedoid 03 ajii) Mool vai sied
00°ZLE'GS LY 00ZLE'651L$ | 1OTd [BloL soA | Auadoid 0} apiil 4003 vai PIA
00'269'911$ 00°/69'911$ | 1O7TId doMsIg looyog 6002/c/21 | peaoidde joefoid ajeq
00'66£°81% 00'66£'8L$ | 1OTd €207 jyoid 104 JON
00'962°02% 00952'02$ | 1071d Ajuno) spuog JO smejg xej jesspag
juslisalBy Jed eng jueikeq apey juswied jenjoy 0008 | Jusked asea [enuuy
uoneuojuj JuswAied Jojid junowy ajoN/puog
00°0$ | 9-58¥ uondag 11dy Jo 18N suopdwaxy [ejo) 00'000°915¢ | unoury joslold pajyeusg
005661913 suodwiax3 [ejoL 00°000°069°1$ | nowy josfoid [ej0)
0003 | uondwexy xe] buipioday ebebloN Buumpenuepy | Alobeje] esoding 3oaloid
00'9,9°1z1g | uondwex3 xe} Auadoid jooyos apog Jo8foid feuibuo
00°161°618 | uondwaxy xej Auadodd jes07 ON | 9selyd BN 10 sseyd Jsyjouy jo Led josloid
00'8z1°1z¢$ | uondweaxy xe] Ajiadoid [esy Ajunod
00'0$ | uondweaxz xe} ssjeg [eso7] uoisuedxy Buebaww Aemaig | sweN josfoid
000$ uondwox3y xe} sejeg ajeig ases] | adk) yoeloid
20-01-109¢ | apo yoaloid
uopewuosu juswiked | 1071d ® suondwax3y xe] jooeloid uopjeunoju) 309loid jeiauan

VIN ®jeQ paiiued
Q3LIINGNSNN smeig
[LAMARTANY |leq uny

"S5el01d val

€20z/1e/2) Buipuz JesA [gosty

Aouaby justudoaaq jewisnpu) Aunos obas)O 10§ Lodayy jenuuy

LonEiEoga] Sl




Z¢ Jo 0z ebed

vsn | Auno)
suoiduiaxg xe] oN SaAjpdey 10afoid ay} uoibay/esuinoid
Aiadoid 8y 03 ajlil. PioH 10N seoq val /08¢l | vsnid - diz
1v0[04d SIY} Joj Buipueising jqag ou si asay) AN | 9jBis
Bupiodey 10} Jeo 4 35€ 5] Jea) Jusiing adoIIN | A
Zoul sselppy
snjejg 300foid 86 AemyBiy Aunod 662 | LBUIT SSaIpPY
INOHLNID | swep juedyddy
ooy | abueyd uswlojduzm JoN uoneuLioju] Juesyddy
00°0€ | J€8, [e9Si] bunnp sqof uondNstod 314 40 # S9JEIg pajun | ARuno)
00y | S3Ld o #iuaun) uolbay/esulaold
{seojea Jodjiep Jusiing je)poulelay
00°0 | @q 0} sqor jo Arejeg jenuuy afeleay pajewnsg 108€1 | psnid - diz
000 | Pauiejed eq o} sqof Jo sjelIns3 jeuibuo AN | 8jElg
00'000°0G oL 00°000°0F | pajeedd aq o] sqor jo ebuey Asejeg pazijenuuy qdodiN | Ao
{sajeu joriey Juaiing je)pajeald
00°000'Sy | 99 0} sqor jo Aiejeg [enuuy pejewsy abelony Zoury ssaippy
009 | PeIeel) aq o} sqor Jo ejewins3 [eulbuo 8G AemybiH AunoD 662 | 18UIT SSaIppY
00°0 | SMielS vai 84048q S314 40 # 108]044 O LUOREDOT
S9ION
uopeusiojuf Juswhojduy 108foud 9£0Z | puz 01 pauuejd S| 82ULISISSY [RIDUBUL JRBA
££'¢88'129% | suopdwox3 jeN 1202/2z/6 | Adedoid 0} 8jji1 X001 V(I 83eQ
9v'GGS'/ES Op'6G6G6'AcS | LOTNd IBloL seA | Auedoid o} 8jL1 %003 VI PIG
96'0v8'62$ 96'0v8'62$ | 1O7Id 12HISIQ [ooyds 120¢/1/6 | paaoidde joaloid ajeq
oz ove'es 0z ove'es | LOTd 18207 ON | Wjoid 104 IO0N
0EVLEYS 0Ev/EYS | L0Hd Aunod spuog jo snjelg xe| jeiapa
jusweaiby 184 ang jusiied apepy Juswied emjoy 00°0¢ | yuowAhed asea [enuuy
uoneulioju} juswhed Jo|id junoly sjoN/puog
00°0$ | 9-68¥ UoNO8S T1dy JO 18N suopdiuaxy jejo) 00°000°00G'¥$ | Junowy Joslold pajyeusg
6.'8EV'60.L$ suopdwex3 [ejoL 00°000°000'S$ | Junowy josfoud jejor
00°0% | uondwex3g xe} Buipioday obebLOW buunoejnueyy | Alobajes asodind oeloid
96°0v8'6e$ | uondwaxz xel Kuedoid jooyds 8po) 190l0id jeulbpo
oz ove'es | uondwexz xey Ausdoid jesoy ON | 9Seld BINW 10 aseld Jaylouy jo ued 1vefoid
0Sv/Ev$ | uonduiexg xe| Auadoid eay Ajunod
1o 1v6cecs | uondwexy xel sojeg 850 108]0ig poadueADY e/q/p awojue) | awep jdalfoid
99’ ¥6'GEES uogjduiexy xe] sojeg ejelg asee] | odA} joefoid
20-12-109¢ | @poD 30sioid

uoneuLIoju] JusuwiAed

1071id ¥ suondwexs Xe 399/0id

uojjeuiioju] yoaloid jeisuen

V/N ‘@jeq psyied

GILLINGNSNN
ye0e/82/e0

smejs

‘eje(] Uny

€202/1€/2} Buipu3 JeeA |BOSIS

AousBy ewdoasqg jerlisnpu; Aunon obasi( o} Hodey jenuuy

...;Q@w@.}mw‘ vropii oy Dunsodda sy son




Z¢ o 1z abed

vsn | Aunog
suopduiaxgy Xel oN S9A1928Y Joalold 2l uolbay/aoujroid
Kedoid ai3 01 811 PIOH 1ON Se0q Vai Z€E€l | pshid - diz
398f0.d iy} Joj Bujpuejsing qeq ou s aisyi AN | 91818
Bupioday 10} Jeap 1sE7 S| JBB, JUBLIN) NEERRYNERILTE)

Zour] $594ppy

snjelg Joafoid

gz Aemybiy 91218 9019

jaurt ssaippy

OT1 ‘sauadoid 43vz

swey juesjjddy

000 | abueyd juswlojduizg JoN uopnewloju} juesijddy
00Z | 1A [edsid Bunnp Sqof UcRoNIsucs 314 40 # seje)g payun | Ajunod
000 | S3Ld J0 #3uaiing uojBay/edsuiroid
(sejeijoNiely JUalINY Je)pouieiay
00°0 | @4 0} sqor jo Alejeg [enuuy abelary pajewnsy 9zZeel | psnid - diz
00'0 | pauje}ay aq o} sqor jo ajewysy feuibup AN | 8jgig
000 ‘ol 000 | pajeal) aq o sqor jo sbuey Asejeg pazjjenuuy NMO1SH3d00D | AD
{sajei 1o)Iely JusLIng JE)pajeaid
00'0 | @q 0} sqor jo Asejes jenuuy pajewsyg sbeioay Zour sseippy
000 | pajeald aq o] sqof jo ajewnsy jewbLo j8aUS InUIsayy QL | jeult ssalppy
000 | sMels vai ®0J8q S31d4J0 # 198jo.d jo uopeson
S9JON
uofjewojuf Juauifojdwz yosloid 8£0Z | pug 0} pauuejq S| 92UR)SISSY [RIDURULL 1B
16 12e'9§ | suondwaxy joN Z20z/i/1 1 | Aladoid 0} aiil %00 vQl aled
G9'0LL°6$ 69°0//'6% | 10Tid iB101 sa\ | Apadoid o} ajiL] 400} vl Pid
89'968'v$ 89'968'¥$ | LOTid 1013sig jooyds 220z/vz/z | pancidde joefoid ajeq
GL'€29°C$ G/ '€29'c$ | 107Id [eoo ON | 330id 104 JON
22 0se’L ZZ'06z°1$ | 107id Ajunod Spuog jo sniejg xe| jeioped
JusiueaiBy iad en( juswihed apejy juswied [enjoy 0008 | uawhed aseaT jenuuy
uopeurioju] Juawdied jojid junowy ejoN/puog
00°0$ | a-G8% uonIsg 1LdH 40 18N suopduiexy [ejo 00°095°982¢ | 3unowly josloid pajyauag
91'¢60'91$ suopduiex3 jejol 00°000°06Z°c$ | Junowy pefoid jejoy
0006 | uonduiaxy xe1 Bujpiodoy ebebloN senobaie) Jeyi0 | Aiobejern asoding 308jold
16'288'218 | uondwaxz xe] Ausdoid jooydg apo9 198iodd feuiblio
6 1ope | uondwexy xel Ajiedoid jeso ON | @sByd BINW 10 aSBl 4 Jayjouy JO Led joslold
gg'zyles | uondwexy xe] Auadoid jeay Ajunos
0008 | uondwaxg xe} sojeg |ed0] sBuissoin nu)says | awe 3oefoid
00°0% uopiduiox3y xe| ssjeg ajelg asea] | adA) j09loid
10-22-L09€ | 8poJ Jo3foid

uoneuLIoju] Juswied

107id @ suojdwiox3 xe] 108[oid

uojjeWiIO U] Jo8]0id [elauan

VIN ‘81eq peyiied
G3LLINGNSNN snelg
¥202/52/£0 8jeq uny

£202/1€/Z1 “Buipuz Jes [eosi]

Aouaby juswdoaasq euisnpuj Aunod ofiesi() Joj poday |enuuy

LSRR AT LICH LD




Z¢ jo zzg abed

vysn | Agunod
suopduwaxy Xe ] ON SoAed9Yy 108foid syl uoijbay/eduiroid
Ayiedold a1y 0} 811 PIOH 10N Se0Q val 0Z8S) | ¥Shid - diZ
300foid siy3 10} BuipueIsing o] ou s aJay | AN | 9jeis
Bupiodey ioj Jea) jse] SjJes ) Jusling VINOINO | AlD
Zaury ssalppy
snjeyg Josfoid 19948 18AlY G/Z | 18Ul ss8ippy
Buiuoy | eweN juesiddy
000 | ebuey) yuswhojduiz JoN uonew.ojuj Juedjjddy
000 | 428 jeasig Buunp sqof uolON;RSU0D H1d4 J0 # sejelg pejuny | Ajunog
00°GZ1 | $314J0 # }aund uolbay/aduIaclg
(sajel jeiely Jualiny) je)pauiejoy
00°000'Sy | ©q 01 sqor jo Asejeg jenuuy sbeloay pajewnsa 0Z8¢t | ysnid - diz
00°GZy | peulejay aq o sqor jo ajewys3 feuibug AN | @318
000 o1 000 | pejeas) aq o} sqor jo abuey Alejeg pazjjenuuy VINOINO | Aud
{sejel jo)iep Jualing je)pajeasd
00'0 | eq o3 sqor jo Alejeg jenuuy pajewjsy abeloay Zoul ssaippy
00'0 | pejesl] aq o} sqor jo ejewpsy jeuibuo 198G JBAIY G2 | |BulT ssalippy
00'GLL | smelg val 840)9q s31djo # 108foid jo uopedo
1207 ul Uibeg Sjusuiked SIOfid | SeIoN
uoneuLiojuf uswhojduizg yosloid Geoz | pu3 o) peuue|d Si 8oUe)SISSY jBIDUBULY JEBA
00'919'21¢ | suondwax3 joN gloz/ziL | Auedoid o3 il ool vl @jeg
00'£26'£8% 00'€26°c8$ | 1O7Id iejol sa)\ | Auedoid o3 epiLl Yoo} vai pid
00°095'€S$ 00°096°¢6$ | 1OTid 1oIsI@g [ooyas 8L0z/z/L | peaoidde Joeloid sjeg
00'/91'42$ 00'291'22% | LOTId je20 340id 104 JON
00'961°c$ 00'961°c$ | 1071d Ajunod spuog jo smejg xe| jesapadg
juswiealby lad onq juswihed apep juawifed jenjoy 0008 | uswiAed asea jenuuy
uogeurioju] JuauiAed Jojid junowy ajoN/puog
00°0$ | 9-58% UORSSS 1LY IO JoN suopduiexy fejol 00°270°0£9$ | junouuy Josloid pajysusg
00'6£5°'101 suopdiusxy [ejoL 00°000°000°L 1§ | 3unowy josloid fejo)
000! uopdwiaxg xe| buipioday obebuow Buunpenueyy | Aobajen asoding veloid
00'651°19% | uondwex3 xej Apedold jooyos epo j9aloid jeuibup
00120’ 1e$ | uondwexy xel Ajadold [eo07 ON | @Seyd RN 0 8seld Jsyjouy Jo Jed jsdoid
00 66e65 | uonduioxgy xe] Ajedoig jesy Ajunod
000 | uondwexy xe] sajeg |e20] uolstedx3 Bujuiod | awieN 399ioid
000% uonduwaxy xe | sajes ajels osea | adA} joeloid
Z0-82-109¢ | opoJ joeloid

uonjeuLIOjuU] JUBWARY

1071d % suondwoxg xe] 09[0id

uoneuLIOU] J08[01g [BI8UsD)

V/N 8jeQ peyiped
Q3 LLINGNSNN smeg
¥c02/se/ed leq uny

£20z/1€/Z) Buipuy JesA {eosty

fousby juswdoeaa( [etsnpu; Aunos o069siQ o) 1odey jenuuy

E@»@%mﬂw Lo L Oy - B o cised Se e




Z¢ Jo £Z ebed

vsn | Agunog
suondwaxz Xe] oN SaAle29Y j0aloid syl uoibay/eouiroid
Apadoid ay) 0} af3L1, PioH JON Seoqd val 0Z8¢) | ¥shid-diz
j08foid siy) 1o} Bujpuesing jqeq ou si alay) AN | 3135
Bupioday 10} 1eaA JSET S} JedA jualing VINO3INO | MID
gaur ssaippy
snjelg joaloid 188415 JBAIY G/ | | BulT ssalppy
Bujulon | awen juesddy
00 /- | ebueys juswmkojdwz JoN uonjeunoju| juedddy
00°0 | deaA jessiy Buunp sqof uoponysuo) J1d o # Se)jels peyun | Ajunoc)d
00°241 | s31djo #3jusund UoJBay/aduirold
{sejel joduey JualIny) je)pauie}ay
00°00S'¥S | 29 03 sqor jo Alejeg jenuuy efeieAy pajewysy 0z8elL | ysnid - diz
00'G/L | peuielay aq o} sqof* jo sjewpsy feuibuo AN | 93e18
0000000} 0L 00°000°0S | paiesid aq o} sqor jo abuey Aiejeg pazjjenuuy VINOINO | AID
(sejed Joxiep Jualng je)pajeald
00'000'08 | o9 03 sqor jo Aiejeg jenuuy pejewysy sbesoay Zauln ssaippy
00'6 | Pejeald aq o} sqof jo sjeuwyysy jeulblLo 198418 J9AR G/Z | LB8ulT ssalppy
00'v8L | smelg vQl 840jeq s314j0 # 198i04d JO uopedoTy
S3ION
uopeuLoju] Juswhojduig josloid 9207 | puz o3 pauuejd si 80UR}SISSY [RISUBUIY JRBA
0003 | suopduwaxzy joN 120z/1¢/8 | Maadoud o1 ol jool val 81eq
0008 0003 | 107id IBjoL soA | Auadoid o} ail 001 vai pid
00°0$ 00'0$ | LOTid 301sIq jooyds 1z0z/ze/y | peAoidde joaloid ajeq
00°0% 0008 | 1O7Id je207] ON | Jyoid Jo4 JON
00°0$ 00°0$ | 1071d Ajunod Spuog jo snmjeig xe] jeiepad
Juswaaiby iag ang jusiiked apepy JusuiAed [enjoy 0003 | uawked asea jenuuy
uoneurioju| juawied Jojid junowy ajoN/puog
G-G8Y UON}0ag JLdY Jo JoN suoiidiaxy [ejoL 000/5°/£8$ | Junouly 1oaloid pajysuag
0004 suopdwexy [ejoL 00°000°€02 71§ | Iunowy pefoid je101
000 | uondwiaxg Xej Bulpiodoy abebHON Buumoejnueyy | Alobajes asoding 309loid
00'0¢ | uonduwoxg xey Aladoid jooyss apo7 Joaloid [euibiio
0008 | uondwex3zy xe] Aadoid (@007} ON | 9seyd BN 10 aseyd Jayjouy o ped j99loid
00°0¢ | uondwexgy xe} Aiadoid jeay Ajunod
00°0$ | uonduiaxgy xe | sajeg |20 1} uoisuedx3y Bujuioy | awepN joefoid
000$ uopdiiexg Xe 1 sejeg ajes asea” | adAy oelfoid
10-1Z-109¢ | @poJ oafoid

uopeuLION] JuswAed

10711d 8 suopduiexy xe] joefoid

uoneuiogu] 399foid [ei1auan

V/N 8leQ payie)d
A311LIWGNSNN sneg
Y20T/STIED @leq uny

£20Z/1€/2) Bulpu3 fea ) eosi4

Aousby awdoaas( euisnpu) Ajunos 0Bas)O 10} Hoday jenuuy

AEISACE LIOORLLEEOLEL DL




Z¢€ 1o yZ ebed

vsn | Aquno)
suopiduiaxg Xe] oN SoAI8%aYy 1080l By} uoibayjjasuinoid
Ayedold auj 0] 8piL PIOH ION S80Q val 0egclL | ysnid-diz
190[oid siy} 1oj Bujpueising 1qe( ou S| aisy AN | ae1g
Bupioday 1o} 1eo ) JSBT S| Je94 JUslInD VINOINO | AD
Zour] 5S8.ppy
snje}s josfoig oAl sndweD GOl | LeulT ssalppy

571 o0ld pio 10 JIeyaq uo ¥ooiqbuds

awep jueonddy

abueyo yuswiojduzg joN uopewoju juesjddy
183 jeosid bulinp Sqof UORINASUCY F14 40 # sele}g panun | Ajunod
$31d JO # Juaing uojbayi/eduircid
{seyel ey Jusiing jejpauieoy

00°0 | 84 0} sqor jo Aejeg [enuuy abeieay pajewiysgy 0Z8El | ysnid- diz

000 | Pauleley aq o} sqor jo ejewisy jeulblo AN | 8jelg

000 ‘oL 00°0 | pajeal) aq o sqor jo abuey Aiejeg pazjjenuuy ViINO3INC | D

{sejer jonie JuaLINg Je)pajeain

00°0 | @q 0} sqor jo Alejeg jenuuy pajewnsy abeioay Zouy sseuppy

00°0 | pejesld aq o) sqor jo ajewpsy jeuiblo 1884G UleN Z12-981 | }8ulT ssalppy

00°0 | Smelg yQi84o0jeq s3idjo # 198{oid jo uoneso

SO10N
uojeuuojuf Juswioidwz 3o9ioig 890z | Pu3J 0} pauur|d Si 9JUEB]S|SSY [RIOUBLIH JEB A
0003 | suonduiaxg joN z20zZ/Lig | Auedoid o} ajit] %oo) val ajed
00°0$ 0003 | 1OTId B0t seA | Muedoig 0} 8pil %00} VQI PIA
107id 1HISIF [00YdS 1202/62/, | paaoidde josloid ajeq
107id (eso ON | 3j0id 104 JON
107id &unod spuog jo smjels xej jelopad
judwealby Jad ang uawied opep juswied jendy 00°0% | 3uswhed ases jenuuy
uoneulioju] Juawled jojid junouly aJoN/puog
g-G8y Uo|Io9g 1 1dy Jo JON suopduiaxy jejoL 00°000°00S'¥$ | unowy josfoid pejyjeusg
00'0% suolydwexy [e30L 0002£'268'8$ | wunowy joafoid [e101

uopduiaxg xe]1 buipi03ay obebuoW selobeen IO | Aloboajer) asoding 39afoig
uonduexy xe ] Ajiadoid jooyss 8po) 109foid euibuQ
uondwaxgy xej Auadoid jeso) ON | aseyd BinW 10 aseld Jeyjouy jo Ued deloid

uopdwexg xe | Ajladoid jeay Ajuno)

uondilisx3 xe] sa(eg [eo0]

uopelojsey buipjing soolg piod

awepN Josioid

uopduiexy xe| sojeg aje)s

8ses

adX] oofoid

20-¢¢-109¢

apo) 1d8foid

uonewou] Juauiked

1071d *® suondwoxg xe| joefoid

uoneuLioju] Joefoig [e1eudg

VN #jeQ paymien

G3LLnWansnn
¥202/s2/e0

snieys
81 Uny

€202/1€/21 Buipuz Jee ) jeosty

Aouaby uswdoeraq [eysnpu) Ajunos) obesiO Joj Hoday [enuuy

£ LsonpELti o - Bugan

2 B EASOLRI Y RO

B

T




Z¢g 10 62 obeyd

vysn | Agunog
suopduIaxg Xe] ON SeAIa09y 399]0id eUl to1Boy/a5uiAcld
Aysdoid ayy o} a3l L PioH 10N s80Q vl 0S8el | ¥Shid-diz
398[01d SIYj} 10} BUIpUE}SINQ 3990 Ou S| 819y | AN | Sie18
Buiiioday ioj 1ea), 15e] S| JEaA JUsLINg WiS3IA | AID
Zoul] $s9IppyY
snje}g jo9foid AL BZRld 00C | jBurl ssaippy

77 ‘BJUOBUQ) SUCUILIOT SPISiH

oweN juesyddy

00y | 8bueys juswhojdwy jJoN uopew.ojuf Juesyjddy
00°0 | 488 (2551 BuLINp SQOf UCRONJISUCD F1 JO # sejelg peyun | Aunog
00V | S31d 10 #iuaund uojbay/esuircid
{sejeijeyiep Juanind je)jpauielay
00'0 | 89 0} sqor jo Alejeg [enuuy sbeisAy pejewns3y 028¢l | pysnid - diz
000 | PouiElay oq 0} SAOf jO 8jeWST jeuibLQ AN | @188
00°000'09 0L 0000081 | pejeain aq o} sqor jo abuey Asejeg pazjenuuy VINOINO | AiID
(sajel Joyiely Juaiing je)pajeaid
00°000°0% | 39 03 sqor jo Asejeg [enuuy pajewys3y sbesoay Zour ssalppy
00'11 | pejeas) aq o} sqor jo sjewis3 jeuibuo BALIQ R8bpoid 0GL | L 8ulq ssaippy
00°0 | smels val a4048q s314J0 # 108044 jO uoye307
610z mun uibaq jou op sjuawAed JOid suswpede Juspnlg | SOION
uogjeuriojuy uswhojdwz Joaloid 6207 | pug o} pauuejd S| 90URISISSY [RIOUBUI JBOL
00'ze6'19e$ | suopdwiaxy JeN £102/1/01 | Ausdold 0} ajji] %00 vai 23eq
00'988'GEZ$ 00988'6€2$ | 107d 1830l soA | Auedoid 0} afil] %0031 vai Pid
00°G1EGELS 00'SLE'GELS | 10Tid PUgsIq |ooYas £102//z/9 | percidde 1oefoid ejeg
00'¥Y8'vL$ 00'vveviS | 1OTId B30T ON | l4oid 104 JON
00/2.'628 00'/22'6z$ | LoTd Aunod Spuog jo smejg xe] [elsapaj
juswsaiby Jag on( JustuAed apep juswied fenjoy 0008 | Juswihed asea [enuuy

uoneuiloju] yuawAed Joiid

junowy ajoN/puog

00'0% | a-G8y uondeg Tidy Jo jeN suopdwaxy jejo 00°000°L8Y'61$ | Junouwy Joajoid pajyeusg
00'818°265$ suopduwaxy fejol 00000066224 | unowy 1oafoid jejo)
00 0% | uondiioxg xe] Buipicoay sbebLiow senobaje) Jeyiy | Aiobejen asoding yosloig
00'€86'96¢$ | uonduiaxy xey Auedold jooydg 8poJ ja9foid [euiblio
00210681 | uondwexg xe} Aiadoid [eoo] ON | oseyd BINW 10 aseld Jayjouy jo Led 10aloid
00'818'g5$ | uondwaxzy xel Auedoid jeay Ajunod
0008 | uondwexg xe] sejeg |ed0] SUCWILLOY) apisiii | aweN Joaloid
00°0% uondwoxzy xe] sajeg ajelg asea] | adA] joeloid
Z0-€1-109¢ | 8po) vafoig

uoneulojuf Juawked

1071d % suopduiexg e[ 399[0id

uojjeULIOJU] J0Bl01d [BIdUBD)

VN :8jeQ psyie)

a3LLINGNSNN
¥e0eise/e0

snels
sjeq uny

€202/1€/2) Buipug see jeosiy

Aousby juswdoieaaq jeuisnpuj Ajunos) obes)O Joj podey jenuuy

Tt LRCPEILLLY




Z¢ 10 97 ebed

vysn | Agunod
suondwaxg xe | oN SaAla00y 109fo.id 8yl u01bay/o3UIA0Id
KJedoid ay3 0} al3LL PIOH JON S80Q Val 0£8yl | pSnid - diZ
jo8loid siy3 o) Bujpueising jqaQ ou s| vyl AN | @1Elg
Bujpioday o] Jesj Jse sjJeaj jualing ONINYOD | Ao
Zeuln ssalppy
snjejs joaloid peoy BujuioD jse3 6181 | | Loul] ssedppy
577 ‘euosuQ obnpy | swey juesyddy
06'z- | ebueyy juawikojdwiz JoN uoljeuriojuj juedijddy
000 | 420A 120814 Buunp Sqof UORONRSUO) F1d JO # salelg pelun | Aunod
000 | S31dJ0 #3uaungy uoiBay/aouiroid
(sajel Joxiep Jualing jejpeurelay
00°0 | ®4 0} sqor jo Aiejeg [enuuy obelony pejewnsy 0zgel | ysnid - diz
0G'Z | peuielay eq o} SqOf Jo ejewnss jeulblo AN | 881§
000 ‘of 000 | pejeaid aq o3 sqor jo ebuey Aiejeg pazjjenuuy VINOINO | Ao
{seyeljoyiepy Juaun je)pajeaid
00°0 | oq 03 sgor jo Aiejes jenuuy psjewlysy abelaay Zaury ssauppy
00'L | pajeaid eq o} sqor Jo sjewnsy |eulbuo 18841G Zj8i(] BUQABRAS UBN G691-GGL | [ 8ul] ssalppy
0S'Z | smelg vQl 84048q s34 Jo ¥ o8ioid jo uofjed0]

puE [BUBPISAI JO JS 000'1Z Algjewixoidde tejuceuQ "1esag uep

peleaio/pallie|oal aq 0} 90eds [BjoJauiLloD JO 4S5 00677

uo Buipjing s,eesa.g oLOJSHY Jo soeds [BRUSpISal pue

|e10J8WILIOD 10} 9sNnal sAldepe pue uojelolsey

SOJON

uopewoju] yuawAoidwiz yoafoid

20z | puz o} pauuejd S 80UB)SISSY [RIOUBLI] JEOA
00/¥8'p$ | suondwisxy sN €10z/1/z | Auedoid o} epil yool vqi 8ed
00'958'0€¢ 00'968°0€$ | LOTid IejoL saA | Auedoid o1 apLL Mool yal pig
0068218 00'6¥8°21$ | 107id I101ISIg [ooUds €10z/1/z | peaocsddenefoid ajeq
00'812°01% 00'8iZ'0L$ | 1LOTNd iedo] ON | J4oid 104 JON
0016423 0016223 | 107id Zjunod spuog Jo smelg xe] [eieped
uawealby ia4 onq jusifed apejy juaiuAed [enjoy 0008 | uouifed asea jenuuy
uoneulioju Juawied j0jid junouwly sajoN/puog
000% | 9-G8¥ uondeg 11d¥ Jo 18N suondwex3 [ejoL 00'2£8°9Er'eg | junouly Joelold pajyjaueg
00°'60LSES m:o_unwam feiol 00'000°08L'vS | Junowly «uwmo..n_ fejol
000 | uondwiaxg xej buipiodey abebuow saoinieg | AsoBeje) asoding 10afoig
00zeg'6L$ | uondwexg xe) Auedold jooyog 8po) j08foid feuibuo
00Z22Z18 | uondwex3y xel Ajiadoid |eooT] ON | aseyd BINW 10 aseyd 18jouy Jo Led j108loid
00'101°€$ | uondwex3 xe] Auadoid eay Ajunod
00°0% | uopdwax3zy xe| sajeg 2207 s,99881g/E]UCBUQ ObNpy | sweN jodfoid
00709 uonduiaxg xe| sejeg ajejs aseo] | adA}308loig
L0-€1-109¢ | 8poD 1deloid

uonjeuLIoju] juswiied

1O1id ® suopdiioxg xe 399]0id

uoneuuoju] 10904 jersusn

Y/N @leQ peyiis)

Q3LLINGNSNA
¥20z/S2/e0

'snjelg
eleq uny

£20z/Le/2) Buipuz Jes  jeosiy

Aouaby Juswdoaa( jeuisnpu] Aunog obas)Q 10] Loday {enuuy

Lusa A pospeiiiscnsy Bungrodard s




Z¢g Jo 1z 8bed

Vs | Auno)
wco_wnEme X2] ON SOAI0dY uom_.o._m ayl :O_mwm\wocgo._m
Apiadoid a3 03 8piL PioH 0N seoq vai 028¢l | ¥snid - diz
199fo1d siy) 105 Bujpuejsing jqeq ou st asey ) AN | 9jeig
Bujjioday loj 189 3587 S| 1ea Jusiing VLINO3INO | AlD

Zauy ssaippy

snjejg joelosd

anusAy peoljiey /

18Ul sseppy

OT1 oibes uisyHoN

awiep juedtiddy

00'1Z- | abuey) juswhojdwiy 1aN uofjewojuf juedyddy
00°0 | 4EaA [eosid Bulnp SGof UoRINASUC) F1d 0 # sejels peyun | Ajunod
0021 | s3i1djo #uaungy uoiBoy/aduirclg
{sajed jesjely JuaLing jejpauie)ay
00°058°82 | 24 0} sqor jo Arejeg jenuuy sbeieay pejewnsy 0Z8€1L | pshid - diz
00°SE | pauleiay aq o) sqof jo ajewsy jeutbliQ AN | 9je18
00000'8€ ‘04 00'000°€Z | pajeaid aq o} sqor Jo abuey Asejeg pezjjenuuy YINO3NO [ AID
(sojea Jo)iel JUaLIing je)pajeald
00°058°82 | @4 0} sqor jo Aiejeg jenuuy pajewpsy abesaay Zourl ssaippy
00', | pejeald aq o} sqof jo ajewlsy jeulbLo 1994lg sumolg Ly | | 8ulT ssalppy
00'EE | Smeis vQi 8iojeq saldjo ¢ 100i0id jo uopesoT]

soeds eoyjo

pue ‘uonnguisip ‘Buisnoyalem oj Aljioe) ssnoysiem Buunjognuew PUB [BIDISWLOD B SE 98N IO} BIUOBUQ Ul J0811S aumolg uo Buipiing 4S000'49 € JO UonoNAsSuUoD

S9jON

uopeunojui Juawhojdwy joafoid

9zZ0Z | pug o3 peuue|d St 90UB)SISSY [eIOUBUIL JEBA
00'€65'G1$ | suonduiax3 JoN 5102/1/2) | Ausdoid o) apLi Yool vdi 3jed
00°860°y$ 00'860°cy$ | LONd 18101 saA | Auedoid 0} ajiLl 300l val pid
00'696'€€$ 00'696'ce$ | LOTId dUISI] [ooyog ¥102/v/6 | panoidde josfoid ajeq
0020778 00'20¢'¥$ | LOId 18207 ON | 3Hoid o4 JIO0N
00°22.'7$ 00'22.'v$ | 107d Ajunod sSpuog Jo snelg xe| [eJepad
juswealby iad eng Juswihed apep juswied [enjoy 00°0% | juawhed aseaT jenuuy
uoneunoju} Jusuwied Jolid junouwly ajoN/puog
00°0$ | 9-58% Uod3g 1dy Jo 1aN suondwexy fejo ) 00°000°005'6$ | unoury Joefoid pajysuag
00°159°95¢ suopduiexy jejo ) 00°000°005'G$ | unouiy josfold jejo)
0003 | uondiiexs xe] Buipi0o9y obebLioW UORoNISUOy | Adobajes asoding 1o0[oid
00°696'sy$ | uondwex3 xe| Ayadoid jooyog apoJ 198loid feuibuo
00°632'94 uondwexz xej Ajadold |eso] ON | @seyd BN 10 aseyd Jayjouy jo Jed 1o8loid
00'26¢€°9$ | uondwexg xe] Ausdoid jeey Ajunoy
0009 | uondwaexy xe] sajes jeso ajbeg usyloN | aweN 396ioid
000§ | uondwexzg xe] sajes a1 asea] | adAj joefoid
10-G1-109¢ | @poJ joeloid

uoneuloju] Juswied

1071d ® suopdwax3 xe] 199joid

uoneEwWIOU] }99]0id [BI0UdD)

VIN :2jeq peyiuen
Q3LLINENSNA smeis
yZ0ZISTIEO0  -eleq uny

. usasfcor ay

£202/1€/2) Buipuz res ) jeosty

fouaby yuswdoana( jeuisnpu) junon obies)() 1o} oday jenuuy




Z¢ Jo 8z sbed

vsn | Agunod
suondwaxg Xe], ON SaAjeday jaafoid ayl ucibey/eauincid
Kuedold ayj o} oji1L PIoH 10N $30@Q vai 028¢t | vshid-diz
108foid siy} 10j DuipuRISING 343(Q Ou Si 8yl AN | 8ielg
ufpioday] J0j Je 1SeT S| JedA JUaiing VINOINO | AUd
Zaur ssalppy
snje)g jo9foid }994G Uiy 681 | |8ulT ssaippy
uopeiodio)
swdojaraq [200T prekjiey ejuosuQ | awe juesyddy
000 | 9bueyd JuswAojdiz JoN uopewoju juedyddy
000 | B9 €084 BULINP SQO[ UORONNSUOD 31440 # S8JelS paliun | AIUNOD
000 [ s31dJo #sun) uojbay/esuinold
(sejes 1onjiep Juaiing je)pauieiay
00°0 | #q 0} sqor jo Asejeg jenuuy abeleny pajeunis3 028¢) | psnid-diz
000 | pauleley aq o] sqor jo sjews3 jeulblUQ AN | 9jelg
000000 ‘o1 00°'000°6Z | pajeai) aq 0} sqor jo abuey Aiejeg pazijenuuy VINOINO | AlD
(sajes Joyiepy Juaun) je)pajesid
00°000°GE | 8q 0} sqor jo Alejeg [enuuy pejewysy sbelaay geult ssaippy
00°0Z | Pajeai] oq o] sqof jo sjewnsy [eubuo pECY asnoypunoy | Laul ssaippy
000 | smels yQi aio4eq sjLd jo # josloid jo uoeso

“pejjeisul 8q OSE |im ebeubls meN Siyblj-jesus Kspeq Jejos maU JO uORe|jeIsul pue PeEOy 8snoypunoy jo builedel auj si eys sy} jo Juswdoeaapal
8y} JO | BSBUJ BIUOBUQ JO UMO|/BIUOBUQ JO Al 8U) LI peoy 8SNOLpUNOoy Uo Peieoo| pue| Jo seide 08 Ajelewixosdde Buiurejuod sied [eLisnpuy|enieunucd
e Joj Auedoid ay) dojeasp o) sl (i 8y Buimolie sieak (G) oAy 10} uonelodion swdoaas( |e207 U} woy Auedold ay; 8ses; 01 Y| 8yl 10} s||ed Juswsalbe syl

S8jON

uonewogu] Juswiojdwzg 3oafoid

€Z0Z | pug o) pauueld s} aduelsissSY jejousuld 1ea )
00°0% | suonduwaxg jeN 8102/0¢/v | Auedoid o} apil 3ool val 23ed
00°0% 000 | 1Od I®301 sa) | Ayedoid o} eyl %00l vai pPid
0009 00°0% | 1O7d Joulsiqg jooyoss 8102/92/y | peaoidde joafoid ajeq
00704 00°0% | LOld 1es0] 1404d 104 JON
0004 000$ | 107d fjuno)d spuog jo smejs xe| jesspad
jueweaiby iad onQ Juswdied apej jusluied jenjoy 00°0$ | jusuwihed asee [enuuy
uogewiou] Juawied joiid junowly ajoN/puog
g-Gg8¢ UONO9S 11dY Jo 18N suondiuexd jejoL 00°000°009'G$ | Junowly 108foid payjaueg
00°0% suondwaxg [ejo L 00°000°009°S$ | Junoury josfoid ferog
000$ | uopdtexg xe] Buipiodey abebpop buumpoejnuepy | Aobaje) asoding 1sefoig
00°0$ | uondwaxz xe}] Ajadoid j0oyos apo9 jvaloig jeurbLio
000g | uondwax3y xe} Ausdoid [eso] ON | 8Seyd BINY 10 8seud Jeyjouy jo Led 1o8foid
000% | uondwexg xe) Auedoid jesy Ajunon
00°0$ | uondwaxg xe] se|es [e307] juawidojaAspey plekjiey ejuosu( | aweN 3dafoid
00°0% uopduwiaxzy xe| sa|eg ajels asee | odA] 19efoig
20-81-109¢ | @pog joeloid

uoneulojuj Juswied

L1O1Id ¥ suopdwaxg xe] 399/0id

uoneuLIO] J99]0ld [BIBURD)

V/N -8le( psiiue)
Q3L1INGNSNN
¥c0e/6e/e0

smes
eleg uny

£20zZ/1¢/z) Buipug ses ) jeosiy

Aouaby yuswdoas( jeusnpu} Aiunod obas)( 10 Hoday jenuuy




Z¢ Jo 6Z obed

vsn | Agunog
suonduiaxg xe ] oN S8A1999Y J09foid ay) uolbay/esuiroid
Apiadold ay) o} ajjLl PIOH JON s30d VQi 75601 | psnid - diz
308[o1d Siy} Joj Bujpue}sIng 3q8q ou s eiey} AN | 8jeig
Bunioday 10} 180 JSE] S| JE, JudLn) INOWHEIVY | Ao
Zsur ssalppy
sme)g joafoid 65 8INCY 98¢ | Leur] ssaippy
Aijeoy SijiN Xiuaoyd/sainjuap snoo4 | swie| juesiddy
00'v6- | ebuey) juswiAojdwiz joN uoijeuniojuj Juesyddy
000 | Je9A [eoSid BuLNp SO UORONISUOD J1d JO # sajels payuy | Auncd
00°ZE) | S3ld o jjuaing uojbay/eoutroid
{sajeijaniep Juaiind jejpauleldy
00°000°0% | 8q 03 sqor jo Alejeg jenuuy ebeisay pejewiysy 9zeel | psnid - diz
00'1£Z | pauiejsy 8q o} sqor jo sjewis3 feuiblLo AN | 3jBlg
000 ‘oL 00°0 | pajeald aq o} sqor jo abuey Alejeg pazijenuuy NMO1SH3do0D | Ao
(sojeljasiely Jualin) je)pajeald
00°0 | 8q o0} sqor jo Alejes jenuuy pajew}sy abeloay Zauly ssalppy
000 | pajeai) aq o} sqor jo ajewis3y feublug peoy $80.3 S|liN Xiusoyd 821 | Leul ssalppy
00°1€C | smelg vQj 840jeq S31dJ0 # 308o.d jo uogeoo
510z Jequades pun uibeq jou op suswAed | O1ld ‘710z tlequaldes uy joueyy 0besiO Jo eseyoind uiim $10Z pazijeuy pue £1.0z uebeq ssecoid jeacudde [Od | S9ION

uopewoju] JuswAojdwiz joafoid

0v0zZ | pug 0} pauue]d SI 90UBISISSY [RIDUBULY JBOA
00'260°g12z$ | suondwaxd jJaN ¥10Z/1/6 | Auiadoid o} sjiil ¥0ooL vl 8jeq
00'zee’08s 00'zee'08s | LOTHd IB10L sai | Auadoid o} 3Ll %00} val pid
00 ¥98'€9 00'798'€9$ | 107id 3013sig jooydg ¥10zZ/2/. | paaoidde Joafoid ajeq
00'8/87% 00'8/8'2$ | 1OTd 18207 ON | Hioid jo4JON
00°065'€L$ 00065°¢1$ | 107id Ayunod spuog JO shjelg xe| jejspady
Juaweaiby iod anQ JustiAeyd apely JuswAied jenjoy 0008 | Juswhed asea [enuuy
uoneunoju} Juawled Joiid junowy ajon/puog
00°0% | a-G8¥ uonoeg 1dy Jo JoN suonduwaxy jejo) 00'000°000°g1$ | unoluy Joajoid pajysuag
00°68€'962 suondwax3 [ejoL 00°000°000'81$ | Junouwy 1doaloid [ejot
0008 | uondwidaxy xe] buipi059y obebOW SeUNWILIOD) JusLaey asel) Bumnuguo) | Atobajes asoding 1osfoig
00 viv'/zz$ | uonduwiaxy xej Ajiadold jooyag apoJ sfoid feuibLo
00°csz'ols | uonduwexy xe} Ajisdoid (@207 ON | aseyd NN 10 8seyd Jayjouy Jo ued jasloid
00'60y'gy$ | uondwiex3 xe] Auedold [eay Aunod
00°€52'01$ | uondwexgy xej sajes 2207 sainue snooj/iouepy obesj | ewen joaloig
00°0$ uopduiaxs xe| sejes ojelg asea] | adk} josfoid
20-v1-109€ | 9poD Joeloid

uoneuLIoju] Juawiled

1071d ¥ suonduiexg xe] joe[oid

uoneuLioju] 309foad jeiauag

VIN ‘eleg payiuen
QaLLINENSNN snEjs
vZ0z/SZ/E0  teleq uny

£202Z/1€/21 :Buipu] ies A |eostd

fouaby yuswdojeasq [euisnpuy Ajunon ofesi() J0j Loday jenuuy




Z¢ Jo ¢ abed

vsn | Asunod
suonpdwiaxy Xe} ON SaAI900Y J09loid oY) uoibay/eouiacld
Apadoid su3 o] 8li1 ). PIoH 10N seoa vai 0Z8cl | psnid-diz
joafoid sy} 103 Buipueising jqeq ou si 8oyl AN | 91838
Bupiodey i0] JBs), JSe S| 1E8) JUBLIND VINO3INO | AID

Zaur] ss2Ippy

snjelg Jo9ioid

¢z Aemubiy em1s 9025

Lour $S2.ppY

OT1Aiendsoy euyhys | awen juedpddy
000 | abueyd juawdlojdwy JoN uopjewizoy juedyddy
000 | 184 [e9sid buLInp SCOf UORONASUC) FL A0 # sejeig peyuny | Auno)
00°0 | S3Ld 10 #iusand uoibayy/esuiacid
(sejes Jodjiep JUSLIND Je)pBUIRISY
000 | 24 0} sqor jo Asejeg jenuuy abeieAy pajewiysa oveELl | ysnid - diz
00'C | peuielay aq 0} sqor jo sjewns3 jeuiblo AN | 9jeig
00°000°0F 0L 00°000'9¢ | pajeai aq o sqor jo ebiuey Alejeg pazjjenuuy MOIMIMVH | A0
{sajea jorjiey Jua.riny Je)pajeaid
00°000°0E | 84 03 sqof jo Asejeg jenuuy pajewis3 sbesaay Zour] ssalppy
00’7l | pejesd eq 0} sqof jo ajewnsy feublo £z AemubiH o1e1s zggy | 18Ul ssalppy
000 | smeis val aiojeq s3l440 4 1o8fold jo uojjedson
SOION
uopeuLiojuj Juowfojduwiz y08foid 9£0Z | pu3 03 peuueld S @oURISISSY [BIOUBULY JBBA
0003 | suondwexg N £202/1/z) | Auadold 0} il ¥0ooL vai 8jeg
0004 0008 | 107id k1oL se)\ | Auadoid o) afiiL %ool vai Pid
00°04 00°0$ | 1O7id IPUISIQ |o0Yy3s €202/L/zL | panoidde Joslold ajeq
00°0¢ 00°0% | LONd jed01 ON | J40id 104 JON
0004 000$ | 107id Bunoy spuog jo snejg xej jesepad
Jusueslby lad eng jusuiied ape Jusuiled jenioy 001§ | Juswhed asea [enuuy

uopeuLioju) Juswihed jojid

junowy ajoN/puog

000§ | -S8¥ Uondeg 11dy Jo 18N suondwax3 |ejoL 00°000°'521°8$ | Junowty 309foid pajyausg
0003 suopduwexy fejog 00°000°00F'cz$ | Junoury 39efoid [ejoL
00'0$ | uondwexg xe] Bujploooy sbebliopy apel] |le1ey | Asobeje) esodingosloid
00'0% | uonduiexzy xe] Auedoid jooyss 8p0 198[0id [EUIBLO
00'0¢ | uondwexg xe} Ausdoid [ed0] ON | eseUd BN 10 eseyd Jeyjouy jo ued Joefoid
0003 | uondwexzg xe| Auadoid teay fjuno)
00'0$ | uondwexg xe] sajes jeso] 071 Anendsol suiiAyg | auweN 399fold
000$ uopdwaxg xe] sojes aels osea | adA} 1o8loid
£0-£¢-109¢ | @poJ isefoid

uoijeurioju] juswiAed

1O1id ¥ suondwiexg xe] 98/0id

uoiewLIoju| J09lo1d jeiduan)

VIN ‘81eQ psyiued
QA LLINGNSNN 'SNIelg
¥202/S2/e0 @leq uny

£202/1€/z} Butpuz fea |essid

Aoueby juewidolaas jeuisnpu| unocy oBas)( Jo} Hoday jenuuy

weonyenueo oy Bugaodas) seais




Z¢ jo L¢ ebed

96~ 8268001 $ 11'6£2'9498 56'/29'L46'L$ 43
abueyy juewhojdwy JoN suopdwaxy 18N pied 1O7id [ej04] suopdwax3g je3o L] sjo0foid jo saquinp jejo})
V/N :1eg payis £Z0T/LE/2) Buipug ses jeosid
QI LLINGNSNN ‘snieis
$202/8Z/€0 ejeQ uny AoueBy juswidoasq jelisnpu; Alunoy) oBes) Joj Hodey jenuuy

Laaadc 1 ELLErogid] B aoeclayg s




Z¢ Jo z¢ obed

SHRWWo) [eucHIpPY
V/N :81eQ pBUIEY £207/1£/z) Buipuz seaA |eosiy

Q3 LLINSNSNN smes ;
y202/s2/e0 |leq uny Aouafy juswdosaa() jeuisnpu; Ajunod obes)( Joj wodey jenuuy

HLEB AT LICHIELURO T BLNIOUT e E SO RILIOLII Y

Ioi el




¥l jo | ebed

¢MeT] BoueUld BjelS 8Y) Jo (B)I-6E1

uoWoaS LM SOUBPIODOE Ul ‘PaLINOD0 SABY SUOHE|OIA 5I0UM SBOUEBJSU] Ul SUOiouES asodwy 0} pue ‘Juewsinoosd
SaA e Buunp 10BjU0D Bjqissiuuadu jo suoiebsjle ajebiiseAul pue malas) 0} ssaocoid B aaey AjLoyiny 8y} ssoQ ‘6
£10BJU0D B|gISSiiadul SIU JO BPBLL PIODB) B SBM ‘SBA §| ‘eg

imen

aoueUld alelS ey Jo (01 )-6E 1 UolDaS yim asuepiosoe W ‘pousd Bulodss sy} Buunp jusweinoocid sy} sousnju
ON 0} pardwage Jo usweinooid e Buunp 10ejU00 Sjgissiuuadil PBY JOPUSA B Jey] sulwialsp AJUoyIny ay: pig ‘8

¢.10Y BUIRqQoT JUSLIBIND0Id a1, ‘MET aoukll- a1elg a8yl Jo (E)(Z)-6E | UOII0BS UliM 9oUEPIOIOE
sax | uf'iuewainooid oyioads B UG JOBUOD PBZUOYINE 8y} Se aalss 0) suosiad o uosled e sjeubisap Aoyiny ay) pid L

¢S10BIU00 Juswiaindoid 10} suolesyioads 10 ‘sjusulnoop piq ‘sjesodoid
SBA 10 uoyieNoljos s) U suofqiyosd pue sseioyjod Juswanoold sii jo Aewituns e sjelodioou) AjLoyiny 8yl seog ‘g
SBA ¢uawsaibe uoisnjjoo-uou e ubBis 0) sueppiq sagoedsold ainbal Auoyiny ay) seoQ ‘G
STA s soseyoind ssauisng Jojpue jaaei] 10} seshojdws o] spied Jipaso ubisse Ajuoyiny ey} seo(] b
ON ¢ssutjepinb Juswainooid sy} 0} suodeoxa 10} mojje Auouiny ay) ssoQ €
SBA épieog ay; Aq panroidde pue ‘pspasu ji pepuaiue ‘Alenuue pamaiaal saulepind Jusweinoold ey aiy ‘2

P A0 d0Z %IUBUIBINI0IL0Z

%Y A0 D/SIuawNoopog Y% Aoljod/speoidn/wios mouobasio//isdpy SOA ésaulepinb juswainoold aaey Ajuoyiny ayj seoq L
{ajqeanddy 1) 14N osuodsay uonsany

VIN - 8leq payisd
Q3 LLINGNSNN snejg
$202/52/€0 ajeqg uny

£202/16/21 Buipuz ses ) (eosiy

Aoueby Juewdoleas( [euisnpu; Ajunosy obasiO 104 Wodey JueuwaInooly




¥l Jo Z obeq

junowly ayj ueyy

uopnduosaq $597] S} aNjeA 19N

SOOIAIDG UORONISUOD JUBWBIN20Id J1e4 oy Aym upejdxy
Jea) [eosiy

$e)els pajiun Anunop 00°12}1'2Z$ iog papuedx3 junowy
uoBay/adujrcig 11°119'226'91% junowy

v shid anfeA Jodiel died

354 8po [ejsod $202/8¢/8 9jeqg pu3g

AN ajels £20Z/€/5 ajeqg piemy

WYHLYT Ao pig eapedwio) - peiuo) Auoyiny SS8001d piemy

zour ssauppy

aouBUBIUIBIN/UORONASUOD pue ubiseq

juswieINsold jo edA}

peoy Ieyg 8liMeleM 16

Leur ssaippy

‘Y UoRONISUOY ofuy

SWIBN JOPUBA z

junouwy sy} ueyy

uonduoseq S§§8" SI aNJEA JONJEN

Buip|ing peumo y(J; uo siqedal uaweInsold a1eg4 ey Aym upejdxg
iea ) [eosld

sejelg pajun Ajunod 00064118 o4 papuadxy junowy
uojfioy/eduinold 00064118 junowy

¥ shid 00°0SL°11$ anjeA Joyiep Jied

1974} apoy {e}sod £20z/ez/e ajeqg pu3

AN ajels £202/6/€ ajeq plemy

ONVIAYVYI Ao pig eAnedwo-UoN - joeRU0D Ajoyiny S£830.d piEmy

Zourl ssaippy souBUBUIRN/UORONASUOD pue uBiseg uBWBINO04d JO adA}

s¢ AemyBiy Alunod y94 Joul] SSaIppY Bugesi pue Bulqunid IrY SUIEN JOpUBA b

£20z/1€/2) Buipuz Jea ) {eosi4

V/N : @1eQ payiia)
Q3LLINGNSNN snelg

YZOZISTIED |eq uny Aousby juswdoeasq |ersnpu] Aunod obsesi( Joj Jodey juswainoold

ETEAN B g S g pr ke pg




¥1 jo ¢ ebey

junowy ay3 ueyy

uondusseq $$97 SI snjeA JaieN

esieiddy ayeysy jeay juswaINs0Id 1e4 ayy Aym uterdxy
1eaj [eosty

S8jels papun Anunod 00°005°9% o4 pspuadxy junowy
uoiBayj/eouiroid 00°005°9% junowy

¥ snid anjep ey Jey

£0221 8poJ [eysod £202/1¢21L ajeq puz

AN 8jels £202/9¢/4 ajeQq plemy

ANVEY Ao pig aaedwios - pequo) Auoyny $5800.1d piemy

Zour] sseippy

saoineg Bunsuo)

JuBUIaIND0IY jo adA}

10Z S1ING 1X3 SAY UojBuISEM 012 Jauyy sselppy 3980 swep Jopusp v
JUNOWY 3y uey)

uopduossq $S387 Sl anjeA JeNiepn

uoispuedng weis va3 JUBWAIND0IY Jied ay3 Aym uiejdxy
188} [eosly

SelBIS peun Anunog 5.296°218 104 papusdxg Junowy
101B3Y/00UIACId S1296'2L$ wnowy

y snid anjeA Joxsep Jied

50221 apo) [gysod sjeq pug

AN ojelg LZ0Z/v2ILL ajeq piemy

ANVETY ) pig sAedwon - oeAuos Auouny $58004d plemY

005 aung Zour ssauppy seoieg Buyinsuos juswainooid jo adAy

Al 3UllY 0}

LaurT sseippy

go1pinfo 1§ uopeg

SWeN 10pusp ‘¢

V/N @ 8jeq peyiued

G3LLINGNSNN
$202/G2/e0

snelg
aleq uny

€202/1€/2) Butpuz see jeosld

Aouaby juswdopasq erasnpyy Auno) ofiesi( 40} Woday Juswiainoold




Y1 jo ¥ ebed

junowy ay} ueyy

uonduosaqg $S97 St ONjeA JadNJeN

UOISSSILULLIOD @0jAI8s oland sAU ylim sediales Buinsuo)) JUBWAIN0Ig ared ay3 Aym urejdxgy
1ea ) [e9siy

Sejels pajun Agunog 00052228 Jo4 pepusdxg junowy

uoifay/eouinoid 00°052°22% junouty

¥ shid 00°054'22% anjeA joiey Jied

07443 8po) je1sod ajeq puz

AN e g£ecoz/eel/e 8jeq piemy

ANVETY A0 pigt eApedwo)-uop - JoeRuUoD Aluoyiny $5890id piemy

zaur ssaippy

seones Bupnsuo)

JudWIaIND0Ig jo adA}

ONUBAY UIBISBM 116

Laury ssauppy

0717 sieuped Abseul jeyded

awieN JOPusA 9

junowy ay; ueys

uonduosag $S97 S| SNjeA 19NN

saoines Buidesyooq pue Bugunoooe JuaWaINd0id ned sy Aym upepdxy
1ea), [eosty

$8je1S pajun Aguno) £1°02.°918 4o papuedxy junowy

uojbay/eoulnoid £1°022°818 junowy

P Shid £1°02.91$ ONeA 19NN Jed

S0Z2i 8poJ |ejsod ajeq pus

AN ajelg 9102/52/Z ajeq plemy

ANVETY Ao pig 8ARRRAWOD-UON - J0B4U0D Auoyiny SS820.d piemy

anuQ Jendwio) 9z

Zour) ssaippy

seoialag Buginsuon

JuBWaIN0Id jo adA}

lsgop

jouy] sseippy

8iH 10} 04D

SUWIBN JOPUBA g

V/N - 8ieQg payiued
QI LLINGNSNN sNeIs
¥202/ST/E0 @ uny

£202/1€/21 Buipuz Ja ) jeostd

Aouaby uswdolaaaq |euisnpuj Alunoy) oBes)O) 10} Hoday Juswiainsold

AL Cy pue i b oo g 5




¥l jo G abed

junowy ay} ueys

uopdiosag SS9 Si anjeA joxiew

souelinsy| 8y {/Auedwio) pelisqy juawainsoid se4 ey Aym urejdxg
ICEINCEGE

s8jeis penun Anunon 00'0$ 104 papuadxg junowy
uoiBay/eduINOIg junowyy

¥ snid anjep jaxlep jeg

£64¢1 9poJ jejsod ajeq puz

AN a)es oje(Q piemy

IH13a A0 19PI0) 9SBYIINGJUBWSINIOIG JORJUOYD UON $$820id piemy

cauln ssalppy S3VINISS [BUOISSBJ0Id 18I0 JUBWBINDOIY jo adA}

Z80L#ISUNOD ¥ Laul ssalppy -ou| AemeH "M Auel SwieN Jopuap g

junowy ey} ueys

uopduaseq $597 S onjep Jaxien

V@i ayy Aq paumo Apedold 00PN JO souBUBUIBN JUBWBIND0IY e oy Aym ujepdxg
1ea, jedstd

Seje]S pajun Aunod 05'229's$ o4 papuadx3 junowy

uoiBayy/esuinoid 05'229'G% junouwry

¥ shid anjep joNJen leq

96.€1 8po) [ejsod £202/62/2) 8jeQg pug

AN ajelg €20¢/92/}4 ajeq piemy

SNIHNVYT Ao pig aAjedwoy - Jequog Auoyiny $89800id piemy

Zoui ssaippy By JUBLWRIN00L JO adA)

£z AemybiH e1e1s 162

18up] ssaJppy

AIBSINN MOJjOH X0

SWIEN JOpuUsA L

VIN : 81eQ payiuad

£202/18/21 Buipuz Jea jeosty
Q3LLINGNSNN smejg

¥202/52/£0 8leq uny Aouefy Juswdoieaa(] [elysnpu; Ajunosy obes)() 10} Lodey JusWwaInoold

RS R LR R | I g o n k. SE




v jo g abey

junoury sy} ueyy

uopduosag $S87 S1 ONjeA 19MIEN

S80IAIBG UOoIsiAedng UOONASUOD JUSWBINO0IG sed ayy Aym urejdxs
ieaj [eosid

S8jels pajiun Aunon Z6'v6Z'9% 104 papuadx3z junowy
uoifey/eouiroldg 26°'v¥62°'9% junowy

¥ snid SNEA BN N

106€1 8poJ jejsod ojeq pu3

AN ajels £202/S2/S ajeq plemy
NOLWVYHONIS A1 pig eApnaduio) - oequo) Auoyiny $S8204d piemy
Zaul] ssauppy aoueUBUIBN UORONASUOYD pue ubisag JUSUIBIND0I Jo adA]

19848 UNOD €Y1 LaulT] ssalppy Bupssuibug Juny BUWIBN JOPUBA ‘0l

junouly ey} ueys

uopduosaq $597 S| OnjeA JoNJeN

vl 40} jSUNOY puog JUBWIAINDOOI aieg ayy Aym urepdxzy
FEEYNCEEN

selels payun Aiunog 28'€28'82$ Jo4 pepuedx3 junowy
uolBay/eouiroid 28'e78'82$ junouwy

¥ shid 28'628'8¢% SNfeA 19Ie| e

10221 8poJ jejsod €202/6Z121 ajeq pug

AN el €20Z/2/L ajeq piemy

ANVETVY ite] Pig @ApBeduwoD-UoN - JoEAU0D Aloyiny $5820.d piemy

Zaul] ssaippy saoinleg jebe JUBLWIBIND0IY jo adA}

LOv# Aempeoig //9 Laulq] ssaippy ssny uosBpop SLUBN JOPUBA '8

VIN : 8ieQ psijiued

G3aLLNEGNSNN
¥202/52/€0

sneig
:8le( uny

€20z/1e/e) Buipuy Jeap jeosiy

Aousby wewdojpaeq feuisnpu] Aunoy) obesi() Jo} Hoday JuswsInsold

AT Py




¥l j0 1 abed

junowy ay} ueyy

uopduosag $587 S1 anjeA }9%Ie

Buipjing jo ||lem seai 0} Jledey JUBWBINDOLY Jieq ayy Aym upejdxg
134 BOSL]

seje)s paun Aiuno) 00'0$ 104 pepuadx3 junowy
uoiBay/esuinoid 00°0% junowy

¥ snid anjep jaxel lied

0z8cl 8poJ jeysod £202/0e/L aeq puz

AN oelg 22028l aje( piemy
YAINOINO Ao pig sapedwo) - oeiuod Ajuoyiny $58004d piemy
Zaup ssaippy soUBUBUIBN/UORONASUOY pue ubisaq JUBLIBIND0Id JO 8dAL

8AY SOl 8 Laur] ssaippy Bunoeiucs SNE BWIBN JOPUBA AR

JunowYy ay; ueyy

uonduosa(] SS977 S| 8njeA JLeN

vai Ag paumo jiem Buipyiing jo sjedey juswainooid aed sy Aym ujeidx3y
iea) {essiy

selels peyun Aunop 00°002'8% 104 papuadxgy Junowyy
uoiBay/esuinoid 00°00Z'8% junowy

¥ snid 00°002°8$ ANRA JoN ey Jed

0z8el 29poJ jeisod £eoe/eeit ajeqg pug

AN 8jelg €202/L2ly aje(q premy
V.INOINO A0 pig eAnnedwon-uoN - Joejuog AjLioyiny S$S820id piemy
Zaur] ssaippy 83UBUB]UIRN/UOIONISUOY) puk uBise( JuswisInNdold jo adA L

1S episuQ ¥Z1 jeury ssaippy Bugoenuod SWF aleN JOPUaA L

VIN : 8jeq payiied

€202/LE/21 Buipug Jee [eosly
Q3LLINGNSNN snieis

YZ0OCISTIED Bieq unyg AousBy juswdojens( feusnpuy Ajunon obesi( Joj Lodey jJuswainsold

sl S Ltk s payt B0y




¥1 jo g abed

junowy ay3 ueys

uonduosag $597 SI aNjeA 19eN

Y1} 10} Asuiony |eo07] JUSWISINDO0L aed ayy Aym urejdxgy
1894 jeosid

SSelg pajun Anunoy 06°/61'G$ Jo4 pepuaedxy junowy
uoiBoY/eoUIACId 0S'261'6$ junouwy

¥ Shid 05261°S$ anjeA JMIBN Hed

0Z8el 8poJ [e)sod £202/62/Z1 ajeqg pug

AN 2je1s £202/9¢2/1 ajeq piemy

VLINOINO Aip pig aagedwiod-uoN - peiuo) Auoyiny $S900.d piemy

Zauy] ssaippy saoneg [eban JUBWIAIND0Id J0 adA)

JAV N0l | 8ul Ssalppy 8YNYDS 1N SWwieN JOpuap RN
junowy ayj ueuy

AN sBuudg piayuony uopdussag SS9 S| anjBA JaxieN
ul yied SSOUISNG-008 MBU JO} SJUBLUBAOIdLL BINIONASEIjUL JOf YoM ubseq JUBWBINI0Id are4 oyl Aym urejdxzy
1es ) [eosi]

sejelg pajiun Aiquno) 6£912'928 o4 papusdxy junowy
uoiBay/esuiroid 6e912'92$ unowy

¥ snid 6£912°92$ anjeA 19BN Jieg

106E1 9poJ [eysod ajeg pu3g

AN 2jels 6102/G1/L ajeq piemy

NOLWVHONIG A0 pig sApadwog-UoN - joeuod Auoyiny $S820.id piemy

zZour ssaIppy

aouBUSIUIBIN/UORONIISUOY pue ubisag

juaweInsoid jo adAy

1oans oburyoxd g6

jaul ssaippy

$8JBI00SSY SU0)SABY

BWEN JOpUsp £

V/N : 8ieQ payile]
Q3LLINGNSNN snjels
y202/92/e0 Bjeq uny

£202/1€/2) Buipug Jea A jeosid

Aoueby juswidojens( jeuisnpu| Ajunon obes; 1o} Hodey Jusliainooid




¥1 40 6 ebed

junowy sy} uey

uonduasseg $$97 St anjep 19JeN

JuByNSUCO Bunum ueis judWBINd0Id ae4 syl Aym ujejdx3y
1ea) [eosid

s9jels paliuf Anunon 00°0% 104 popuadxg junowy
uocibayjjesujroid 000% unowy

¥ Shid 00'0% anjeA joIep Jieq

0zZ9ri 9poJ |ejsod CZOZ/LEIS ajeq pugz

AN ajelg 2202/eiL aje( piemy

H31S3HOOH o pig eAnadwio~UoN - 1oBHUOD AjLouyiny $88901d piemy

Zaui ssalppy saoinieg Bupinsuon juaweInsoid jo adAy

091# PY J8AIN] GY) jaulm ssalppy dnoso guiN SWieN JopuaA ‘Sl
junowy ayj ueyl

uopduosag SS9 S| 3NjEA JoNIe

910z 9oeds 9oyjo pases] jJjuswiaInsold e oy Aym upejdxa
13\ [BoSLq

s8jels pajyun Aijunod 8€°€€9°16$ Jog pepusdx3 junowy
uotBay/aduiroid 8E'€E9°46$ junowy

¥ Snid 8€'€£9'/G$ anjeA jajiey e

028el 8poY [ejsod ejed puz

AN ajels vLOZ/L/S aje(] plemy

YINOANO Ao pig eAgedwog-UoN - joenuo) Auoyny $S8201( plemy

Zoul Ssalppy 1BUI0 udwainsold jo adAy

peoy wied Auod 0£€ Laul] ssaippy X31EN SN Iopuap ‘Sl

V/N : 8jeq pauag

Q31LINGNSNN
¥202/S¢/e0

smes
epe(] uny

£20Z/1€/21 Buipul Jea 1eosly

fouaby juswdojpaaq jelysnpul Ajunos) obesiO 40) Hoday JuswaINd0ld




vl jo ol obed

Junowy ay3 uey

uonduoasag ss87 S| 8njep 18l

G107 Ad 40} 1pne [eroueuy payined JUBWIBINIOLY a4 ayy Aum ugejdxy
1ed A [BOSly

SOJeIS pejun Aijunod 00°059'8$ o4 papuadxg junowy
uoiBay/asuinoid 00059'8% junoury

¥ Shid 00'059'8$ anjeA joNJe Jied

0e8ct 9poJ [eisod ajeq puzy

AN aels S102/1/01 ajeq piemy

VAINOINO ] pig eAnpadiion-UoN - 10BU0D Ajuoyiny $S820.d plemy
Ul SSaIpPPY SB0IAISS [eUOISSBj0id 18Ul0 JUBUIBIND0IY JO adA)

BAL(] BIBIO0SSY LaulT SSalppy 11098 pue CJBUBZUBK ‘UBISON uwiEN JOPUSA 81
junowy eys uely

uonduosa 5977 SI anjeA JoIeN

seoneg Buiuueld jeuoibey JuaBINI0Ld aeg ayy Aym ugejdx3g
189, jedstd

S8jeig pejun Aiunog 00°000's$ i04 papuedx3 junouly
uoifay/esujroid unowy

v snid anjeA J9jeN Hed

LOVEL 8p0J |e1sod ajeq pul

AN ojels ejeq piemy

WMVYHOW A1 18pIQ0) BSBUDING/AUBWRINI0I JOBJUOY UON 588301y piemy

60 X0g Od Zoul ssaippy BYIO JUBWSIND0IY JO adAL

19845 UleN "M 92

J8ur SS2IppPY

Joulsig ewdojaas o1wouoog AsjieA YMEUOW

JweN Iopuap 14

V/N - 8187 peiad

Q3 LLINGNSNN
$202/52/€0

smels
o1 uny

£202Z/1¢/z1 Buipuz JBBA [BOS]

fouaby juswidoaaq feLsnpu| Aunod 0besiO 10 Hodoy JusuiaInddid

SELAE RO SRR ELE R AT ck e ey SRR R




¥1 jo L1 obed

junowy ay} ueyy

uopduosag §897 S| anjep j9ieN

J9pIACId o103 uaWBIN20Id Hedq ay3 Aym urejdxg
ieaj [edstd

S8lels payun Aiunod 95'v91°9% o4 pepuadx3 junouwly
uoifay/asuinoid unowy

¥ snid SNjeA Joiel Hied

106E1 apo) jeisod ajeg pug

AN a)els ajeq piemy
NOLWVYHONIG A0 1BPIO 9SBUIINGAUSWBINI0I JOBIUOD) UON $S920d¢ piemy
Zour ssalppy sayddng/saRIpowwo) juswannoid jo adAy

py qnio Aiunod g9 Laul ssalippy SEC) PUB DL}08]T 8]BlS YOA MBN SWBN JOPUBA 0z

junowy ayj ueyy

uonduosag SS37 Si anjeA J9NIeN

uopowoid pue Bupasiew ‘sesusisuod ‘Buues g uoleonpl juswiaInNoold e ayy Aym ugeydxg
1834 fesstd

Ssjels pejiun Anuno) 00'000°G% 104 pepuadxy Junowy

uoiBay/asuaoid junowy

v snid S{eA el Hed

1]344} 8po) |e1sod ajeq pug

AN ajels ajeq piemy

ANVEY A0 18P0 BSBUDINAUBLIBINDGIA JOBIUOD UON S$S890id piemy

Zaur ssauppy SA0IAISS |BUOISSB)0Id JBUI0 uawWBIN0Id Jo adA}

oAy uolbulysem 111

joury ssaippy

Od3 SAN

BuIeN JOPUBA 61

V/N : 8j8Q payus)
Q3Liinansnn ‘snelg
¥20¢2/s2/e0 ‘eje(] uny

£202/18/21 Buipuz Jea, jeosty

Aoueby justudoas( [eLisnpu) Aunosy 0b9s)O 10j Hodey JuBWBIND0Id

EECALEZ LI RO LT DA 1G]




v1 jo g1 ebed

junowy ayj uey

uonduosag SS9 SI anjeA 19NiepN

sebeyoed aouRINSU; [BIDBLILLOYD JUBLUBIND0IY ed syl Aym ugejdxz
iea ) [easid

sajelg pelun Aunod £1°190'98$ 104 pepuedx3g junowy

uolBsy/eauinoid £1°190'9¢$ junowy

¥ shid £1°190°9E% anjep Joxen ied

#0061 apo) jeisod 810Z/LE/CL ajeq pug

vd ajels 2102/LL aje( piemy

QAMNAD Vive A10 pig eAngadwon-UoN - Pesu) Auoyiny $S3201d piemy

001 suns Zaul ssaippy S82IAI8G jBDuUBUL] JUBLLBINDOI jO adA}

eze|d ejeg suQ

jaury sseJppy

Auedwon soueinsu; eydiepeliyd

swieN Jopusp Ze

yoddns BuioBuo ‘eipsw

junowy ayj ueyy

{enos “Jajuan Buluies] pue mop 05as)() 10} SEOIAIBS SANEBID ‘JOBIUOD uonduosaq $$97 S ONjeA JojJEN
eipaLl [B00s ‘uoiedsijgnd 1§ uonealo Hodel jenuue ‘slsqem/obolpueig JUDWBIND0Id ajeq ayy Aum urejdxgy
Jea ) feostd

S8jels pajun Anunod 00'62Z'6v% o4 papuedx3 junowy

uoiBayj/adsuinoid 00°'s2Z'6¥$ junowy

¥ shid SNjeA JaXieN Jeq

8veet 8po) jeysod ajeq pu3z

AN 2je18 v102/82/5 2je(g piemy

HOIMLYVYH Ao pig eAnpadwon - enuod Aloyiny S§S8201d piemy

Zauj ssaippy saoines Bupinsuon juslWwIaIND0Id Jo adAL

LUl sSaippy sAneal) ayppeded owieN JOpusA 1z

vi¢ xog Od

Y/N  8ie(] payilied
A3 LLINENSNN smes
y20Z/STIE0 “ejeq uny

£202/1€/2) Bulpuz Jea |eosid

Aouafy uswdoaag |euisnpu) Aunod 06ss)0 10} HodaY JUSWISINDOLY

CLLAsEg S R BEDER RN T B2 ERLFERA0




¥1 jo g ebed

junowy ay) uey)

uonduasaq $$97 S oNjeA Jodel

sjuelnsuo?) Bunaiep JUBswWBINvId Jie4 ayy Aym urejdxsy
Ieaj [eosiy

$81BIS palun Anunos 00°0$ 104 papusdxg junowry
uoiBayjeoulnoid 0008 junowy

¥ snid 000$ anjep jeyiep Jeg

0lict apoQ fejsod ajeq puz

AN aels 220e/2e/9 ajeq piemy

WYHLV] Aud pig sAledwod-UoN - Joedjuo) Auoyiny $8800.d piemy

Zaur ssalppy

saoinleg Buginsuon

JuswWainooid jo adAp

peoy uopnoT £FS LU SSaIppY spuelg JUBIGIA aweN Jopuap R7A
unowly ayj uey

uonduossq SS87 S| aNjeA J9NJEN

Buipuny y(13 pue DYy 1o} uoneziuebio diysisquaw JuBWaIND0L4 1eq oy Aym urejdxy
1ea A [edsid

Sale}S pajiun Anunod 000% 104 pepuadxg junowy

uoifey/eouiroid junowy

yi2€ ¥ shid anjep jayien Jied

106€1 2poJ [e1sod ajeq pu3

AN ajels ajeq piemy

NOLAWVHONIg Aup JBPIQ) 8SBYOING/IUBWSIND0Id 10810 UON 59001 piemy

ZZeH Zoaur ssalppy Yo JUBLWIBIND0IG jO odA )

198415 LNOD &Y

jour] ssaippy

pieog wewdosasq pue Bujuueld jeucibey jse3 181} weyinos

BUIBN JOPUBA £

VIN : 8jeq pelsd

€202/1€/21 Buipus JeoL jeosid
Q31L1INGNSNN snieis

¥202/S2/E0 |reg uny Aousby juswdojeraq jelisnpu; Alunosy 0bas)( 10} Lodey JuswiaInNd0ld

Ly wacrrpre v scare sy e soeedae p




¥1 jo ¢} obed

SJUBSIIIo ) [BUoIPPY

V/N 1 8 peUlISY £Z0Z/4€/2) Bulpug 1ea4 18osi4
Q3L LINGNSNN smes
¥202/52/€0 Bleq uny Aouaby wewdojeaa( jeuisnpul Aunoy ofies) Joj Lodey Jusuamooid




L jo | ebed

SIGAUILIGT [eUCHIPPY

/suodai-pue-sjusLWno0p/0I950 ¢ SIUBUISBAU] JO Jipne [enuue

-pue-epi-ayl-inoge/wod mouobasioysdny SBA SH Ulim UOi0aUUO0D Ul AJLoyiny sy} 0} Jays] juswsbeuew e penssi Joypne juspuadapul SAILOYINY BY] SBH b
/SH0da1-pUB-SIUSLUNJIOP/21300

-pue-epi-ayi-1noge/uiod mouobasioisdiy SBA JIVd $0 (J)(g)szez uonoas Ag pasinbai se sjuswsaAul Jo Upne juspuadapu; ue sasy AJuoyiny aul pia ‘¢
SBA ¢Ajjenuue paaocidde pue pamainal ssulfepinb JuswsaAul S AlIoOYINY 8y) aly Fa

/SHodal-puUe-sjusandop/oId00 évd 10 (9)
-pue-gpi-syi-jnoge/wod mouobasioy/sdiy SOA GzZ6Z uonoag Aq pasinbel se pouad Buiodal ayj 10} Hodoy JusWISsAU| jenuuy ue paledaid Ajuoyiny ay) sep 1
(a1qeonddy J1) 18N asuodsay uonsanyd

SN s £202/1€/2) Bulpul Jee) eosi]
Q3 LLINGNSNN snielg
p2oz/szico 1 eeg uny fousby ewdojeaa( jeuisnpui Auno) obas]Q Joj Hodey Justsaauj

yeAan s o il B bocla ey e L e L3 rY







DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY
DATED: MARCH 26, 2024

COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

AND

BBL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, LLC

CONTRACTOR AGENCY AND INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT

DATED AS OF MARCH 1, 2024

RELATING TO THE PREMISES LOCATED AT 4882 STATE
HIGHWAY 28 IN TOWN OF HARTWICK, OTSEGO COUNTY, NEW
YORK.

25022372v2 028260.00037



TABLE OF CONTENTS

(This Table of Contents is not part of this Contractor Agency and Indemnification
Agreement and is for convenience of reference only.)

PAGE
PARTIES ..ottt ettt et e eb e e sme s s e b s som s se s ah e bbb st s s b b s bn s 1
RECITALS ..ttt sestt et eb s s e e e s st a st s e s b b eb b e s ebassss b sbsassesnstenss 1
ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS
Section 1.1, DEfINILIONS ...oveuimieeieririiinireee ettt ettt it
Section 1.2. INEEIPIEIALION. .c.eveieeeeecir ettt eer st b s
ARTICLE 11
REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES
AND COVENANTS
Section 2.1. Representations, Warranties and Covenants of the Agency ......ccoceceevecvininiiicnininninn,
Section 2.2.  Representations, Warranties and Covenants of the Contractor...........ccoccoevvivinicerveeneennennn
ARTICLE U1

UNDERTAKING AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT

Section 3.1. Acquisition, Construction and Installation of the Project Facility ......ccccoeevvevinrnneinnvnnnacn,

ARTICLE 1V

TERM AND INSURANCE

Section 4.1. TEr O ABICOIMENT. ... uveiiiinirerreriericsreettereesresie st e seerteseeestesseesesseareesseressssssnsessessreensesiarsensans
Section 4.2. INSUranNce REQUITEd .....eoviriiiiiieiricreni ettt et s e eaereetesmr e esenesestsssnsesesmesannenerenes
Section 4.3. Additional Provisions Respecting INSUMance .......ccoccoviveeiiecnmminicninnnnsssees
ARTICLE V
SPECIAL COVENANTS
Section 5.1. Hold Harmless ProviSIONs ...ttt et es e erene e srecsenenens
@

25022372v2 028260,00037



ARTICLE VI

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 6.1. Events of Default Defined .........cccoeoiiivenoniiiiinn e
Section 6.2. Remedies 0n Defanll ..o s
Section 6.3. Remedies CUMUIALIVE ....ovveriiir ettt es e s e snenessnassn s ensssesaas
Section 6.4. Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees and EXPenses ......cceevvvviririnienicion e
Section 6.5.  No Additional Waiver Implied by One WaiVer......c.coccviiirniccniiricninnnensisenninns
ARTICLE VI
MISCELLANEOUS
SECHON 7.1, INOICES ceioreriiirrere ittt erree e eieene st e e st ese s bt oo s s se s a e s s be s b s s R e s s et e as e s et sae s e s sres s anscbnrnens
Section 7.2, BINAING EIFEC.c..ooiiiiiiiiie et e e
Section 7.3. SEVETADIILY 1ueevvereciiertet ettt ettt s et be bt n
Section 7.4. AMENAMENT.....eiiiiieieieiier ettt re et s e see e s e e be st e ans e e tstbs s resanent oo s s are s e s e b esne s
Section 7.5. Execution Of COUNEIPAITS ...ecvvircririreereeerr ettt sse st sbae st b s ns s nerans
Section 7.6. ApPPHCAbIE LaW..ccoouiiiii et
Section 7.7. Survival of ObHGAONS ...ccc.eiieiiiiteccciieccr et s
Section 7.8.  Table of Contents and Section Headings Not Controlling..........cccoovvniniinriiesinneivieinnen.
Section 7.9.  No Recourse; Special Obligation. ...t
TESTIMONIUM. .....oiiiitieirtireiieristebe b esaebes st et s st es e st et sat et aessae s esesaeerdssensesbssserasseaa b sassasnesesasbins
SIGNATURES ... .ottt ese e es et eae sttt sttt e h e e et e s st re e s enese e b et eae s e s e st sb s s s b b e s be s san st ensbn b
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS ...ttt sttt sres e es et sesst sttt e ses st st et ese srmes s e s e e e sabebt et s ebssbasassb s sasaesrin

(i)

25022372v2 028260.00037



CONTRACTOR AGENCY AND INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT

THIS CONTRACTOR AGENCY AND INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT dated as of March
1, 2024 (the “Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement”) by and between COUNTY OF
OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, a public benefit corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of New York having an office for the transaction of business located at 189
Main Street, Suite 500, Oneonta, New York (the “Agency”), and BBL. CONSTRUCTION SERVICES,
LLC, a limited liability company duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York
having an office for the transaction of business located at 302 Washington Avenue Extension, Albany, New
York (the “Contractor™);

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New York (the
“Enabling Act”) was duly enacted into law as Chapter 1030 of the Laws of 1969 of the State of New York;
and

WHEREAS, the Enabling Act authorizes and provides for the creation of industrial development
agencies for the benefit of the several counties, cities, villages and towns in the State of New York (the
“State”) and empowers such agencies, among other things, to acquire, construct, reconstruct, lease,
improve, maintain, equip and dispose of land and any building or other improvement, and all real and
personal properties, including, but not limited to, machinery and equipment deemed necessary in
connection therewith, whether or not now in existence or under construction, which shall be suitable for
manufacturing, warehousing, research, commercial or industrial purposes, in order to advance the job
opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State and to improve
their standard of living; and

WHEREAS, the Enabling Act further authorizes each such agency to lease or sell any or all of its
facilities for the purpose of carrying out any of its corporate purposes to mortgage and pledge any or all of
its facilities, whether then owned or thereafter acquired, and to pledge the revenues and receipts from the
lease or sale thereof; and

WHEREAS, the Agency was created, pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of the
Enabling Act, by Chapter 252 of the Laws of 1973 of the State (collectively, with the Enabling Act, the
“Act”) and is empowered under the Act to undertake the Project (as hereinafter defined) in order to so
advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State
and improve their standard of living; and

WHEREAS, on December 29, 2023 (the “Closing™), the Agency granted certain financial
assistance to Skyline Hospitality LLC (the “Company”), in connection with a project (the “Project”) for the
benefit of the Company, said Project to include the following: (A) (1) the acquisition of an interest in
approximately 6.1503 acres of land located at 4882 State Highway 28 (Tax Map No. 146.00-1-26.04) in
the Town of Hartwick, Otsego County, New York (the “Land”), (2) the construction on the Land of a new
building to contain approximately 60,000 square feet of space (the “Facility”) and (3) the acquisition and
installation of certain machinery and equipment therein and thereon (collectively, the “Equipment”) (the
Land, the Facility and the Equipment hereinafter referred to as the “Project Facility”), all of the foregoing
to be owned and operated by the Company as a hotel facility and other directly and indirectly related
activities; (B) the granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the
Act) with respect to the foregoing, including potential exemptions from certain sales and use taxes, real

25022372v2 028260.00037



property taxes and real estate transfer taxes (collectively, the “Financial Assistance™); and (C) the lease of
the Project Facility to the Company pursuant to the terms of a lease agreement dated as of December 1,
2023 (the “Lease Agreement”) by and between the Agency and the Company; and

WHEREAS, simultaneously with the execution and delivery of the Lease Agreement (the
“Closing™), (A) the Company executed and delivered to the Agency (1) a certain lease to agency dated as
of December 1, 2023 (the “Lease to Agency”) by and between the Company, as landlord, and the Agency,
as tenant, pursuant to which the Company will lease to the Agency a portion of the Land and all
improvements now or hereafter located on said portion of the Land (collectively, the “Leased Premises™);
(2) a certain license agreement dated as of December 1, 2023 (the “License to Agency”) by and between
the Company, as licensor, and the Agency, as licensee, pursuant to which the Company will grant to the
Agency (a) a license to enter upon the balance of the Land (the “Licensed Premises™) for the purpose of
undertaking and completing the Project and (b) in the event of an occurrence of an Event of Default by the
Company, an additional license to enter upon the Licensed Premises for the purpose of pursuing its remedies
under the Lease Agreement; (3) a certain bill of sale dated as of December 1, 2023 (the “Bill of Sale to
Agency”), which conveys to the Agency all right, title and interest of the Company in the Equipment; (4)
the Mortgage (as defined in the Lease Agreement) and other security documents and related documents
from the Agency and the Company to the Lender (as defined in the Lease Agreement) with respect to the
Project, which Mortgage granted a lien on and security interest in the Project Facility to secure the Loan
(as defined in the Lease Agreement) from the Lender to the Company with respect to the Project; (B) the
Company and the Agency executed and delivered (1) a certain payment in lieu of tax agreement dated as
of December 1, 2023 (the “Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement”) by and between the Agency and the
Company, pursuant to which the Company will agree to pay certain payments in lieu of taxes with respect
to the Project Facility, (2) a certain recapture agreement (the “Section 875 GML Recapture Agreement”)
by and between the Company and the Agency, required by the Act, regarding the recovery or recapture of
certain sales and use taxes and (3) a certain uniform agency project agreement dated as of December 1,
2023 (the “Uniform Agency Project Agreement”) relating to the granting of the Financial Assistance by the
Agency to the Company, (C) the Agency filed with the assessor and mailed to the chief executive officer
of each “affected tax jurisdiction™ (within the meaning of such quoted term in Section 854(16) of the Act)
a copy of a New York State Board of Real Property Services Form 412-a (the form required to be filed by
the Agency in order for the Agency to obtain a real property tax exemption with respect to the Project
Facility under Section 412-a of the Real Property Tax Law) (the “Real Property Tax Exemption Form”)
relating to the Project Facility and the Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement, (D) the Agency executed and
delivered to the Company a sales tax exemption letter (the “Sales Tax Exemption Letter”) to ensure the
granting of the sales tax exemption which forms a part of the Financial Assistance, (E) the Agency filed
with the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance the form entitled “IDA Appointment of
Project Operator or Agent for Sales Tax Purposes” (the form required to be filed pursuant to Section 874(9)
of the Act) (the “Thirty-Day Sales Tax Report”), and (F) various certificates relating to the Project (the
“Closing Documents™); and

WHEREAS, the Company requested that the Agency appoint the Contractor as subagent of the
Agency in order for the Contractor to undertake and complete the Project Facility; and

WHEREAS, the Agency now proposes to enter into this Contractor Agency and Indemnification
Agreement in order to appoint the Contractor as sub-agent of the Agency to undertake the Project and
thereby grant to the Contractor an exemption from New York State sales and use taxes, and the Contractor
desires to act as sub-agent of the Agency to undertake the acquisition, reconstruction and installation of the
Project Facility and to indemnify the Agency in connection with the undertaking of the Project; and

WHEREAS, all things necessary to constitute this Contractor Agency and Indemnification
Agreement a valid and binding agreement by and between the parties hereto in accordance with the terms

-2.

25022372v2 028260.00037



hereof have been done and performed, and the creation, execution and delivery of this Contractor Agency
and Indemnification Agreement have in all respects been duly authorized by the Agency and the Contractor;

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION OF THE PREMISES AND THE

MUTUAL COVENANTS HEREINAFTER CONTAINED, THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY
FORMALLY COVENANT, AGREE AND BIND THEMSELVES AS FOLLOWS, TO WIT:

25022372v2 028260.00037



ARTICLE |

DEFINITIONS

SECTION 1.1. DEFINITIONS. The following words and terms used in this Contractor Agency and
Indemnification Agreement shall have the respective meanings set forth below, unless the context or use
indicates another or different meaning or intent:

“Act” means Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State, as amended from
time to time, together with Chapter 252 of the Laws of 1973 Laws of the State, constituting Section 910-a
of the General Municipal Law of the State, as amended from time to time.

“Agency” means (A) County of Otsego Industrial Development Agency and its successors and
assigns, and (B) any public benefit corporation or other public corporation resulting from or surviving any
consolidation or merger to which County of Otsego Industrial Development Agency or its successors or
assigns may be a party.

“Applicable Laws” means all statutes, codes, laws, acts, ordinances, orders, judgments, decrees,
injunctions, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, authorizations, directions and requirements of all
Governmental Authorities, foreseen or unforeseen, ordinary or extraordinary, which now or at any time
hereafter may be applicable to or affect the Project Facility or any part thereof or the conduct of work on
the Project Facility or any part thereof or to the operation, use, manner of use or condition of the Project
Facility or any part thereof (the applicability of such statutes, codes, laws, acts, ordinances, orders, rules,
regulations, directions and requirements to be determined both as if the Agency were the owner of the
Project Facility and as if the Company and not the Agency were the owner of the Project Facility), including
but not limited to (1) applicable building, zoning, environmental, planning and subdivision laws,
ordinances, rules and regulations of Governmental Authorities having jurisdiction over the Project Facility,
(2) restrictions, conditions or other requirements applicable to any permits, licenses or other governmental
authorizations issued with respect to the foregoing, and (3) judgments, decrees or injunctions issued by any
court or other judicial or quasi-judicial Governmental Authority.

“Authorized Representative” means the person or persons at the time designated to act on behalf
of the Agency or the Contractor, as the case may be, by written certificate furnished to the Contractor and
the Agency containing the specimen signature of each such person and signed on behalf of (A) the Agency
by its Chairman, Vice Chairman or Chief Executive Officer as such other person may be authorized by
resolution of the members of the Agency to act on behalf of the Agency, and (B) the Contractor by any
authorized member or such other person as may be authorized in writing by the members of the Contractor
to act on behalf of the Contractor.

“Closing Date” means the date of Closing.

“Company” means Skyline Hospitality LL.C, a limited liability company duly organized and
existing under the laws of the State of New York, and its successors and assigns.

“Completion Date” shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the Lease Agreement.

“Contractor” means BBL Construction Services, LLC, a limited liability company duly organized
and existing under the laws of the State of New York.

25022372v2 028260.00037



“Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement” means this agency and indemnification
agreement dated as of March 1, 2024 by and between the Agency and the Contractor, as said agency and
indemnification agreement may be amended or supplemented from time to time.

“Contractor Documents” means the Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement, the
Contractor Section 875 GML Recapture Agreement and all other instruments and documents related thereto
and executed in connection therewith, and any other instrument or document supplemental there each as
amended from time to time.

“Contractor Section 875 GML Recapture Agreement” means the Section 875 GML recapture
agreement dated as of March 1, 2024, by and between the Agency and the Contractor as said Section 875
GML recapture agreement may be amended or supplemented from time to time.

“Default Interest Rate” means a per annum rate of interest equal to twelve percent (12%) per
annum.

“Equipment” means all equipment, fixtures, machines, building materials and items of personal
property and all appurtenances intended to be acquired in connection with the completion of the Project.

“Event of Default” means an event of default under Section 6.1 hereof.

“Financial Assistance” for purpose of this Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement shall
mean exemption from New York State sales and use tax.

“Governmental Authority” means the United States of America, the State, any other state and any
political subdivision thereof, and any agency, department, commission, court, board, bureau or
instrumentality of any of them.

“Lease Agreement” means the lease agreement dated as of December 1, 2023 by and between the
Agency, as landlord, and the Company, as tenant, pursuant to which, among other things, the Agency has
leased the Project Facility to the Company, as said lease agreement may be amended or supplemented from
time to time.

“Lien” means any interest in Property securing an obligation owed to a Person, whether such
interest is based on the common law, statute or contract, and including but not limited to a security interest
arising from a mortgage, encumbrance, pledge, conditional sale or trust receipt or a lease, consignment or
bailment for security purposes or a judgment against the Contractor. The term “Lien” includes reservations,
exceptions, encroachments, projections, easements, rights of way, covenants, conditions, restrictions, leases
and other similar title exceptions and encumbrances, including but not limited to mechanics’,
materialmen’s, warehousemen’s and carriers’ liens and other similar encumbrances, affecting real property.
For purposes of the Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement, a Person shall be deemed to be the
owner of Property which it has acquired or holds subject to a conditional sale agreement or other
arrangement pursuant to which title to the Property has been retained by or vested in some other Person for
security purposes.

“Permitted Encumbrances” means and includes with respect to the Contractor and its Subsidiaries
(if any): (A) utility, access and other easements, restrictions, rights of way, exceptions, encroachments,
reservations or defects which, in the aggregate, do not interfere materially with the continued use of such
properties for the purposes for which they are used and do not affect materially the value thereof;
(B) mechanics’, materialmen’s, warehousemen’s, carriers’ and other similar Liens; (C) Liens for taxes,
assessments and utility charges and (D) any liens in favor of the Company’s lender for the Project Facility.

-5-
25022372v2 028260.00037



“Person” means an individual, partnership, limited liability company, corporation, trust,
unincorporated organization or Governmental Authority.

“Plans and Specifications” means the description of the Project Facility appearing in the fifth recital
clause to this Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement.

“Project” shall have the meaning set forth in the fifth recital clause to the Lease Agreement.
“Project Facility” means, collectively, the Land, the Facility and the Equipment.

“Property” means any interest in any kind of property or asset, whether real, personal or mixed, or
tangible or intangible.

“Uniform Agency Project Agreement” means the uniform agency project agreement dated as of
December 1, 2023 by and between the Agency and the Company, pursuant to which the Agency has agreed
to grant certain Financial Assistance to the Company, subject to certain conditions, as such agreement may
be amended or supplemented from time to time.

SECTION 1.2. INTERPRETATION. In this Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement, unless
the context otherwise requires:

(A) the terms “hereby”, “hereof”, “herein”, “hereunder” and any similar terms as used in this
Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement, refer to this Contractor Agency and Indemnification
Agreement, and the term “heretofore” shall mean before, and the term “hereafter” shall mean after, the date
of this Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement;

(B) words of masculine gender shall mean and include correlative words of feminine and neuter
genders;

(o) words importing the singular number shall mean and include the plural number, and vice
versa; and

D) any certificates, letters or opinions required to be given pursuant to this Contractor Agency
and Indemnification Agreement shall mean a signed document attesting to or acknowledging the
circumstances, representations, opinions of law or other matters therein stated or set forth or setting forth
matters to be determined pursuant to this Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement.

25022372v2 028260.00037



ARTICLE I

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES
AND COVENANTS

SECTION 2.1. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS OF THE AGENCY. The
Agency makes the following representations, warranties and covenants as the basis for the undertakings on
its part herein contained:

(A) The Agency is duly established under the provisions of the Act and has the power to enter
into this Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement and to carry out its obligations hereunder and
thereunder. Based upon the representations of the Company as to the utilization of the Project Facility, the
Project will constitute a “project”, as such quoted term is defined in the Act. By proper official action, the
Agency has been duly authorized to execute, deliver and perform this Contractor Agency and
Indemnification Agreement.

(B) Neither the execution and delivery of this Contractor Agency and Indemnification
Agreement, the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby nor the fulfillment of or
compliance with the provisions of this Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement will conflict
with or result in a breach by the Agency of any of the terms, conditions or provisions of the Act, the by-
laws of the Agency or any order, judgment, agreement or instrument to which the Agency is a party or by
which the Agency is bound, or will constitute a default by the Agency under any of the foregoing.

SECTION 2.2. REPRESENTATIONS, = WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS OF THE
CONTRACTOR. The Contractor makes the following representations, warranties and covenants as the
basis for the undertakings on its part herein contained to the best of its knowledge:

(A) The Contractor is a limited liability company duly organized and validly existing under the
laws of the State of New York, is duly authorized to do business in the State, has the power to enter into
this Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement and to carry out its obligations hereunder, has been
duly authorized to execute, deliver and perform this Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement
and is qualified to do business in all jurisdictions in which failure to do so would have a material adverse
effect on its operations or ownership of Properties. This Contractor Agency and Indemnification
Agreement, and the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly authorized by all necessary action by
the Contractor’s members.

B) Neither the execution and delivery of this Contractor Agency and Indemnification
Agreement, the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby nor the fulfillment of or compliance
with the provisions hereof will (1) result in a breach of or conflict with any of the terms, conditions or
provisions of the Contractor’s articles of organization or operating agreement or any other company
restriction or any agreement, instrument, order or judgment to which the Contractor is a party or by which
the Contractor or any of its Property is bound, or will constitute a default under any of the foregoing, or
result in the creation or imposition of any Lien of any nature upon the Project Facility under the terms of
any such instrument or agreement, other than the Permitted Encumbrances, (2) require consent under
(which has not been heretofore received) or result in a breach of or default under any credit agreement,
indenture, purchase agreement, mortgage, deed of trust, commitment, guaranty or other agreement or
instrument to which the Contractor is a party or by which it or any of its Property may be bound or affected,
or (3) require consent (which has not been heretofore obtained) under or conflict with or violate any existing
law, rule, regulation, judgment, order, writ, injunction or decree of any government, governmental

25022372v2 028260.00037



instrumentality or court (domestic or foreign) having jurisdiction over the Contractor or any of the Property
of the Contractor.

© This Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement constitutes, or upon its execution
and delivery in accordance with the terms thereof will constitute, a valid and legally binding obligation of
the Contractor, enforceable in accordance with its terms.

(D) Reserved.

(E) The work performed by the Contractor and the operation thereof will comply with Article
8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as
amended, and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conversation
of the State of New York (collectively, “SEQRA™) and with all Applicable Laws, and the Contractor will
defend and save the Agency and its officers, members, agents and employees harmless from all fines and
penalties due to failure to comply therewith. The Contractor shall cause all notices as required by all
Applicable Laws to be given, and shall comply or cause compliance with all Applicable Laws applying to
or affecting the conduct of work on the Project, and the Contractor will defend and save the Agency and its
officers, members, agents and employees harmless from all fines and penalties due to failure to comply
therewith with respect to the Contractor work.

(F) Reserved.

Q) The Contractor acknowledges receipt of notice of Section 874(8) of the Act, which requires
that the Contractor as sub-agent of the Agency must annually file a statement with the New York State
Department of Taxation and Finance, on a form and in such a manner as is prescribed by the Commissioner
of Taxation and Finance, of the value of all sales tax exemptions claimed by the Contractor under the
authority granted by the Agency.

(H) The Contractor acknowledges receipt of notice of Section 874(9) of the Act, which requires
the Contractor, as sub-agent of the Agency, to file within thirty (30) days of the date the Contractor is
appointed the sub-agent of the Contractor, a statement with the New York State Department of Taxation
and Finance, on a form (the “Thirty-Day Sales Tax Report”) and in such a manner as is prescribed by the
Commissioner of Taxation and Finance, identifying the Contractor as sub-agent of the Agency, setting forth
the taxpayer identification number of the Contractor, giving a brief description of the goods and/or services
intended to be exempted from sales taxes as a result of such appointment as sub-agent, indicating a rough
estimate of the value of the goods and/or services to which such appointment as sub-agent relates, indicating
the date when such designation as sub-agent became effective and indicating the date upon which such
designation as sub-agent shall cease.

Q) The Contractor acknowledges receipt of notice of Section 858-b of the Act, which requires
that the Contractor list new employment opportunities created as a result of the Project with the following
entities (hereinafter, the “JTPA Entities”): (1) the New York State Department of Labor Community
Services Division and (2) the administrative entity of the service delivery area created by the Federal Job
‘Training Partnership Act (the “JTPA”)(P.L. No. 97-300) in which the Project Facility is located (while
currently cited in Section 858-b of the Act, the Federal Job Training Partnership Act was repealed effective
June 1, 2000, and has been supplanted by the Workplace Investment Act of 1998 (P.L. No. 105-220)). The
Contractor agrees, where practicable, to first consider for such new employment opportunities persons
eligible to participate in federal job training partnership programs who shall be referred by the JTPA
Entities.

25022372v2 028260.00037



ARTICLE 11

UNDERTAKING AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT

SECTION 3.1. ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION AND INSTALLATION OF THE PROJECT
FACILITY. (A) Pursuant to the contract between the Company and the Contractor (the “Contractor
Contract”), the Contractor shall, on behalf of the Agency, promptly acquire, construct and install, as
applicable, the Project Facility or cause the acquisition, construction and installation of the Project Facility.

B) No material change in the Plans and Specifications shall be made unless the Agency shall
have consented thereto in writing (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed).

(&) The Agency hereby appoints the Contractor as its true and lawful sub-agent to perform the
following in compliance with the terms, purposes and intent of this Contractor Agency and Indemnification
Agreement and in accordance with the Contractor Contract, and the Contractor hereby accepts such
appointment: (1) to acquire, construct and install the Project Facility, (2) to make, execute, acknowledge
and deliver any contracts, orders, receipts, writings and instructions with any other Persons, and in general
to do all things which may be requisite or proper, all for the acquisition, construction and installation of the
Project Facility, with the same powers and with the same validity as the Agency could do if acting in its
own behalf, provided that the liability of the Agency thereunder shall be limited to the moneys made
available therefore by the Contractor and advanced for such purposes by the Contractor pursuant to this
Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement, (3) to pay all fees, costs and expenses incurred in the
acquisition, construction and installation of the Project Facility from funds made available therefor in
accordance with this Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement, and (4) to ask, demand, sue for,
levy, recover and receive all such sums of money, debts, dues and other demands whatsoever which may
be due, owing and payable to the Agency under the terms of any contract, order, receipt or writing in
connection with the acquisition, construction and installation of the Project Facility and to enforce the
provisions of any contract, agreement, obligation, bond or other performance security in connection with
the same.

D) The Contractor has given or will give or cause to be given all notices and has complied or
will comply or cause compliance with all Applicable Laws applying to or affecting the conduct of work on
the Project Facility, and the Contractor will defend, indemnify and save the Agency and its officers,
members, agents, servants and employees harmless from all fines and penalties due to failure to comply
therewith. All permits and licenses necessary for the prosecution of the work of the Contractor on the
Project Facility shall be procured promptly by the Contractor.

&) To the extent required by Applicable Law, the Contractor, as sub-agent of the Agency, will
cause (1) compliance with the requirements of Article 8 of the New York Labor Law, and (2) any
contractors, subcontractors and other persons involved in the acquisition, construction and installation of
the Project Facility through the Contractor to comply with Article 8 of the New York Labor Law. The
covenant in this subsection is not intended as a representation that Article 8 of the New York Labor Law
applies to the Project.

£ Pursuant to the Contractor Contract, the Contractor agrees, for the benefit of the Agency,
to undertake and complete the Project and to pay all such sums as may be required in connection therewith.
Title to portions of the Project Facility acquired, constructed and installed at the Contractor’s cost shall
immediately upon such acquisition, construction or installation vest in the Agency upon payment by the
Company. The Contractor shall execute, deliver and record or file such instruments as the Agency may
request in order to perfect or protect the Agency’s title to such portions of the Project Facility.

-9.

25022372v2 028260.00037



ARTICLE IV

TERM AND INSURANCE

SECTION 4.1. TERM OF AGREEMENT. The term of this Contractor Agency and Indemnification
Agreement shall terminate on June 30, 2025 (unless extended in writing by the Agency (in its absolute
discretion)) or earlier if Contractor provides notice of such termination. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
upon termination of the Lease Agreement for whatever reason, this Contractor Agency and Indemnification
Agreement shall automatically terminate without the necessity of any action by either or both of the Agency
or the Contractor.

SECTION 4.2. INSURANCE REQUIRED. During the term of this Contractor Agency and
Indemnification Agreement, the Contractor shall maintain insurance with respect to the Project Facility
against such risks and for such amounts as are customarily insured against by businesses of like size and
type, paying, as the same become due and payable, all premiums with respect thereto, including, but not
necessarily limited to:

A) Insurance protecting the interests of the Contractor as insured and the Agency as additional
insured on a primary non-contributing basis, as their interests may appear, against loss or damage to the
Project Facility by fire, lightning, vandalism, malicious mischief and other perils normally insured against
with a uniform extended coverage endorsement, such insurance at all times to be in an amount acceptable
to the Contractor and the Agency.

(B) To the extent applicable, workers’ compensation insurance, disability benefits insurance
and such other forms of insurance which the Contractor is required by law to provide, covering loss resulting
from injury, sickness, disability or death of employees of the Contractor who are located at or assigned to
the Project Facility or who are responsible for the acquisition, reconstruction and installation of the Project
Facility.

© Insurance protecting the Contractor and the Agency, as an additional insured, against loss
or losses from liabilities imposed by law or assumed in any written contract (including, without limitation,
the contractual liability assumed by the Contractor under Section 5.1 of this Contractor Agency and
Indemnification Agreement) and arising from personal injury or death or damage to the Property of others
caused by any accident or occurrence, with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per person per accident or
occurrence on account of personal injury, including death resulting therefrom, and $500,000 per accident
or occurrence on account of damage to the Property of others, excluding liability imposed upon the
Contractor by any applicable workers’ compensation law, and a separate umbrella liability policy protecting
the Contractor and the Agency with a limit of not less than $5,000,000.

D) THE AGENCY DOES NOT IN ANY WAY REPRESENT THAT THE INSURANCE
SPECIFIED HEREIN, WHETHER IN SCOPE OR COVERAGE OR LIMITS OF COVERAGE, IS
ADEQUATE OR SUFFICIENT TO PROTECT THE CONTRACTOR’S BUSINESS OR INTEREST.

SECTION 4.3. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS RESPECTING INSURANCE. (A) All insurance required
by Section 4.2 hereof shall be procured and maintained in financially sound and generally recognized
responsible insurance companies selected by the Contractor and authorized to write such insurance in the
State and satisfactory and having a Best rating satisfactory to the Agency. Such insurance may be written
with deductible amounts comparable to those on similar policies carried by other companies engaged in
businesses similar in size, character and other respects to those in which the Contractor is engaged. All
policies evidencing such insurance shall name the Contractor and the Agency as insureds, as their interests

-10 -

25022372v2 028260.00037



may appear, and provide for at least thirty (30) days’ written notice to the Contractor and the Agency prior
to cancellation, lapse, reduction in policy limits or material change in coverage thereof. All insurance
required hereunder shall be in form, content and coverage satisfactory to the Agency. Certificates
satisfactory in form and substance to the Agency to evidence all insurance required hereby shall be delivered
to the Agency on or before the date of execution of this Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement.
The Contractor shall deliver to the Agency on or before the first Business Day of each calendar year
thereafter a certificate dated not earlier than the immediately preceding month reciting that there is in full
force and effect, with a term covering at least the next succeeding calendar year, insurance in the amounts
and of the types required by Sections 4.2 and 4.3 hereof. At least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of
any such policy, the Contractor shall furnish to the Agency evidence that the policy has been renewed or
replaced or is no longer required by this Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement.

(B) All premiums with respect to the insurance required by Section 4.3 hereof shall be paid by
the Contractor; provided, however, that, if the premiums are not timely paid, the Agency may pay such
premiums and the Contractor shall pay immediately upon demand all sums so expended by the Agency,
together with interest thereon at the Default Interest Rate or the maximum rate permitted by law, whichever
is less.

-11 -
25022372v2 028260.00037



ARTICLE V

SPECIAL COVENANTS

SECTION 5.1. HOLD HARMLESS PROVISIONS. (A) The Contractor hereby releases the Agency and
its members, officers, agents (other than the Contractor) and employees from, agrees that the Agency and
its members, officers, agents (other than the Contractor) and employees shall not be liable for and agrees to
indemnify, defend and hold the Agency and its members, officers, agents (other than the Contractor) and
employees harmless from and against any and all claims, causes of action, judgments, liabilities, damages,
losses, costs and expenses arising as a result of the Agency’s undertaking the Project, including, but not
limited to, (1) liability for loss or damage to Property or bodily injury to or death of any and all Persons
that may be occasioned, directly or indirectly, by any cause whatsoever pertaining to the Project Facility or
arising by reason of or in connection with the occupation or the use thereof or the presence of any Person
or Property on, in or about the Project Facility, (2) liability arising from or expense incurred by the Agency’s
acquiring, reconstructing, equipping, installing, owning, leasing or selling the Project Facility, including,
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, any sales or use taxes which may be payable with respect
to goods supplied or services rendered with respect to the Project Facility, all liabilities or claims arising as
a result of the Agency’s obligations under this Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement or the
enforcement of or defense of validity of any provision of the Contractor Agency and Indemnification
Agreement, (3) all claims arising from the exercise by the Contractor of the authority conferred on it
pursuant to Section 3.1(C) hereof, and (4) all causes of action and reasonable attorneys’ fees and other
expenses incurred in connection with any suits or actions which may arise as a result of any of the foregoing;
provided that any such claims, causes of action, judgments, liabilities, damages, losses, costs or expenses
of the Agency are not incurred or do not result from the intentional wrongdoing of the Agency or any of its
members, officers, agents (other than the Contractor) or employees. The foregoing indemnities shall apply
notwithstanding the fault or negligence in part of the Agency or any of its officers, members, agents (other
than the Contractor) or employees and notwithstanding the breach of any statutory obligation or any rule
of comparative or apportioned liability.

B) In the event of any claim against the Agency or its members, officers, agents (other than
the Contractor) or employees by any employee of the Contractor or any contractor of the Contractor or
anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable,
the obligations of the Contractor hereunder shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount
or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or such contractor under
workers’ compensation laws, disability benefits laws or other employee benefit laws.

©) To effectuate the provisions of this Section 5.1, the Contractor agrees to provide for and
insure, in the liability policies required by Section 4.2(C) of this Contractor Agency and Indemnification
Agreement, its liabilities assumed pursuant to this Section 5.1.

D) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Contractor Agency and Indemnification
Agreement, the obligations of the Contractor pursuant to this Section 5.1 shall remain in full force and
effect after the termination of this Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement until the expiration
of the period stated in the applicable statute of limitations during which a claim, cause of action or
prosecution relating to the matters herein described may be brought and the payment in full or the
satisfaction of such claim, cause of action or prosecution and the payment of all expenses, charges and costs
incurred by the Agency, or its officers, members, agents (other than the Contractor) or employees, relating
thereto.

-12-
25022372v2 028260.00037



ARTICLE VI

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

SECTION 6.1. EVENTS OF DEFAULT DEFINED. The following shall be “Events of Default” under
this Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement, and the terms “Event of Default” or “default” shall
mean, whenever they are used in this Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement, any one or more
of the following events:

(A) A default in the performance or observance of any other of the covenants, conditions or
agreements on the part of the Contractor in this Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement or the
other Contractor Documents and the continuance thereof for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice
thereof is given by the Agency to the Contractor, or, if such covenant, condition or agreement is capable of
cure but cannot be cured within such thirty (30) day period, the failure of the Contractor to commence to
cure within such thirty (30) day period and to prosecute the same with due diligence;

B) Any representation or warranty made by the Contractor herein proves to have been false at
the time it was made; or

©) The removal of the Project Facility by the Contractor, or any portion thereof, outside
Otsego County, New York, without the prior written consent of the Agency.

SECTION 6.2, REMEDIES ON DEFAULT. Whenever any Event of Default shall have occurred, the
Agency may, to the extent permitted by law, take any one or more of the following remedial steps:

(A) terminate this Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement and rescind any sales
tax exemption letter delivered by the Agency to the Contractor; or

B) take any other action at law or in equity which may appear necessary or desirable to enforce
the obligations, agreements or covenants of the Contractor under this Contractor Agency and
Indemnification Agreement.

SECTION 6.3. REMEDIES CUMULATIVE. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the
Agency is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be
cumulative and in addition to every other remedy given under this Contractor Agency and Indemnification
Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. No delay or omission to exercise any right or
power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver
thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed
expedient. In order to entitle the Agency to exercise any remedy reserved to it in this Article VI, it shall
not be necessary to give any notice, other than such notice as may be herein expressly required.

SECTION 6.4. AGREEMENT TO PAY ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND EXPENSES. In the event the
Contractor should default under any of the provisions of this Contractor Agency and Indemnification
Agreement and the Agency should employ attorneys or incur other expenses for the enforcement of
performance or observance of any obligations or agreements on the part of the Contractor herein contained,
the Contractor shall, on demand therefor, pay to the Agency the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such
other expenses so incurred, whether an action is commenced or not.

SECTION 6.5. NO ADDITIONAL WAIVER IMPLIED BY ONE WAIVER. In the event any agreement
contained herein should be breached by either party and thereafter such breach be waived by the other party,

-13-
25022372v2 028260.00037



such waiver shall be limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive any other
breach hereunder.

- 14 -
25022372v2 028260.00037



ARTICLE VI

MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 7.1. NOTICES. (A) All notices, certificates and other communications hereunder shall be in
writing and shall be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when (1) sent to the applicable address
stated below by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, or by such other means as shall provide
the sender with documentary evidence of such delivery, or (2) delivery is refused by the addressee, as
evidenced by the affidavit of the Person who attempted to effect such delivery.

B) The addresses to which notices, certificates and other communications hereunder shall be
delivered are as follows:

IF TO THE CONTRACTOR:

BBL Construction Services, LLC

302 Washington Avenue Extension

Albany, New York 12203

Attention: Stephen Obermayer, Chief Financial Officer

WITH A COPY TO:

Westfall Law PLLC

238 W. Division Street

Syracuse, New York 13204
Attention: Melody Westfall, Esq.

IF TO THE AGENCY:

County of Otsego Industrial Development Agency
189 Main Street, Suite 500

Oneonta, New York 13820

Attention: Chairman

WITH A COPY TO:

Kurt D. Schulte, Esq
12 Club Avenue
Oneonta, New York 13820

and

Hodgson Russ LLP

677 Broadway, Suite 401

Albany, New York 12207

Attention: Christopher C. Canada, Esq.

©) The Agency and the Contractor may, by notice given hereunder, designate any further or
different addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates and other communications shall be sent.

-15 -
25022372v2 028260.00037



SECTION 7.2. BINDING EFFECT. This Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement shall inure
to the benefit of the Agency and the Contractor and shall be binding upon the Agency, the Contractor and,
as permitted by this Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement, their respective successors and
assigns.

SECTION 7.3. SEVERABILITY. If any one or more of the covenants or agreements provided herein on
the part of the Agency or the Contractor to be performed shall, for any reason, be held or shall, in fact, be
inoperative, unenforceable or contrary to law in any particular case, such circumstance shall not render the
provision in question inoperative or unenforceable in any other case or circumstance. Further, if any one
or more of the phrases, sentences, clauses, paragraphs or sections herein shall be contrary to law, then such
covenant or covenants or agreement or agreements shall be deemed separable from the remaining covenants
and agreements hereof and shall in no way affect the validity of the other provisions of this Contractor
Agency and Indemnification Agreement.

SECTION 7.4. AMENDMENT. This Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement may not be
amended, changed, modified, altered or terminated, except by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
hereto.

SECTION 7.5. EXECUTION OF COUNTERPARTS. This Contractor Agency and Indemnification
Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which
shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

SECTION 7.6. APPLICABLE LAW. This Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement shall be
governed exclusively by and construed in accordance with the applicable laws of the State.

SECTION 7.7. SURVIVAL OF OBLIGATIONS. The obligations of the Contractor to provide the
indemnity required by Section 5.1 hereof shall survive the termination of this Contractor Agency and
Indemnification Agreement.

SECTION 7.8. TABLE OF CONTENTS AND SECTION HEADINGS NOT CONTROLLING. The
Table of Contents and the headings of the several Sections in this Contractor Agency and Indemnification
Agreement have been prepared for convenience of reference only and shall not control, affect the meaning
of or be taken as an interpretation of any provision of this Contractor Agency and Indemnification
Agreement.

SECTION 7.9. NO RECOURSE; SPECIAL OBLIGATION. (A) The obligations and agreements of the
Agency contained herein and any other instrument or document executed in connection therewith or
herewith, and any other instrument or document supplemental thereto or hereto, shall be deemed the
obligations and agreements of the Agency, and not of any member, officer, agent (other than the Contractor)
or employee of the Agency in his individual capacity, and the members, officers, agents (other than the
Contractor) and employees of the Agency shall not be liable personally hereon or thereon or be subject to
any personal liability or accountability based upon or in respect hereof or thereof or of any transaction
contemplated hereby or thereby.

B) The obligations and agreements of the Agency contained herein and therein shall not
constitute or give rise to an obligation of the State of New York or Otsego County, New York, and neither
the State of New York nor Otsego County, New York shall be liable hereon or thereon, and, further, such
obligations and agreements shall not constitute or give rise to a general obligation of the Agency, but rather
shall constitute limited obligations of the Agency payable solely from the revenues of the Agency derived
and to be derived from the lease, sale or other disposition of the Project Facility.

-16 -

25022372v2 028260.00037



(O] No order or decree of specific performance with respect to any of the obligations of the
Agency hereunder shall be sought or enforced against the Agency unless (1) the party seeking such order
or decree shall first have requested the Agency in writing to take the action sought in such order or decree
of specific performance, and ten (10) days shall have elapsed from the date of receipt of such request, and
the Agency shall have refused to comply with such request (or, if compliance therewith would reasonably
be expected to take longer than ten days, shall have failed to institute and diligently pursue action to cause
compliance with such request within such ten day period) or failed to respond within such notice period,
(2) if the Agency refuses to comply with such request and the Agency’s refusal to comply is based on its
reasonable expectation that it will incur fees and expenses, the party seeking such order or decree shall have
placed in an account with the Agency an amount or undertaking sufficient to cover such reasonable fees
and expenses, and (3) if the Agency refuses to comply with such request and the Agency’s refusal to comply
is based on its reasonable expectation that it or any of its members, officers, agents (other than the
Contractor) or employees shall be subject to potential liability, the party seeking such order or decree shall
(a) agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Agency and its members, officers, agents (other than
the Contractor) and employees against any liability incurred as a result of its compliance with such demand,
and (b) if requested by the Agency, furnish to the Agency satisfactory security to protect the Agency and
its members, officers, agents (other than the Contractor) and employees against all liability expected to be
incurred as a result of compliance with such request.

<17 -
25022372v2 028260.00037



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Agency and the Contractor have caused this Contractor Agency
and Indemnification Agreement to be executed in their respective names by their respective duly authorized
officers, all as of the day and year first above written.

COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

BY:

(Vice) Chairman

BBL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, LLC

BY:

Authorized Member

.18 -

25022372v2 028260.00037



STATE OF NEW YORK )
:Ss.
COUNTY OF OTSEGO )

On the __ day of March, in the year 2024, before me, the undersigned, personally appeared
, personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be
the individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed
the same in his capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument, the individual, or the person upon
behalf of which the individual acted, executed the instrument.

Notary Public

-19 -
25022372v2 028260.00037



STATE OF NEW YORK )
:ss.
COUNTY OF )

On the day of March, in the year 2024, before me, the undersigned, personally appeared
, personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory
evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me
that he executed the same in his capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument, the individual, or the
person upon behalf of which the individual acted, executed the instrument.

Notary Public

=20 -

25022372v2 028260.00037






DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY
DATED: MARCH 26, 2024

CONTRACTOR SECTION 875 GML RECAPTURE AGREEMENT
[Sales and Use Taxes]

THIS CONTRACTOR SECTION 875 GML CONTRACTOR RECAPTURE AGREEMENT (the
“Contractor Recapture Agreement”) dated as of March 1, 2024 is made by and between COUNTY OF
OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, a public benefit corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of New York having an office for the transaction of business located at 189
Main Street, Suite 500, Oneonta, New York (the “Agency”) and BBL. CONSTRUCTION SERVICES,
LLC, a limited liability company duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York
having an office for the transaction of business located at 302 Washington Avenue Extension, Albany, New
York (the “Contractor”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Title I of Article 18 A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New York, as
amended (the “Act”) was initially enacted into law by Chapter 1030 of the Laws of 1969 of the State of
New York (the “State”) and has been amended and supplemented from time to time by various laws enacted
subsequent thereto; and

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the creation of industrial development agencies for the benefit of
the several counties, cities, villages and towns in the State and empowers such agencies, among other things,
to acquire, construct, reconstruct, lease, improve, maintain, equip and sell land and any building or other
improvement, and all real and personal properties, including, but not limited to, machinery and equipment
deemed necessary in connection therewith, whether or not now in existence or under construction, which
shall be suitable for manufacturing, warehousing, research, commercial or industrial facilities, inctuding
industrial pollution control facilities, in order to advance job opportunities, health, general prosperity and
the economic welfare of the people of the State and to improve their standard of living; and

WHEREAS, the Act further authorizes each such industrial development agency to lease any or all
of its facilities at such rentals and on such other terms and conditions as it deems advisable, to issue its
bonds for the purpose of carrying out any of its corporate purposes and, as security for the payment of the
principal and redemption price of, and interest on, any such bonds so issued and any agreements made in
connection therewith, to mortgage any or all of its facilities and to pledge the revenues and receipts from
the leasing of its facilities; and

WHEREAS, on December 29, 2023 (the “Closing™), the Agency granted certain financial
assistance to Skyline Hospitality LLC (the “Company”), in connection with a project (the “Project”) for the
benefit of the Company, said Project to include the following: (A) (1) the acquisition of an interest in
approximately 6.1503 acres of land located at 4882 State Highway 28 (Tax Map No. 146.00-1-26.04) in
the Town of Hartwick, Otsego County, New York (the “Land”), (2) the construction on the Land of a new
building to contain approximately 60,000 square feet of space (the “Facility”) and (3) the acquisition and
installation of certain machinery and equipment therein and thereon (collectively, the “Equipment”) (the
Land, the Facility and the Equipment hereinafter referred to as the “Project Facility”), all of the foregoing
to be owned and operated by the Company as a hotel facility and other directly and indirectly related
activities; (B) the granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the
Act) with respect to the foregoing, including potential exemptions from certain sales and use taxes, real
property taxes and real estate transfer taxes (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and (C) the lease of

25022463v2 028260.00037



the Project Facility to the Company pursuant to the terms of a lease agreement dated as of December 1,
2023 (the “Lease Agreement”) by and between the Agency and the Company; and

WHEREAS, the Company requested that the Agency appoint the Contractor as subagent of the
Agency in order for the Contractor to undertake and complete the Project Facility; and

WHEREAS, Section 875 of the Act, as added by the provisions of Chapter 59 of the Laws of 2013
of the State, requires, among other things, that (A) the Agency recover, recapture, receive, or otherwise
obtain from an agent, project operator or other person or entity state sales and use exemptions benefits taken
or purported to be taken by any such person to which the person is not entitled or which are in excess of the
amounts authorized by the Act, (B)the Agency include within its resolutions and basic documents
establishing any project or appointing an agent or project operator for any project the terms and conditions
in Section 875 of the Act, and (C) every agent, project operator or other person or entity that shall enjoy
state sales and use tax exemption benefits provided by the Agency agree to such terms as a condition
precedent to receiving or benefiting from such state sales and use exemptions benefits; and

WHEREAS, in order to comply with the provisions of Section 875 of the Act and thus gain the
benefits of such Financial Assistance from the Agency to the Contractor under the Act, the Contractor is
willing to enter into this Contractor Recapture Agreement and to grant to the Agency certain security
therefor as described herein;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the grant of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with
respect to the Project and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged by the Contractor, the Contractor hereby represents, warrants, covenants and agrees with the
Agency, as follows:

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS. The following words and terms used in this Contractor Recapture Agreement
shall have the respective meanings set forth below unless the context or use indicates another or different
meaning or intent:

“Commissioner” means the Commissioner of Taxation and Finance of the State.
“Completion Date” shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the Lease Agreement.

“Contractor Documents” means the Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement, the
Contractor Section 875 GML Recapture Agreement and all other instruments and documents related thereto
and executed in connection therewith, and any other instrument or document supplemental there each as
amended from time to time.

“Lease Agreement” means the lease agreement dated as of December 1, 2023 by and between the
Agency, as landlord, and the Company, as tenant, pursuant to which, among other things, the Agency has
leased the Project Facility to the Company, as said lease agreement may be amended or supplemented from
time to time.

“State Sales and Use Tax” means any sales and compensating use taxes and fees imposed by
Article 28 or Article 28-A of the Tax Law of the State, but excluding such taxes imposed in a city by
Section 1107 or Section 1107 of such Article 28.

Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed
to them in the Contractor Documents.

25022463v2 028260.00037



SECTION 2. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. (A) The Contractor is a limited liability
company duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of New York is qualified and
authorized to do business in the State of New York and all other jurisdictions in which its operations or
ownership of Properties so require, and has the power to enter into this Contractor Recapture Agreement
and the other Contractor Documents to which the Contractor is a party and to carry out its obligations
hereunder and thereunder. By proper action of its members, the Contractor has been duly authorized to
execute, deliver and perform this Contractor Recapture Agreement and the other Contractor Documents to
which the Contractor is a party.

B) Except as has been heretofore disclosed to the Agency, neither the execution and delivery
of this Contractor Recapture Agreement or the other Contractor Documents to which the Contractor is a
party, the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby nor the fulfillment of or
compliance with the provisions of this Contractor Recapture Agreement or the other Contractor Documents
to which the Contractor is a party will (1) conflict with or result in a breach of any of the terms, conditions
or provisions of the articles of organization or operating agreement of the Contractor or any other restriction,
order, judgment, agreement or instrument to which the Contractor is a party or by which the Contractor or
any of its Property is bound, or constitute a default by the Contractor under any of the foregoing, or (2) result
in the creation or imposition of any Lien of any nature upon any Property of the Contractor under the terms
of any such instrument or agreement, other than pursuant to the Contractor Documents and “Permitted
Encumbrances” (as defined in the Contractor Documents), or (3) require consent (which has not been
heretofore received) under any restriction, agreement or instrument to which the Contractor is a party or by
which the Contractor or any of its property may be bound or affected, or (4) require consent (which has not
been heretofore obtained) under or conflict with or violate any existing law, rule, regulation, judgment,
order, writ, injunction or decree of any government, governmental instrumentality or court (domestic or
foreign) having jurisdiction over the Contractor or any of the Property of the Contractor.

©) Reserved.

(D) This Contractor Recapture Agreement and the other Contractor Documents to which the
Contractor is a party constitute, or upon their execution and delivery in accordance with the terms thereof
will constitute, valid and legally binding obligations of the Contractor, enforceable in accordance with their
respective terms.

3] To the best of the Contractor's knowledge, there is no action or proceeding pending or
threatened by or against the Contractor by or before any court or administrative agency that would
materially adversely affect the ability of the Contractor to perform its obligations under this Recapture
Agreement, and all authorizations, consents and approvals of governmental bodies or agencies, if any,
required to be obtained by the Contractor as of the date hereof in connection with the execution and delivery
of this Contractor Recapture Agreement or in connection with the performance of the obligations of the
Contractor hereunder have been obtained.

) The Contractor acknowledges receipt of notice of Section 874(8) of the Act, which requires
that, if the Contractor claims any sales tax exemption by virtue of the Agency’s involvement in the Project,
the Contractor as agent of the Agency must annually file a statement with the New York State Department
of Taxation and Finance, on a form and in such a manner as is prescribed by the Commissioner of Taxation
and Finance, of the value of all sales tax exemptions claimed by the Contractor under the authority granted
by the Agency.

25022463v2 028260.00037



(G) The Contractor understands that:

e)) Pursuant to Section 874 of the Act, the Agency is exempt from certain sales taxes
and use taxes imposed by the State and local governments in the State.

2) Pursuant to Section 874 of the Act, the Project may be exempted from certain of
those taxes due to the involvement of the Agency in the Project.

3) The Agency makes no representations or warranties that any property is exempt
from the payment of New York sales or use taxes.

) Any exemption from the payment of certain sales taxes and use taxes imposed by
the State and local governments in the State resulting from the involvement of the Agency with the
Project shall be limited to purchases of services and tangible personal property conveyed to the
Agency or utilized by the Agency or by the Contractor or by the Company as agent of the Agency
as a part of the Project prior to the Completion Date, or incorporated within the Project Facility
prior to the Completion Date.

) No operating expenses of the Project Facility, and no other purchases of services
or property shall be subject to an exemption from the payment of New York sales or use tax.

(6) Pursuant to Section 874(9) of the Act, if the Contractor claims any sales tax
exemption by virtue of the Agency’s involvement in the Project, the Agency must file, within thirty
days of any appointment of the Contractor as agent of the Agency for purposes of claiming any
sales tax or use tax exemption, with the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance, on
a form and in such manner as is prescribed by the New York State Commissioner of Taxation and
Finance (the “Thirty-Day Sales Tax Report”), a statement identifying the Contractor as agent of
the Agency, setting forth the taxpayer identification number of the Contractor, giving a brief
description of the goods and/or services intended to be exempted from sales taxes as a result of
such appointment as agent, indicating a rough estimate of the value of the goods and/or services to
which such appointment as agent relates, indicating the date when such designation as agent
became effective and indicating the date upon which such designation as agent shall cease.

) Pursuant to Section 875(5) of the Act, the Contractor acknowledges that (a) the
Thirty-Day Sales Tax Report shall not be considered an exemption or other certificate or document
under Article 28 or Article 29 of the Tax Law, (b) the Agency does not represent to the Contractor
or any other agent, consultant, contractor, subcontractor or other person or entity taking or enjoying
any amount of State Sales and Use Tax exemption benefits relating to the Project that a copy of
such Thirty-Day Sales Tax Report may serve as a sales or use tax exemption certificate or
document, (c) no agent or project operator may tender a copy of such statement to any person
required to collect sales or use taxes as the basis to make any purchase exempt from tax, (d) no
such person required to collect sales or use taxes may accept such a statement in lieu of collecting
any tax required to be collected, (e) the civil and criminal penalties for misuse of a copy of such
statement as an exemption certificate or document or for failure to pay or collect tax shall be as
provided in the Tax Law, and (f)the use of such Thirty-Day Sales Tax Report, or the
recommendation of the use or tendering of such Thirty-Day Sales Tax Report, as such an exemption
certificate or document shall be deemed to be, under Article 28 and Article 37 of the Tax Law, the
issuance of a false or fraudulent exemption certificate or document with intent to evade tax.

(8) Pursuant to Section 875(2) of the Act, the Agency must further, within thirty days
of providing Financial Assistance to a project that includes any amount of State Sales and Use Tax

-4-
25022463v2 028260.00037



exemption benefits, report to the Commissioner the amount of such benefits for such project, the
project to which they are being provided, together with such other information and such specificity
and detail as the Commissioner may prescribe. This additional report (the “Additional Thirty-Day
Project Report”) may be made in conjunction with the Thirty-Day Sales Tax Report or it may be
made as a separate report, at the discretion of the commissioner.

) Pursuant to Section 874(8) of the Act, if the Contractor claims any sales tax
exemption by virtue of the Agency’s involvement in the Project, the Contractor agrees to annually
file and cause any sublessee or other operator of the Project Facility to file annually, with the New
York State Department of Taxation and Finance, on a form and in such manner as is prescribed by
the New York State Commissioner of Taxation and Finance (the “Annual Sales Tax Report”), a
statement of the value of all sales and use tax exemptions claimed by the Contractor and all
contractors, subcontractors, consultants and other agents of the Contractor under the authority
granted to the Contractor pursuant to Section 2.2(G) of the Contractor Agency and Indemnification
Agreement.

(10)  Pursuant to Section §74(8) of the Act, the penalty for failure to file the Annual
Sales Tax Report shall be removal of authority to act as agent of the Agency. Additionally, if the
Contractor shall fail to comply with the requirements of this Section 2, the Contractor shall
immediately cease to be the agent of the Agency in connection with the Project.

(11)  Pursuant to Section 875(6) of the Act, (a) the Commissioner is authorized to audit
the records, actions, and proceedings of the Agency and of its agents and project operators to ensure
that the Agency and its agents and project operators comply with all the requirements of
Section 875 of the Act, and (b) any information that the Commissioner finds in the course of such
audit may be used by the Commissioner to assess and determine state and local taxes of the
Agency’s agents or project operators.

(12)  Pursuant to Section 875(6) of the Act, (a) the Agency is required to report and
make available on the internet copies of its resolutions and agreements appointing an agent or
project operator or otherwise related to any project it establishes and (b) the Agency is further
required to provide, without charge, copies of all such reports and information to a person who asks
for it in writing or in person.

SECTION 3. TERM. This Contractor Recapture Agreement shall commence as of the dated date hereof
and shall remain in full force and effect until the earlier of the following: (A) the termination of the
Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement, (B) the termination of this Contractor Recapture
Agreement by written notice delivered by the Agency to the Contractor or (C) the termination or earlier
expiration of the Lease Agreement.

SECTION 4. FURNISHING OF INFORMATION TO THE AGENCY. (A) If the Contractor desires to
claim any sales tax exemption by virtue of the Agency’s involvement in the Project, the Contractor shall
notify the Agency in writing of such desire, and shall furnish to the Agency a completed Thirty Day Sales
Tax Report relating to such request. If the Agency determines to grant such request by the Contractor, the
Contractor agrees to assist the Agency in filing such Thirty-Day Sales Tax Report with the State.

(B) If the request by the Contractor includes any amount of State Sales and Use Tax exemption
benefits, the Contractor shall notify the Agency in writing of such fact, and shall furnish to the Agency a
completed Additional Thirty-Day Project Report relating to the Project. If the Agency determines to grant
such State Sales and Use Tax exemption benefits with respect to the Project, the Contractor agrees to assist
the Agency in filing such Additional Thirty-Day Project Report with the State.

-5-
25022463v2 028260.00037



©) Pursuant to the requirements of Section 874(8) of the Act, the Contractor agrees to file an
Annual Sales Tax Report with the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance, on a form and in
such a manner as is prescribed by the Commissioner, regarding the value of sales tax exemptions the
Contractor, its agents, consultants, contractors or subcontractors have claimed pursuant to, or as part of, the
Financial Assistance provided by the Agency in connection with the Project or otherwise relating to the
Project Facility.

D) The Contractor agrees to furnish to the Agency a copy of each such Annual Sales Tax
Report submitted to the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance by the Contractor pursuant
to Section 874(8) of the Act.

SECTION 5. COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 875 OF THE ACT;
RECAPTURE. (A) If the Project includes any amount of State Sales and Use Tax exemption benefits, the
Contractor agrees (1) to comply with the requirements of Section 875 of the Act applicable to the Project
and (2) to cause any other agent, consultant, contractor, subcontractor or other person or entity enjoying
any amount of State Sales and Use Tax exemption benefits relating to the Project and as a result of the
Contractor’s sales tax exemption to agree to such terms as a condition precedent to receiving or benefiting
from such State Sales and Use Tax exemption benefits.

(B) If the Contractor or any other agent, consultant, contractor, subcontractor or other person
or entity taking or enjoying any amount of State Sales and Use Tax exemption benefits relating to the
Project and as a result of the Contractor’s sales tax exemption shall have taken or enjoyed any benefits
(1) to which such person or entity is not entitled or (2) which are in excess of the amounts authorized by
both the Act and the Agency or (3) which are for property or services not authorized by both the Act and
the Agency or (4) taken in cases where such person or entity failed to comply with a material term or
condition to use property or services in the manner required by this Contractor Recapture Agreement or in
any other agreement between the Agency and the Contractor or any other agent, consultant, contractor,
subcontractor or other person or entity taking or enjoying any amount of State Sales and Use Tax exemption
benefits relating to the Project as a result of the Contractor’s sales tax exemption, the Contractor shall (a)
pay, or cause such person or entity to pay, to the Agency the amounts requested by the Agency pursuant to
Section 875 of the Act (the “Recapture Amount™) and (b) cooperate, and cause such person or entity to
cooperate, with the Agency in the Agency’s efforts to recover, recapture, receive, or otherwise obtain such
Recapture Amount.

©) In connection with the Project, the Contractor agrees to (1) comply with any rules,
regulations, publications or other guidance issued by the Commissioner or the commissioner of economic
development implementing the provisions of Section 875 of the Act and of the other sections of the Act
relating to any state or local tax or fee, or exemption or exclusion therefrom, that the Commissioner
administers and that may be affected by any provision of the Act (the “Required Provisions”) and
(2) provide to the Agency any information reasonably requested by the Agency to enable the Agency to
comply with the Required Provisions.

(D) In the event that the Contractor or any other agent, consultant, contractor, subcontractor or
other person or entity taking or enjoying any amount of State Sales and Use Tax exemption benefits relating
to the Project shall be determined by the Agency or the Commissioner to have violated the requirements of
the Act, the Tax Law or the Required Provisions, and, as a result of such failure, the Agency (1) determines
that Section 875 of the Act and the provisions of this Contractor Recapture Agreement authorize the Agency
to seek the Recapture Amount relating thereto from the Contractor, and (2) demands that the Contractor
pay the Recapture Amount, the Contractor shall promptly pay such Recapture Amount to the Agency,
together with interest thereon at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum from the date and with respect

-6 -

25022463v2 028260.00037



to the dollar amount for which each such event which precipitated the need to make such Recapture
Amount.

SECTION 6. EVENTS OF DEFAULT. Any one or more of the following events shall constitute an event
of default under this Contractor Recapture Agreement, and the terms “Event of Default” or “default” shall
mean, whenever they are used in this Contractor Recapture Agreement, any one or more of the following
events:

A) Failure of the Contractor to pay when due any Recapture Amount due and payable by the
Contractor pursuant to the provisions of Section 5(D) of this Contractor Recapture Agreement and
continuance of said failure for a period of fifteen (15) days after written notice to the Contractor stating that
such payment is due and payable;

(B) Failure of the Contractor to pay when due any other amount due and payable by the
Contractor pursuant to the provisions of this Contractor Recapture Agreement and continuance of said
failure for a period of fifteen (15) days after written notice to the Contractor stating that such payment is
due and payable;

© Failure of the Contractor to observe and perform any other covenant, condition or
agreement on its part to be observed and performed hereunder (other than as referred to in paragraph (A)
or paragraph (B) above) and continuance of such failure for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice
to the Contractor specifying the nature of such failure and requesting that it be remedied; provided that if
such default cannot reasonably be cured within such thirty (30) day period and if the Contractor shall have
commenced action to cure the breach of covenant, condition or agreement within said thirty (30) day period
and thereafter diligently and expeditiously proceeds to cure the same, such thirty (30) day period shall be
extended for so long as the Contractor shall require in the exercise of due diligence to cure such default, it
being agreed that no such extension shall be for a period in excess of ninety (90) days in the aggregate from
the date of default; or

(D) Any warranty, representation or other statement by or on behalf of the Contractor contained
in this Contractor Recapture Agreement shall prove to have been false or incorrect in any material respect
on the date when made or on the effective date of this Contractor Recapture Agreement and (1) shall be
materially adverse to the Agency at the time when the notice referred to below shall have been given to the
Contractor and (2) if curable, shall not have been cured within thirty (30) days after written notice of such
incorrectness shall have been given to a responsible officer of the Contractor, provided that if such
incorrectness cannot reasonably be cured within said thirty-day period and the Contractor shall have
commenced action to cure the incorrectness within said thirty-day period and, thereafter, diligently and
expeditiously proceeds to cure the same, such thirty-day period shall be extended for so long as the
Contractor shall require, in the exercise of due diligence, to cure such defauit.

SECTION 7. REMEDIES ON DEFAULT. (A) General. Whenever any Event of Default shall have
occurred with respect to this Contractor Recapture Agreement, the Agency may take whatever action at law
or in equity as may appear necessary or desirable to collect the amount then in default or to enforce the
performance and observance of the obligations, agreements and covenants of the Contractor under this
Contractor Recapture Agreement.

®»B) Cross-Default. In addition, an Event of Default hereunder shall constitute an event of
default under the Contractor Documents. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder resulting
from a failure of the Contractor to make any payment required hereunder, the Agency shall have, as a
remedy therefor under the Contractor Documents, among other remedies, the right to terminate the
Contractor Documents and convey the Agency’s interest in the Project Facility to the Contractor, thus

-7-
25022463v2 028260.00037



subjecting the Project Facility to immediate full taxation pursuant to Section 520 of the Real Property Tax
Law of the State.

© Separate Suits. Each such Event of Default shall give rise to a separate cause of action
hereunder and separate suits may be brought hereunder as each cause of action arises.

D) Venue. The Contractor irrevocably agrees that any suit, action or other legal proceeding
arising out of this Contractor Recapture Agreement may be brought in the courts of record of the State,
consents to the jurisdiction of each such court in any such suit, action or proceeding, and waives any
objection which it may have to the laying of the venue of any such suit, action or proceeding in any of such
courts.

SECTION 8. PAYMENT OF ATTORNEY’S FEES AND EXPENSES. If the Contractor should default in
performing any of its obligations, covenants or agreements under this Contractor Recapture Agreement and
the Agency or the Commissioner should employ attorneys or incur other expenses for the collection of any
amounts payable hereunder or for the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation,
covenant or agreement on the part of the Contractor herein contained, the Contractor agrees that it will, on
demand therefor, pay to the Agency or the Commissioner, as the case may be, not only the amounts
adjudicated due hereunder, together with the late payment penalty and interest due thereon, but also the
reasonable fees and disbursements of such attorneys and all other expenses, costs and disbursements so
incurred, whether or not an action is commenced.

SECTION 9. REMEDIES: WAIVER AND NOTICE. (A) No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy herein
conferred upon or reserved to the Agency or the Commissioner is intended to be exclusive of any other
available remedy or remedies, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition
to every other remedy given under this Contractor Recapture Agreement or nNOwW Or hereafter existing at law
or in equity or by statute.

B) Delay. No delay or omission in exercising any right or power accruing upon the occurrence
of any Event of Default hereunder shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver
thereof, but any such right or power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed
expedient.

) Notice Not Required. In order to entitle the Agency or any Taxing Entity to exercise any
remedy reserved to it in this Contractor Recapture Agreement, it shall not be necessary to give any notice,
other than such notice as may be expressly required in this Contractor Recapture Agreement.

D) No Waiver. In the event any provision contained in this Contractor Recapture Agreement
should be breached by the Contractor and thereafter duly waived by the Agency, such waiver shall be
limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other breach
hereunder. No waiver, amendment, release or modification of this Contractor Recapture Agreement shall
be established by conduct, custom or course of dealing.

SECTION 10. RESERVED.

SECTION 11. SECURITY. (A) Guaranty. For value received and in order to induce the Agency to enter
into the Basic Documents, the Contractor unconditionally guarantees to the Agency the due and prompt
payment of rent and the performance of all obligations of the Contractor under the terms and provisions of
the Basic Documents (the “Contractor’s Obligations”). The Contractor agrees that no act or thing, except
for payment and performance in full or written release of this Contractor Recapture Agreement, shall in any
way affect or impair the Contractor’s Obligations.

-8-

25022463v2 028260.00037



(B) Reserved.

SECTION 12. NOTICES. All notices, certificates and other communications hereunder shall be in writing
and shall be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when delivered and if delivered by mail, shall be
sent by certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

IF TO THE CONTRACTOR:

BBL Construction Services, LL.C

302 Washington Avenue Extension

Albany, New York 12203

Attention: Stephen Obermayer, Chief Financial Officer

WITH A COPY TO:

Westfall Law PLLC

238 W. Division Street

Syracuse, New York 13204
Attention: Melody Westfall, Esq.

IF TO THE AGENCY:

County of Otsego Industrial Development Agency
189 Main Street, Suite 500

Oneonta, New York 13820

Attention: Chairman

WITH A COPY TO:

Kurt D. Schulte, Esq
12 Club Avenue
Oneonta, New York 13820

and

Hodgson Russ LLP

677 Broadway, Suite 401

Albany, New York 12207

Attention: Christopher C. Canada, Esq.

SECTION 13. BINDING EFFECT. This Contractor Recapture Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and
shall be binding upon the Agency and the Contractor and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

SECTION 14. SEVERABILITY. In the event any provision of this Contractor Recapture Agreement shall
be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate
or render unenforceable any other provision hereof.

SECTION 15. AMENDMENTS. CHANGES AND MODIFICATIONS. This Contractor Recapture
Agreement may not be amended, changed, modified, altered or terminated without the concurring written
consent of the parties hereto.

25022463v2 028260.00037



SECTION 16. EXECUTION OF COUNTERPARTS. This Contractor Recapture Agreement may be
executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one
and the same instrument.

SECTION 17. APPLICABLE LAW. This Contractor Recapture Agreement shall be governed exclusively
by the applicable laws of the State of New York.

SECTION 18. SURVIVAL OF OBLIGATIONS. This Contractor Recapture Agreement shall survive the
performance of the obligations of the Contractor to make payments required by the other Contractor
Documents and all indemnities shall survive any termination or expiration of the Contractor Documents as
to matters occurring during the period of the Contractor’s occupancy of the Project Facility.

SECTION 19. SECTION HEADINGS NOT CONTROLLING. The headings of the several sections in this
Contractor Recapture Agreement have been prepared for convenience of reference only and shall not
control, affect the meaning or be taken as an interpretation of any provision of this Contractor Recapture
Agreement.

SECTION 20. MERGER OF THE AGENCY. (A) Nothing contained in this Contractor Recapture
Agreement shall prevent the consolidation of the Agency with, or merger of the Agency into, or assignment
by the Agency of its rights and interests hereunder to, any other body corporate and politic and public
instrumentality of the State of New York or political subdivision thereof which has the legal authority to
perform the obligations of the Agency hereunder, provided that upon any such consolidation, merger or
assignment, the due and punctual performance and observance of all the agreements and conditions of this
Contractor Recapture Agreement to be kept and performed by the Agency shall be expressly assumed in
writing by the public instrumentality or political subdivision resulting from such consolidation or surviving
such merger or to which the Agency’s rights and interests hereunder shall he assigned.

3B) As of the date of any such consolidation, merger or assignment, the Agency shall give
notice thereof in reasonable detail to the Contractor. The Agency shall promptly furnish to the Contractor
such additional information with respect to any such consolidation, merger or assignment as the Contractor
reasonably may request.

SECTION 21. NO ASSIGNMENT. This Contractor Recapture Agreement may not be assigned.
SECTION 22. NO ADDITIONAL WAIVER IMPLIED BY ONE WAIVER. In the event any agreement
contained herein should be breached by any party and thereafter waived by any other party, such waiver

shall be limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive any other breach
hereunder.

[signature page follows]

-10 -
25022463v2 028260.00037



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the Agency have caused this Contractor Recapture
Agreement to be executed and delivered in their respective names by their respective duly authorized
officers as of the day and year first above written.

COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

BY:

(Vice) Chairman

BBL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, LLC

BY:

Authorized Member

~-11 -

25022463v2 028260.00037



STATE OF NEW YORK )
:ss.
COUNTY OF OTSEGO )

On the  day of March, in the year 2024, before me, the undersigned, personally appeared
, personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be
the individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed
the same in his capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument, the individual, or the person upon
behalf of which the individual acted, executed the instrument.

Notary Public

-12 -

25022463v2 028260.00037



STATE OF NEW YORK )
:SS.
COUNTY OF )

On the day of March, in the year 2024, before me, the undersigned, personally appeared
, personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory
evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me
that he executed the same in his capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument, the individual, or the
person upon behalf of which the individual acted, executed the instrument.

Notary Public

-13 -
25022463v2 028260.00037



EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

A-1

25022463v2 028260.00037



DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY
DATED: MARCH 26, 2024

COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
89 Main Street, Suite SOO

To Whom It May Concern:

Re: New York State Sales or UJse Tax Exemption
County of Otsego Industrial ; L
Skyline Hospitality LLC *

Pursuant to TSB M-87(7) issued by the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance on April 1,

1987, as modified by TSB-M-14(1.}J Isby the New York State Department of Taxation and Fmance
on February 12, 2014 (collectivgly, the “Po}gcy Statement™), BBL Construction Services LLC (the
“Contractor’) has requested a letter from (fbunty of Otsego Industrial Development Agency (the
“Agency”), a public benefit corpo g@@éd pursuant to Chapter 1030 of 1969 Laws of New York,

constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of %@enexal Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the Consolidated Laws of
New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”) and Chapter 252 of the Laws of 1973 Laws of New York, as
amended, constituting Section 910-a of said General Municipal Law (sald Chapter and the Enabling Act
being hereinafter collectively referrgditoa “Act”), containing the-information required by the Policy
Statement regardmg the sales tax exemption with respect to the captmned project (the “Project”) located at
4882 State Highway 28 (Tax Maf% No. 146.0051-26.04) in the Town of Hartwick, Otsego County, New
York (the “Project Site”).

The Contractor has applied to and been approved for financial assistafice from the Agency in the matter of
completion of the Project for the beng;ﬁt of Skyline Hospitality LLC (the “Company”) on the Project Site.

The Project includes the followmgg A (D) th‘&acqumtlon of an interest in approximately 6.1503 acres of
land located at 4882 State Highway 28 (Tax I\/%p No. 146.00-1-26.04) in the Town of Hartwick, Otsego
County, New York (the “Land™ »nstruction on the Land of a new building to contain
approximately 60,000 square feet of ‘Facility”) and (3) the acquisition and installation of certain
machinery and equipment therein and thereon (collectively, the “Equipment™) (the Land, the Facility and
the Equipment hereinafter referred to as the “Project Facility”), all of the foregoing to be owned and
operated by the Company as a hotel facility and other directly and indirectly related activities; (B) the
granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect
to the foregoing, including potential exemptions from certain sales and use taxes, real property taxes and
real estate transfer taxes (collectively, the “Financial Assistance™); and (C) the lease of the Project Facility
to the Company pursuant to a lease agreement dated as of March 1, 2024 (the “Lease Agreement”) by and
between the Company and the Agency. Please be advised that on or about March __, 2024, the Agency
and the Contractor executed and delivered an Agency and indemnification agreement dated as of March 1,
2024 (the “Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement”), pursuant to which the Agency appointed
the Contractor as sub-agent of the Agency to acquire, construct and install the Project Facility.

25022404v2 028260.00037



March _, 2024
Page 2

Pursuant to the Contractor Agency and Indemnification Agreement, the Contractor, as sub-agent of the
Agency, is authorized to make purchases of materials to be incorporated in the Project and machinery and
equipment constituting a part of the Project, and purchases or rentals of supplies, tools, equipment, or
services necessary to acquire, construct, reco&gﬁruct or install the Project, as provided in the [DA Agent or
Project Operator Exempt Purchase C gate ("Form ST-123”), a current form of which is attached hereto
as Exhibit A.

To ensure that the above purchases or rentals are exempt from any sales or use tax imposed by the State of
New York or any governmental instrumentality located within the State of New York, the vendor must
identify the Project on each bill and i inv ice for such purchases and indicate on the bill or invoice that the
Contractor, a sub-agent for the Age the purchaser (e.g. “BBL Construction Services LLC as agent
for County of Otsego Industrial D@Eﬁ‘ lopment'Agency”). In addition; the following procedures should be
observed:

1. -+ The Contractor, ai?& g

‘Agency, must compiét@ Form ST-123 and provide same to
vendor, with a.copy to the Agency.

2. Each bill and invoige:s tlfy the date of dehvery and indicate the place of delivery.
3. Payment should be made by the Contractor acting as §ub -agent, directly to the vendor from
a requxsmon from a special project fund f the payor.

4, Dehvernes should e made the Project Site, or \uﬁder certain circumstances (such as
where the materials require addltlgnal fabrication before installation. on the Project Site or for storage to
protect materials from theft or vandalism priorfo installation at the Preject Site) deliveries may be made to
a site other than the Project Site, pro . Itimate delivery of thé materials is made to the Project Site.
Where delivery is made to a site other than the Project Site, the purchases should be billed or invoiced by
the vendor to the Contractor as sub-agent of the Agency, identify"the date and place of delivery, the
Agency’s full-name and address angi* ect Site where the mat¢tials will ultimately be delivered for
installation. ',
L |
A contractor or subcontractor no%%“‘“ s agent or project operator of the Agency must present
suppliers with Form ST-120.1, Contracte @xempt Purchase Certificate, when making purchases that are
ordinarily exempt from tax in accordance with Tax Law sections 1 115(a)(15) and 1115(a)(16).

Pursuant to Section 874(8) of the"&¢t, the Contractor, as sub-agent of the Agency, must annually file a
statement with the New York Stat] Departme(:%of Taxation and Finance, on a form and in such a manner
as is prescribed by the Commissigper of Tax tion and Finance, of the value of all sales tax exemptions
claimed by the Contractor under the anted by the Agency. The penalty for failure to file such a
statement under Section 874(8) of the Act shall be the removal of authority to act as a sub-agent for the

Agency.

Pursuant to Section 874(9) of the Act, the Contractor, as sub-agent of the Agency, must file within thirty
(30) days of the date the Agency designates the Contractor as sub-agent of the Agency, a statement with
the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance, on a form and in such manner as prescribed by
the Commissioner of Taxation and Finance, identifying the Contractor, as sub-agent of the Agency.

This letter shall serve as proof of the existence of an agency contract between the Agency and the Contractor

for the SOLE EXPRESS PURPOSE OF SECURING EXEMPTION FROM NEW YORK STATE SALES
AND USE TAXES FOR THE PROJECT ONLY. NO OTHER PRINCIPAL/AGENT RELATIONSHIP

25022404v2 028260.00037



March _, 2024
Page 3

BETWEEN THE AGENCY AND THE CONTRACTOR IS INTENDED OR MAY BE IMPLIED OR
INFERRED BY THIS LETTER.

It is hereby further certified that, under
corporation, neither the Agency no
Organization Certificate” in order ¢

olicy Statement, since the Agency is a public benefit
ractor as sub-agent, is required to furnish an “Exempt
lr@% exemption from any sales or use tax for such items or services.
1

Under the Policy Statement, a copy of this letter received by any vendor or seller to the Contractor as sub-
agent for the Agency, may be accepted by such vendor or seller as a “statement and additional documentary
evidence of such exemption” as pr0v1ded by New York State Tax Law.8ection 1132(c)(1), thereby relieving
such vendor or seller from the oblj “to. collect sales and use tax on purchases or rentals of such
materials, supplies, tools, equipm by the Agency through its sub-agent, the Contractor.

THIS LETTER SHALL BE INE JUNE 30, 2025.

25022404v2 028260.00037



March __, 2024
Page 4

In the event you have any questions with respect to the above, please do not hesitate to call Jody Zakrevsky,
Chief Executive Officer of the Agency, at (607) 267- 4010.

25022404v2 028260.60037



EXHIBIT A
IDA AGENT OR PROJECT OPERATOR
EXEMPT PURCHASE CERTIFICATE

C
5

25022404v2 028260.00037



New York State Sales and Use Tax ST-123
IDA Agent or Project Operator rdy
Exempt Purchase Certificate

Effective for projects beginning on or after June 1, 2014

This certificate is not valid unless all entries have been completed.
Note: To be completed by the purchaser and given 1o the seller. Do not use this form to purchase motor fuel or diesel motor fuel exerpt
from tax. See Form FT-123, IDA Agent or Project Operator Exempt Purchase Cerlificate for Fusl.

Name of sellar Name of agent or project operator
Street addrass Straet address
City, town, or village State ZiP code City, town, or viliage State ZIP code

Agent or project operator sales tax 1D number (see mistructions)

Mark an Xin one: D Single-purchase certificate D Bianket-purchase certificate (valid only for the project listed below)

To the seller:
You must identify the project on each bill and invoice for such purchases and indicate on the bill or invoice that the IDA or agent
or project operator of the IDA was the purchaser.

Project information

I certify that | am a duly appointed agent or project operator of the named IDA and that | am purchasing the tangible personal property or services for use
ir the Tollowing IDA project and that such purchases qualily as exempt from sales and use taxes under iy agreement with the 1DA.

Narme of IDA

Name of project 1DA project number fuse 0SC number)

Streel address of project site

City, town, or village Stote ZIP code
Enter the date that you were appointed agent or Enter the date that agent or project operator
project operator (mm/idddyy) ... / status ends (mavadyy) . / /

Exempt purchases
{Mark an X in boxes that apply)

E] A. Tangible personal property or services {other than utility services and mator vehicles or tangible personal property
installed in a qualifying motor vehicle) used to complete the project. but not to operate the completed project

E] B. Cerain utility services (gas, propane in containers of 100 pounds or more, electricily, refrigeration, or steam)
used o complete the project, but not {o operate the completed project

Certification: | certify that the above statements are true, complete, and correct, and that no material information has been omitted. 1 make these
slataments and issue this exemption certificate with the knowledge that this document provides evidence that state and local sales or use taxes do not
apply 1o a transaction or transactions for which | tendered this document and that willfully issuing this document with the intent to evade any such tax
may constitute a felony or other crime under New York State Law, punishable by a substantial fine and a possible jail sentence. | understand that this
documaent is required to be filed with, and delivered 10, the vendor as agent for the Tax Department for the purposes of Tax Law section 1838 and is
desmed 3 document required 1o be filed with the Tax Depariment for the purpose of prosecution of offenses, | also understand that the Tax Department
is authorized to investigate the validity of tax exclusions or exemptions claimed and the ascuracy of any information entered on this document.

Signature of purchaser or purchaser's reprasentative (incivde title and rafationship) Date

Type or print the name, fitle, and relationship thal appear in {he signature box

A-2
25022404v2 028260.00037



Page 2 0f 2 ST-123 (7/14)

instructions

To the purchaser
You may use Form ST-123 if you:

+ have been appeointed as an ageni or project operator by an industrial
development agency {IDA) and

» the purchases qualify for exemption from sales and use tax as
described in the 1DA contract.

You may use Form ST-123 as a single-purchase certificate oras a
blanket certificate covering the first and subseguent purchases qualifying
for the project listed

Agont or project operator sales tax 1D number — If you are registered
with the Tax Department for sales lax purposes, you must enter your
sales tax identification number on this cedificale I you are not required
1o be registered, enter NVA.

industrial development agencies and authorities (IDAs) are public benefit
corporations under General Municipai Law Article 18-A and the Public
Authorities Law, for the purpose of promoting, developing, encouraging,
and assisting in the acquisition, construction, reconstruction,
improvement, maintenance, equipping, and furnishing of industrial,
manufacturing, warehousing, commercial, research, and recreationat
facilities in New York State.

IDAs are exempt from the payment of sales and use tax on their
purchases, in accordance with Tax Law section 1116(a)(1). However,
IDAs do not normally make direct purchases for projects. Commonly,
IDAs instead appoint a business enterprise or developer, contractor, of
subcontractor as its agent or project aperator. Such purchases made by
the agent or project operator, acting within the authority granted by the
DA, are deemed to be made by the IDA and therefore exempt from tax

Example 1: IDA agreement with its agent or project operator

statos that coniractor X may make all purchases of malerials and
equipment necessary for completion of the project, as agent for

the {DA. Contractor X rents a backhoe and a bulldozer for site
preparation. purchases conerele snd fumber to consiruct & buillding,
and purchases machinery fo be installed in the building. Al these
purchases by contractor X as agent of the IDA are exemnpt from tax.

Exampie 2: IDA agreement wilh its agent or project operator states
that contracior X may make all purchases of materials and equipment
to be incorporated info the project, as agent for the IDA. Contraclor X
makes the same purchases as in Example 1. Since the concrete,
lumber, and machinery will actually be incorporated into the project,
contractor X may puichase these ftems exempt from tax. However,
rental of the backhoe and bulldozer is not exempl since these
transactions are normally ftaxable and the 1DA agreement does not
atithorize contractor X to make such rentals as agent of the IDA.

A contractor or subcontractor not appointed as agent of project operator
of an IDA must present suppiiers with Form ST-120.1, Condractor
Exempt Purchase Certificate, when making purchases that are ordinarily
exempt from tax in accordance with Tax Law sections 1115(a)(15) and
1115(a}{(18). For more information, see Form ST-120.1.

Exempt purchases

To qualify, the purchases must be made within the authorlly granted by

the 1DA and used to complete the project {not to operate the completed

project).

A. Mark box A to indicate you are purchasing tangible personal propsrty
and services {other than utility services and motor vehicles or
tangible personal property installed in s qualifying motor vehicle)
exempt from tax.

8. Mark box 8 to indicate you are purchasing certain consumer utility
sarvices usad in completing tha profect exempt from tax. This
includas gas, electricity, refrigeration, and steam; and gas, slectric,
refrigeration, and steam services

C. Mark box C to indicate you are purchasing a motor vehicle or tangible
persanal property refated to a qualifying motor vehicle exempt from
tax

25022404v2 028260.00037

Misuse of this certificate

Misuse of this exemption certificate may subject you to serious civil and
criminat sanctions in addition to the payment of any tax and interest due.
These include:

+ A penaity equal to 100% of the tax due:

A $50 penalty for each fraudulent exemption certificate issued,
Criminal felony prosecuticn, punishabie by a substantial fine and a
possible jail sentence; and

Revocation of your Certificate of Authoriy, if you are required to

be registered as a vendor. See TSB-M-08(17)S, Amendments that
Encourage Compliance with the Tax Law and Enhance the Tax
Department's Enforcement Ability. for more information.

.

.

.

To the seller

When making purchases as agent or project operator of an [DA, the
purchaser must provide you with this exemption certificate with all entries
completed to establish the right to the exempiion. You must identify the
project on each bill and invoice for such puschases and indicate on the
bilt or invoice that the 10A or agent or project operator of the DA was the
purchaser,

As a New York State registered vendor, you may accept an exemption
certificate in lieu of collecting tax and be protected from liability for the
tax if the cetificate is valid. The certificate will be considered valid if it is:

« accepted in good faith;
» in your possession within 90 days of the fransaction; and
« properly compieted (ali required entries were made).

An examption certificats is aceepied in good faith when you have no
knowladge that the exemption certificate is false or is fraudulently given.
and you exercise reasonable ordinary due care. if you do not receive

a properly completed certificate within 80 days after the delivery of the
properly or service, you will share with the purchaser the burden of
proving the sale was exempt

You must also maintain @ method of associating an invoice (or other
source document) for an exempt sale with the exemption certificate you
have on file from the purchaser. You must keep this certificate at isast
three years after the due date of your sales tax retum to which it relates,
or the date the return was filed, if later.

Privacy notification

New York State Law requires all govemment agencies that maintain

@ system of records to provide notification of the legal authority for

any request, the principal purpose(g) for which the information is to be
collected, and where it will be maintained. To view this information, visit
our Web site, or, if you do not have Infernet access, call and request
Publication 54, Privacy Notification. See Need heip? for the Web
addrass and telephone number.

Need help?

Visit our Web site at www.tax.ny.gov

» get information and rmanage your taxes online

+ check for new online services and features

{518} 485-288¢
(518) 457-5431

Sales Tax Information Center.
To crder forms and publications:

#% Text Telaphone (TTY) Hotline

anass
T

e (for persons with hearing and

spesch disabilities using a TTY): (518} 485-5082







NEW
YORK
STATE

The industrial development agency or authority (IDA) must submit this form within 30 days
of the appointment of a project operator or agent, whether appointed directly by the DA or

IDA Appointment of Project ST-60
Operator or Agent

(1118)

For Sales Tax Purposes

For IDA use only

indirectly by the operator or another agent.

IDA information

Name of IDA

COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

IDA project number (use OSC numbering system for projects after 1998)
3601-23-03

Street address

189 MAIN STREET, SUITE 500

Telephone number

(607 ) 267-4010

City
ONEONTA

State ZIP code Email address (optional)

NY 13820

Project operator or agent information

Name of IDA project operator or agent Mark an X in the box if directly Employer identification or Social Security number
BBL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, LLC appointed by the IDA: 14-1814573

Street address Telephone number Primary operator or agent?

302 WASHINGTON AVE EXTENSION ( 581 ) 452-8200 Yes [] No
City State ZIP code Email address (optional)

ALBANY NY 12203
Project information

Name of project

SKYLINE HOSPITALITY LLC

Street address of project site

4882 STATE HIGHWAY 28

City State ZIP code Email address (optional)

HARTWICK NY 13326

Purpose of project

hotel facility

Description of goods and services intended to be exempted from New York State and local sales and use taxes

Equipment, machinery, building improvements, site improvements and related costs to the Project

Date project operator or
agent appointed (mmddyy) 03/1/2024

Date project operator or

agent status ends (mmddyy) 06/30/2025 an original project:

Mark an X in the box if this is an extension 1o

Estimated value of goods and services that will be

exempt from New York State and local sales and use tax:

$ 8,125,000.00] use tax exemption provided: $ 650,000.00

Estimated value of New York State and local sales and

Certification: | certify that the above statements are true, complete, and correct, and that no material information has been omitted. |
make these statements with the knowledge that willfully providing false or fraudulent information with this document may constitute a
felony or other crime under New York State Law, punishable by a substantial fine and possible jail sentence. | also understand that the
Tax Department is authorized to investigate the validity of any information entered on this document.

Print name of officer or employee signing on behalf of the IDA

Print itle
(VICE) CHAIRMAN

Signature

Date Telephone number

03/28/2024 ( 607 ) 267-4010







Hawkins, Delafield & Wood LLP

Hodgson Russ

Between 1/1/80 and 12/31/23 the firm had
270 bond issuances total $7,490 million.

Between the same period, the firm had 174
bond issuances total $2,473 million.

In NYS, they worked for NYC, Erie County,
Nassau County, Niagara County, Putnum
County, Rockland County and Westchester
County and the cities of Mount Vernon,
Rochelle and Poughkeepsie.

In NYS, they have worked with Albany
County, Buffalo and Erie Counties,
Saratoga County, Yates County,
Cattaraugus County, Monroe County,
Madison County, Delaware County, St.
Lawrence County, Ulster County, Clinton
County, Warren and Washington Counties,
Chautauqua County, Lewis County, Clinton
County, Rensselaer County, and various
cities and town IDAs.

Straight-Lease Transactions: $25,000 plus
disbursements.

Not billed unless project reaches
inducement stage and then is billed on an
hourly basis.

Exempt Bond Financing:

Up to $5 million: $40,000

Up to $10 million: $50,000
Up to $20 million: $70,000
Over $20 million: ActualTime

If involves an underwriting an additional
$8,000 to $15,000 is required.

Exempt Bond Financing:

Up to $5 million: $45-60,000

Up to $10 million: $65-85,000
Multi-mode 501 (¢)3: $75-90,000

Disbursement charges include couriers,
research services, duplication of
documents, travel, preparing electronic
copies of documents, virtual meetings.

Disbursement charges include binding,
computer time sharing, filing and recording
fees, publication, photocopies, shipping,
telephone and travel.

If work is performed post-closing,
supplemental invoices may be submitted
for payment.

No mention of post-closing costs.

They will not handle any litigation or
dispute resolutions. The IDA would need to
hire another law firm to handle these.

They will, if asked, handle litigation
matters.




There are 13 items that the company will
not provide including representing the iDA
in Internal Revenue Service examinations
or inquires.

They offer a greater deal of additional items
such as SEQR review, preparing
documents related to grants, etc.

Requires the IDA to establish an escrow
account for each applicant to deposit
$5,000 into it until a fee agreement is
executed with the applicant.

No escrow requirements.

Has 10 offices in US; one in NYC

Has 13 offices in US with 6 in NYS.

6 members to work on Otsego Now

12 members to work on Otsego Now

No hourly rates given though was
requested in RFP.

Hourly rates range from $170 /hour to
$700/hour.

Recommendation: while Hawkins has done more bond issuances than Hodgson Russ,
Hodgson Russ seems to have worked with more local IDAs than Hawkins. Also, Hodgson
provided hourly rates in accordance with the RFP as Hawkins did not. No escrow
requirements are requested by Hodgson whereas Hawkins does require this be undertaken
by the IDA. Hodgson also provides additional attorney resources for SEQR review, grant
requirements, and solar array project. | would recommend using Hodgson Russ for the

remainder of 2024.




